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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPEN DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Lenskan Solutions Private Limited 

Report on the Audjt of the Consolidated lndAS Financial S tatements 

Opinion 

4th Floor, Office 405 
World Mart< - 2, Asset No. 8 
IGI Airport Hospitafity District. Aeroc1ty 
New Delhi - 110 037. India 

Tel: +91 11 4681 9500 

We have audited the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements of Lenskart Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as ·'the Holding Company'·), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 

referred to as '·the Group''). its associates and joint ventures comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at 
March 31 2025, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, (including other comprehensive income), the 
consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. 
and notes to the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements. including a summary of material accounting policies 

and other explanatory infonnation (hereinafter referTed to as ·'the Consolidated Ind.AS Financial Statements''). 

In our opinion and to the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information 
of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the aforesaid Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ( .. the Act'') in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group, its associates and joint ventures as at March 31, 2025. their consolidated profit 
(including other comprehensive income), their consolidated cash nows and the consolidated statement of changes 
in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the· Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements· 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group, associates and joint ventures in accordance with the ·Code 

of Ethics· issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Ind.AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements. 

Other Information 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other infonnation. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board report. but does not include the Consolidated Ind.AS Financial 
Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated IndAS Financial StatementS does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any fonn of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with ~ 
Consolidated l.ndAS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears ~ o~!._a!e~ 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstcJ~~("'"'"',_,~~ 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in th is regard. ; ~Q7 J~ 
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Responsibilities of Ma nagement for the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
Consolidated lndAS Pinancial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of 
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial perfonnance (including other comprehensive income), 
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its associates and 
joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lndian 
Accounting Standards (lndAS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 I 5, as amended. The respective Board or Directors of the companies included in 
the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective companies and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated IndAS 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements by 
the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the Consol idated lnc!AS Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of their 
respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint 
ventures are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaramee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated lndAS Financial 
Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated lndAS F'inancial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perfom1 audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the:: override of internal control. 



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the abi lity of the Group and its associates and joint ventures to continue as a going 
concern. lfwe conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor"s 
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates and 
joint ventures to cease lo continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group and its associates and joint ventures of which we are the independent auditors 
and whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the Consolidated lndAS Financial 
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities included in the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements. which 
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opin ion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included 
in the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

(a) We did not aud it the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 16 subsidiaries, 
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 19,291 .42 111 ill ion as at March 3 I, 2025. and total 
revenues of Rs 3,028.02 mi llion and net cash inflow of Rs 62.40 million for the year ended on that date. 
These financial statement and other financial infom,ation have been audited by other auditors, whose 
financial statements, other financial information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the 
management. The Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements also include the Group's share of net loss of 
Rs. 27.92 mill ion for the year ended March 31, 2025, as considered in the Consolidated lndAS Financial 
Statements. in respect of 1 associate and 2 joint ventures whose financial statements. other financial 
infonnat ion have been audited by other auditors and whose reports have been furnished to us by the 
Management. Our opinion on the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, associate and join! ventures and our 
report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 
subsidiaries, associate ondjoin1 ventures i~ based solely on the report(s) or such other auditors . .,~. 
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Out of above 3 of the subsidiaries and 1 joint venture are located outside [ndia whose financial statements 
and other financial infonnation have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally 
accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company's management 
has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries and joint venture located outside India from 
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally 
accepted in Lndia. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company's 
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries and joint 
venture located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments 
prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us. 

(b) The accompanying Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements include the Group's share of net loss of Rs. 
16.50 million for the year ended March 31, 2025, as considered in the Consolidated lndAS Financial 
Statements, in respect of I associate, whose financial statements, other financial information have not 
been audited and whose unaudited financial statements, other unaudited financial info1111ation have been 
furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included 
in respect of these associate, and our report in terms of sub-sections (]) of Section l 4J of the Act in so far 
as it re.Jates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and other 
unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us by the Management. these financial statements and other financial infonnation are not material to 
rbe Group. 

Our opinion above 011 the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on 
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financia l statements and other financial infom1ation 
certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor' s Repo1t) Order, 2020 ("the Order'"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms 0f sub-section (l I) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the 
consideration ofreport of the other auditors on separate financia l statements and the other financ ial infonnation 
of the subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint ven tures companies, incorporated in India, as noted 
in the "Other Matter' paragraph we give in the ''Annexure I" a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 
3(x.xi) ofthe Order, 

2. As requiTed by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and oni the consideration of report of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial in fo1mation of subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures, as noted in the 'other matter' paragraph we repo1t, to the extent applicable, that: 

(u) We/the other auditors whose report we ha.vc relied upon huve sought and obtained a.11 the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 
the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements; 

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to prepararion of the aforesaid 
Consolidation of the lndAS Financial Stat,ements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination 
of those books and reports of the other auditors, except that 

i. a) With respect to H(:)[ding Company, in relation to one inventory management software, and in one 
subsidiary, the server is not located in India for Lhe daily back up of books of accounts and other 
books and paper maintained in electron ic mode, refer note 538 to the ConsoUdated lndAS Financial 
Statements, and; 

11. the matters stated in the paragraph 2(i)(vi) belo-.v on reporting under Rule I I (g) 
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(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of 
Other Comprehensive lncome, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement a11d Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements; 

(d) In ow· opin ion, the aforesaid Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements comply with the Jndian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Ind ian Accmmting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the direcrors of the Holding Company as on March 
3 I, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory 
auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, associate companies 
and joint ventures, none of the directors of the Group's companies, its associates and joint ventures, 
incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in tenns of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(t) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stared 
in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and serial number (vi) of paragraph (i) below 
on reporting under Ru le 11 (g). 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated IndAS 
Financial Statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate companies 
incorporated in lndia, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
·'Annex.ure 2" to this report. Also this report does not include Reporting on the internal financial controls for 
3 subsidiaries namely Lenskart Eyetech Private Limited C- LEPL '), Lenskart Foundation and Tango Solutions 
India Private Limited ('TSIPL ') and I associate Quantduo Technologies Private Limited C-QTPL ') under 
clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the • Report on internal financial 
controls' ), since in our opinion and according-to the information and explanation given to us, the said report 
on internal financial controls is not applicable to the LEPL, Lenskart Foundation, TSIPL and QTPL basis 
the ex.emption available to the Company under MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13, 2017, 
read with corrigendum dated July 13. 2017 on reporting on internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements. 

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company, 
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2025; 

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors 
on separate financial statements as also the other financia l information of the subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures, as noted in the 'Other matter' paragraph: 

i. The Consolidated IndAS Financ ial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its 
consolidated fi nancial position of the Group, its associate and joint venture in its Consol idated 
lndAS Financial Statements - Refer Note 35 to the Consolidated l.ndAS Financial Statements: 

11. The Group, its associates and joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses in long­
te1111 contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2025; 

ii i. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, 
incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2025. 
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iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associate and joint 
ventures which are companies incorporated in lndia whose financial statements have been audited 
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associate and joint 
ventures respectively that, to the best of its know ledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 
49 (ix) to the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (''lnte1111ediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shal I, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the respective Hold ing Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures ( .. Ultimate 
Beneficiaries'') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited 
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by 
the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (·'Funding Pa1iies"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or other.vise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, 
associate and joint ventures shal l, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and 

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries, associate 
and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been 
aud ited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor·s notice that has caused us or the 
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material 
mis-statement. 

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Ho lding Company, its subsidiaries, 
associate an.djoint venture companies, incorporated in India. 

vi. Based on our examination which inc luded test checks and that performed by the respective auditors 
of the subsidiaries, associate and joint venture which are companies incorporated in India whose 
financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Holding Company, subsidiaries, associate 
and joint venture have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a 
feature ofrecording audit trail (edit log) faci lity except as explained in note 53A of the Consolidated 
lndAS Financial Statements: 

a. With respect to Holding Company, the main accounting software operated by third pruiy, in the 
absence of control around audit trail feature at database level in the service organization control 
report, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature was enabled and operated 
throughout the year. For two Inventory management softwares audit trail feature was enabled in 
phase wise manner i.e. July 30, 2024 onwards and therefore was effective through the remaining 
part of the year till year end. 

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance or audit trail feature 
being tampered with, in respect of accounting softwares including third party applications from the 
date audit trail feature has been enabled. Additionally, with respect to main accounting software, in 
the absence of contro Is in the service organ izarion control report, we are unable to comment whether 
the auclit trail has been preserved and with respect to inventory management softwares aud_ittrjf.{;~:\ 
have been preserved by the company as per the statutory requiremen.ts for record retention, ro,~e;,.cr,..."-'-,~< 
extent it was enabled. : t[ ) )S 
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b. With respect to one subsidiary, based on the report of its auditor, the audit trail feature over the 
accounting software is not enabled, and 

c. With respect to three subsidiaries, based on the repo,t of their auditors, such subsidiaries have used 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which does not have the feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility , 

Accordingly, for (b) and (c), based on the repott of those auditors, we are unable to comment upon 
whetber du1ing the year there any instance of audit trail feature was being tampered. Additionally, 
we are unable to comment on whether audit trail as per the applicable requirements has been 
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention in respect of the 
year ended. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICA I Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

~ 
per Yogesh Mid ha 
Partner 
Membership Number: 094941 
UDIN: 2509494 l BMKRTF5076 
Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: May 21, 2025 



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountant s 

Annexure I referred to in paragraph I of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our 
report of even date 

Re: Consolidated IndA S Financial Statements of Lenskart Solutions Private Limited ("the Holding Company'') 

In tem1s of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state 
that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective audirnrs in the Companies (Auditors Report) 
Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause J(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associate LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Fiml Registration Number: IO I 049W/ E300004 

~
L/.-
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- -'----------------, 0 ( \<;:-
per Yogesh Midha • "E[ s-o 
Partner t (0 ( J • 
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Membership Number: 094941 ..._,__,.., Qe, 

UDIN: 25094941 BMKRTF5076 ~ ·-·· Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: May 21. 2025 
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED lndAS FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS OF L ENSKART SOLUTIONS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements of Lenskart Solutions Private 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ·'Holding Company") as of and for the year ended March 31 , 2025, we have 
audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as •·the Group"), its 
associates and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. Also, this report does not 
include Reporting on the internal financial controls for 3 subsidiaries namely Lenskart Eyetech Private Limited 
(' LEPL'), Lenskart Foundation and Tango Solutions India Private Limited ('TS IPL') and l associate Quantduo 
Technologies Private Limited ("QTPL ') under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the • Report on internal financial controls' ), since in our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the said report on internal financial controls is not applicable to LEPL, Lenskart 
foLLndation , TSIPL and QTPL basis the exemption available to LEPL, Lenskart foundation, TSIPL and QTPL 
under MCA notification no. G.S.R 583(E) dated June 13, 20 17, read with corrigendum dated July 13, 20 I 7 on 
reporting on internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

Ma nagement 's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, its associates and joint ventures, which 
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financ ial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (" ICA I '). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its bLLSiness, including adherence to the respective 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and e!1'ors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the .. Guidance Note'") and the 
Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143( I 0) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perfom, the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference 10 Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating e ITectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the aLLditor's judgement, including 
the assess.ment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms 
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements. 

4'~. 
,1.r • p,.sSOCi \ 

( ir~rrrv-.-..alf}IE>"'<r; 
' <'I( .....,_, .. 

cP v . ...,..,., -vJt 
~ __ .. 



S.R. BATL/801 & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Meaning o f Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements 

A company's internal linancial control with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial StatemenLS is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control wiU1 reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to pennit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of Lhe 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
Inherent Limitations of Interna l Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated lndAS Finand al 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial 
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated IndAS Financial Statements to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with lhe policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Group, its associates and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, have, 
maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated IndAS 
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial 
Statements were operating effectively as at March 3 1, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note issued by the ICA I. 

Other Matters 

Our report under Section 143(3 )(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated lndAS Financial Statements of the Holding Company. in so far as it relates 
to one subsidiary, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors 
of such subsidiary incorporated in India. 

For S.R. Batl iboi & Associate LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Nw11ber: L01049W/E3 00004 

per Yogesh Mid ha 
Partner 
Membership Number: 094941 
UDIN: 250949➔ 1 BMKRTF5076 
Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: May 21 , 2025 



Le-nsk:.rt Solutions Prl..,Mc UmitNI 

Cl:',; UJ3100DL?008PTCl18355 
Con.so1Jda1ed B11fonte Sheet as at 3 1 :\brcl1 20?5 
{AU .emouno; in Rs. million unless othen\;sc st:ih.•d) 

Asscu; 
Nan-current as.."ca; 

Property, p lant and equlpmenl 
O,pital wori.-in-progres:-. 

lnvc:mmmt prore11fos 
Goodwill 
Other lntungib!e .IS5CIS 

RighL lo use asset (Other than cb.ssilii:J in note 3C) 

lm,•cstmcl\lS D1:cow11cd for using 1bc. cquiry method 
Finnnl!iDI nsse:lS 

lnvestlm.•nts 
OLhcr financial o!-iscls 

Deferred tiL"( assc:1s (net} 

Non current tax a.sscls(ncl) 

Olbcr nl'in-cumrnl ussi.:LS 
Tolal nun-current taSSCIS 

C urrent anc1s 
lm>cnlorics 
Financial assets 

Investments 
Tra.dc n .. -ceh•abll's 
Co..~h ond ca.sh cquivall!nls 
Bank balimcc olhc.r tbon cnsb oml cash cquivalunts 
Other tinandal ass.:ts 

Other cum~nt a..~cts 
Totul curnmt :assets 
To1111 assets 

Ec1ult)' and Uabililics 
Equity 
Equuy .;hare capil.il 
h\5trum\lnts cnlirely equity in mnurc 
Other equhy 
Equity allribul.oble 10 Equity holden: of lhe parent 

Ncn•commllmg intcr~sl 
Toml<-quity 

Non-current ll:1bilUiM 

Fin.mci::11 lio.bUlucs 
Borrowings 
Lc:L!te llabilitlcs 
Othc.r finunolul llllbilitics 

Provisions 
Olhcr nun•cum:nt lfablli1ic:.s 
Dercrr,d mx li,blllties (not) 
ToH1l non-current llahflilks 

Currtn.t H:1bilitiCJi 

Finnnc1al llab\lilies 
Bonowinss 
lea..se liabilities 
Trac.le pay;1blcs 

101111 outstanding due:; of micro Cl\~rprisc:s and s1m11l cn1crpriscs 
tot.a.I outstnmiing dues other tlum dues of micro enterprises and small enterprise..,;; 

Oth~r ftnunc-inl liabilities 
Other cUrrcn1 llabilltics 
rrovlslon.~ 
Curren! ltll( li11b1ihles (nut) 
Total current liahilitil'S 

Totol llabiliti~ 
Totul 4•quity :snd ll:ibllitics 

M:ucrinl accolll'ltinc policies 
Th~ acc1Jmp,m}'lng ootcis form iln l11h:gr'J.I ~.art of these ConsoliiJah:d Fin:.m.:::inl StatcmcnlS 
:\s per o\Jr r~ort or t.:\·Cn d,uc 1Ulllchcd 

For S.R.. Bullibt>i ,~ Assodall'S LL.r 
Ch;u1crc.d A1.."COunran1s 
JCAI • • 1ra1i~n No. 101049W/E30D004 

ogc-s ~\lldh.11 

P· rtncr 
Membership No. 0~~941 

Pl;a~c: t,/~1,J !le.I hi 
Date: Mny 2 1. 202 S 
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1,069.03 

18.7SS.94 
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814.68 
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S, 143.~7 
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1511.67 
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:'.!, 113.43 

34.373.03 
95,3111.21 

1;4.18 
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l.emkar1Solu1loas J>rlsatt Limittil 
c rN: U33100DL200SPTCl78355 
Consolidated Statt111tnt or Profit and Loss for the ye11r ffldtd 31 Mareh 202S 
(All amoun" I• Rs. million unless otbtn,i,e statd) 

rncomt 
Revenue from operations 
Olherincome 
Total income 

Expen,n 
Cost of raw mau:rials and compoments consumed 
Purchases of stock in ?radc 
Ch:mges in invateo,y of traded and finished goods 
Emf)loytt beuefils e"l"'nx 
Fmence costs 
Depredalloo and amortization expense 
Other expenS<:s 
Tobi tlpetlses 

Profit before s•are of (loss) of assocbtes and joint venhues 

Shere of (loss) ofaS$0Ciates and joint vcnlUl'CS (net of taA) 

Profit before tu 
Taxupellk 
Current tax 
Adjusnnem of tax rela1ing co earlier periods 
Deferred tax ( ettdit)/charge 
Prolll/(L8") for the yetr (A) 

Other com pmie11Sive (bss) 

Items that wlff not ~ nclusifud subsequrndy to profit or lo,s 
Re---meaillremenl (loss.) on defined benefit plan 
Income tax dfcct 
Items tflat will be redassllled subseque•Uy to profit or loss 
Exchange diffen,n= on translation of financial rotlements of foreign opentions 
Other co .. prehemlve (loss) for Che year (B) 

Total comp...tl,n.slvt lnrom.t(loss) for the yttr (A+B) 

Net ~1/(hm) attrllntlallle co: 
Owroers of the Holding Cofllf)8ny 
Non-concrolling inceiest 

Other compfflltllslff (loss)/"mCGme attributabk to: 
0-wD<n of the Holding Company 
Non-,;ootrollilli in~t 

Total ~pl't!heasl~elMornel(loss) attributable to: 
Owners of lhe Holding Company 
Non-controlling interest 

Eaming,,'(l..oss) per equity share (nminal value of $lare Re 2 JJ I Mardt 2024 Re 21) 

Notes 

24 
2S 

26 
26A 
268 
27 
29 
28 
.10 

46.47 

32 
32 
32 

Basic earningsl{loss) per equlty share attribulable to owners of HoldUlg Company ( In R 31 
Diluted camingsl(loss) per equity shan, altrib111able lo owners of Holding Company (In 31 

Material aocountiag policies 
The accompanying notes fonn an in!cgral part of these Conso~cla!ed trnancial Statements 

As pa our revon of tven dare aaached 

For S.R. Batllhal & i\JJa<i:itc• LLr 
Cll:itt~1~J A«oununl.l 
ICAI Finn Rq:1 tJlu>n No 10104'1\V El~ ,~ 
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.\kmbc~tup :-lo. 09-1941 

ruce. Ne.W J>e\ I\ i 
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Year ended Vtarended 
31 Marc• 2025 3 I Mar~h 2024 

66,525.17 S4,277.03 
3.567.59 1.821.69 

70,092.76 56,093.72 

17,603.27 14.~2'.J.42 
4,573.45 J,473,70 
(832.68) (S41.72) 

13.787.54 10,864.91 
1.4$8.90 1.229.89 
7,965.69 6,722.40 

2 t .638.6J 18,917.34 
66J.9'-7ll 55,495.9' 

3.897.98 602..78 

(44.42) (12.47) 

3,853.56 590.31 

1.023.64 593.22 
(26.04) 

(143.48) 124.67 
2,973Ml (IOI.SO 

(10.12) (13.41) 
0.62 

{163.94) (190.42) 
(173.44) (203.83) 

l,199.96 (305.371 

2.95S.89 (174.61) 
17.51 73,07 

( 174.23) (237.61) 
0.79 33.78 

2.781.66 (412 22) 
18.30 106.85 

J.77 (0.l I) 
J.76 (0.11) 
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Lt!wka.rt Solutiaru Privutr. Limilt!d 
CIN : UJJ I UOOLl.OOICPTCI 7Pi.l55 

Cnn~olid11trd St:1.trmr.nt orCnh Aow1 (or thr. yc.11;r l!nded JI l\l11nh ?025 
(AU :amounts in Rt , 11:\llllou unles, otherwise 111ued) 

o\ C:ash now rrum OJMr:.ttini,: 11ccM1it:s 

Prarrt before Ui.1. 

J\djau mrnu for-: 

GtUa. ou n:i.lnnption1 fo.lr \'lllwatiua oJ' mutulll fwid. unit~ 
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lrttercs1 lncornc 
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Dividend iiii."tlrn~ 

Pro\lmon. rord1n dc.nd rCCCJvablc 

Dmy dr3:wt,.ack 

lmpai!l of' .imo r117,cd CD:(t adj usltni!OI for bDfT0\\1fl~'i 

L(W ,31(()WiltlCC f@I' doubcful Jcbt 
Sha1i:: uf11u~,l o f11i.,oi:i;11~ i:mdJoU\1 ,..~'nll.lt'i.':i. nct 0J'11a." 
G:nn ll[I fair ,·11lui: n(call O['IIO(l 

O pi.!n rin: prufic before W11rkiu~ i:-apl1nl :1dJunmcu11i 

Wot l.lng uplt:1\ :uljuJ;tnwnts: 

llrw.Tt:1'ie) i11 inV'll:ruorlc. 
Ol-cr-ca:!CI (rnctl:3!4:I In Olhc:r linanc:UII llJ;SCIA 
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lru:n."'.l'ie m olhcr lmbl1it1Cli 

hL<:tc'.1~ ln tr<JL.!c l):&)':iblcs 

lm;;n.'ll!iC In pro,•isioru 

c,.,11 Dow from opuarine. 2uh·illt!i 

Income Lu pil1d Incl at'rcfund) 

~11l c:uh flow from op11r11tlng :ic1M du (t\) 

0 C:uh tlfl" '!I from h'l\'Cilftng :ltlh Illes 
Pun.:h:ise M ri1upcny. pl;i.n1 and t.'l)uirm~nt. C-Jpi1al wor).,fn•prug.ri:.s:1. 
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Proc~-i=di from ~ale •Jf irw~1m1.-n1 

Pmci:cds i'rnm s11k ofmutunl fimd 

lm~tnti.'f\1 in ufmu1u11I fund 

l"H!,,;llf)i.'lt1 in lh'N d~p11$iH 
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Lmdrurt Solutf.on.1 PrlYll tc UrnJh.,d 
CL'\': U3llOIJDUOOBPTCl78J55 
COnjOlldllh.·d S1"1cmt1.n1 of Cub nou1 for the y(!::,r t-Ddtd 31 ~br-ch 2025 
fAIJ nmoutll! In Rs. mmlan unlu1 i:,tbl'.rwiu .srnud) 
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Lensknrt Solutions Prh•atc Limited 
ClN: UJ3JOOOL2008P'tC178JS5 
Consolid11tcd Stulcmcnt of c hanges iu e'q uity ror I.he year end ed 3 I hi1a.rch 2025 

(All nmounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stat~d) 

A Eouih• share rumital 
l'arlkulurs 

Equity shm-es of Rs. 2 each issucu, subscribed am.I rulJy paid up 

l3uluncc us al O l April 2023 
Add:- Issued during the year (refer note 15A) 
.Balon« os at 31 March 2024 
Add:- Issued during the year (refer note 15A) 
Add:- Bonus issued dui:ing the y"ar (rerer note L5A) 
Balunce as ar: 31 M:irch 2025 

B. Instruments entire.Iv equitv i1:1 1111111rc 
Par,iculnn 

Compulsory cunvcrifoble preference slrnres, subscribed and fully 11a.ld U(> 

Balance os at O l April 2023 
Add:- Issued d uring the year (refer note 15 B.) 
Add; Amount received. against portly paid-up shares 
Add: CCPS convered Into equl1y shan:s 
Balance us at 31 Murch 2024 
AJJ:- lssucJ c.luring the year (refer not< 15B) 
Balance 11s rtt 31 Murch 2025 

J3 Other eou:ity 

Par ticulars 

u~bnce o, at 1 Aprll 2023 
•(Loss)/ profit for the year 
-Other comprehen.sivc (lpss) I income (net oftnx) 

Total cornorebensiYc (loss) fo,r I.be l'ear 
Total 
- Premium receiveJ OD issue of share~ on ESOP'! 
• Premium rncei11ed 011 issuance of 0.001 % Compulsorily Con11en-ible No11-rn111ulative 
.Prcrcrcncc Sharcs-Cla&s 2 ofRs. 10 cocb 
- Purchase of Treasury Shares by ESOP Trust d ori□!; the year 
- Op1ions setdcd in cash during the ye<ir 

-Transfcm::d to retnit1eJ t:illilll1,!;!'i due lu sdllt:mcrul ofsllan: options 

- Transferred :from other con1prehcn~iv~ los~ 
• Tn.1nsferre<l 10 securilie!\ premium for op1ions e:\erciscd during the year 
• Exncnsc for cmolovcc stock options 
BaJuncc us at 31 Marci, 2024 

Amount 

152.86 
1.32 

154.IM 
1.21 

l ,387.9N 
I 54J.37 

Amount 

172.37 
1.493.57 

4.53 
(0.89) 

1,669.58 
1.39 

1,670.97 

All rlbutnblc to owners of the Holdin° Comnanv Non-Control ling Total 
RcserYcS ant.I surplus T r easury Other con111rehcnsin incomi, lnt·crest 

Securities Rctaiuet.l Share options Shares Re-mcasurem•ot of Foreign 
premium e:unings outst:111d ing defin<d benefit plnn currcnc::y 

::ll'COUlll translation 
res~re 

66,643.114 (1 2,640.44) ll.6.96 . - 293.28 959.79 55,372.63 
- (174.61) . . - - 73.o7 (JOl.54) 
- - . . (IS.41) (214.20) 33.78 (203.83) 

- (174.61) . . (13.-11) (224.20) 106.85 (305.37) 
66,643.04 (12,8 15.05) 116.96 - (13.411 69.08 1,066.(,4 55.,067.26 

70.72 . - . - . . 70.72 
672.32 - - . . - . 672J.2 

. . (64.99) - . - (64.99) 
. . {10. 10) - . . - (10.10) 
. (39.66) - - . - . (39.6(i) 
. (.13.41 ) . 13.41 , 

(23.52) - -
;7J 
~ .... . c2:vs'j \\> .or "'~" - - 63.70 . - ---....1, ' - tf3 .7'P1 - ,,.. - '-_· 

67,386.08 (12,868.12) 147.04 (64.99) - //6§:os Kc5.6r,\'64 ss;T.353'4 

(This spacl! has been i111e111iorwlly left blank) 



Lens kart SolutiorL< Private Limlled 
c rN : U33100OL2008PTCl78355 
Consoliduted State.men I of clrnn~cs in equity for the year ended 3 I ,\ lurch 2025 
(AJI umounts In Rs. million unless othcn,i<e ,tut1>1l) 

Balance as at I A 11ril 202-1 
-Prnfit/(.Loss) for the ye11r 
•Other comprch~asivc (loss)/income (net cf UL~) 

Totul comurehensivc income for Ilic ve.1r 
Total 
• Premium rc..:eivcd on issue of shares on ESOP's 
- Premium received on issuance of 0.00 I% Compulsorily Conv<rtibtc Cumulative 
Preference Shnn:s - Class 3 

- U11lizaLion qf security premium against issuance of bonus shares 

- Putclmse ofTrc.,sury Shares by ESOP Trust during the year 

- Sale of Treasury Shores by ESOP Trust du1ing the year 

- Options sctlled in cash during I.he year 
-Transforred 10 retained earnings due to se1tlcn1cnt or share options 
- ll.""<CeS..S outnow over the rc.5crvc uc1ually .,;arrk:d rot the ESOP oplion:i sc11lcd during 
lhe year 

- Transferred rrom other comprehensive loss 
- Trnnsforred lo securities premium for options exercised during the year 

- E111ploycc. :;tock option cxpcn:5c:5 

- Reduction of non-controlling Interest due to purchnseof slake in subsidial)' 

Bal•ncc as ut J I March 2025 

Sw~rnary or· 111otcrial aa:ounting policies - refer Note 2 

The accompanying notes rorm an integral pan of these Consolidated financial StR!ements 

A!f. per our report of even date auachcd 

Fvr S.R. Biltliboi & A.ssocinlc.$ LLI' 

Chartered AccouJ11an1s 
!CAI Finn Registration No. IOJ01l9WIE300004 

idJ1:1 
I artner 
Membershfp No. 094941 

Place: {Vet,.) De/ It : 
Dal<: May 2 1. 2025 

67,386.08 ( 12,86~. I 2) 147.ll-l 

- 2,955.89 -
- . . 

- 2,955.89 -
67,386.08 (9,912.23} 147.0-I 

52.85 - -
1.599, 12 - -

( 1,387.<JS) - -

- -

- - (3.29) 
J. 18 

-

(9.50) -
- - ( 11.75) 

- - 8(1,49 

- -

67 650.07 r9 n&.55) 218.4'.I 

(64.99) - 69.08 1,066.6-1 55,735.7-1 

- 17.5 t 2,973.40 
. (9.5G) [ 164.73) U.79 ( 173.44) 

- 19.501 11 64.73) 18.30 2,79?,96 
/6-1.99) C?.SOl (95.65) 1,084.9-1 58,535.70 

- - - 52.85 
- - - - 1,599.12 

- - - ( 1.387.98) 

( 117.02) - - - ( 117.02) 

IUU.64 100.64 

- - - - (3.29) 
3. 18 

- - - - -

9,5( - -
- - (1 1,75) 

- - - 86.'19 
- - - ( 10.58) ( I U.58) 

(81.37 19-5.65) 1,0H.36 58,1147.36 

Fm ando11 bchu\fqf 1he8o;mt of Directors of 
\(.slrn,·t Solutions Private Limited 
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D irector 
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Place: Gurui.ram 
Dale; May 2 1, 20'.!5 
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Chief Fi ancial omccr 
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Date: May 21, 2025 
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PIRcc: Guru11ra111 
Dnte: May 21. 2025 
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Company Secrctnry 
Membership No.-/\CS29209 
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Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025 

1. Corporate informatiou 

Lenskart Solutions Private Limited ("the Hold ing Company") was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 
19 May 2008, as Private Limited Company. The Company's registered address is W-123, Greater Kailash Pa,t-2 
New Delhi- 110048. These consolidated financial statements comprise the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
(referred to collectively as the ' Group'), The Group is engaged into designing, manufacturing, branding, and 
retailing of own-branded eyewear products. The Company sells prescription eyeglasses, sunglasses, and other 
products including contact lenses and eyewear accessories. 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 I March 2025 were approved for issue in accordance with 
a resolution of the directors on 21 May 2025. 

2. Material accounting policies 

Basis of preparation of consolidated financia l statements 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lnclian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 l5 notified under Section 133 of Companies 
Act, 20 l3, (the ' Act') and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 20 I 3, (lnd 
AS compliant Schedule UI). 

The Group has prepared the consolidated financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going 
concern and climate related matters have been duly considered in going concern assessment. 

2A. Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (IN R), which is also the holding company's 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest m ii lions, unless otherwise indicated. 

28. Basis of measurement 

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the foLiowing items; 

Items 
Investments in equity shares other than subsidiary, associate and joint venture 
Investments in mutual funds 
Liabilities for share-based payment a1Tangements 
Other financial assets and liabilities 

Measurement basis 
fair value 
Fair value 
Fair Value 
Amortised cost 

The Company has prepared the consolidated fmancial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a 
going concern and climate related matters have been duly considered in going concern assessment. 

2C. Use or estim ates and judgements 

ln preparing these consolidatecl. financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the appl ication of accounting policies and the reported amOLmts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognjsed prospectively. 

A. Judgements 



Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Determining the lease term of the contract with renewal and termination option - Group as a lessee 
The Group determines the lease tenn as the non-cancellable tenn of the lease, together with any periods covered by 
an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to 
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. 

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement 
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. 
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or 
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease tenn if there is a significant event or 
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to 
renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the 
leased asset). 

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate: 
The Group cannot readily detennine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing 
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow 
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right­
of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group 'would have to pay', 
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the 
terms and conditions of the lease. 

Operating lease commitments - Group as a lessor 
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has 
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not 
constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it 
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as 
operating leases. 

B. Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available 
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of 
the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. 

i) Provision for employee benefits 

The measurement of obligations and assets related to defined benefit / other long term benefits plans makes it 
necessary to use several statistical and other factors that anempt to anticipate future events. These factors include 
assumptions about the discount rate, the rate of future compensation increases, withdrawal, mortality rates etc. The 
management bas used the past trends and future expectations in detennining the assumptions which are used in 
measurements of obligations. 

ii) Recognition of deferred ta:< assets 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is an evidence that future taxable profit may not be 
available. Therefore, in case ofa history ofrecenr losses, the Group recognises a deferred tax asset only to the e>-.'tcnt 
that it has sufficient taxable temporaiy diffe rences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. 

iii) Impairment of trade receivables 



Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 3 l March 2025 

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact 
on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

iv) Provision for litigation 

The management detem1ines the estimated probability of outcome of any litigation based on its assessment 
supported by technical advice on the litigation matters, wherever required. 

v) Provision for warranties 

The Group offers one-year warranty on Eyeglass and Sunglass. Warranty costs on sale of goods are provided on the 
basis of management's estimate of the expenditure to be incu1Ted during the unexpired period. Provision is made 
for the estimated liability rn respect of warranty costs io the year of recognition of revenue and is included in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimates used for accounting for wa1Tanty costs are reviewed 
periodically and revisions are made as and when required. 

vi) Fair value measurement of financ ial instruments 

When the fair values of financ ia l assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance sheet cannot 
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The 
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, 
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial 
instruments. See note 37 for fu1ther disclosures. 

vii) Impa irment of non-financial assets 

The carrying ammmts ofthe Group' s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then 
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit ('CGU' ) is the greater of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are 
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets ('CG U' ). 

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which 
management has based its detennination of recoverable amount include estimated long tenn growth rates, weighted 
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience 
and represent management's best estimate about future developments. 

2U. Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial 
and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based 011 the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows. 

- Leve l J: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 



Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
Summary df material accounting policies and other explanatory infonnation for the year ended 31 March 2025 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during 
which the change has occun·ed. 

2E. Current versus non-current classification 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet based on current I non-current 
classification. The Group has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-cwTent liabilities 
and current liabilities in accordance with Schedule Ill, Division II of Companies Act, 2013 notified by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs. 

An asset is classified as current when it is: 
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, 
b) He ld primarily for the purpose of trading, 
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 
a) It is expected to be settled in nonnal operating cycle, 
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
ct) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

All assets and liabilities have been c lassified as current or non- cu1Tent as per the Group's operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between 
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group bas asce11ained 
its operating cycle as less than 12 months for the purpose of current and non- current classification of assets and 
liabilities. 

Deferred ta,x assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

2.1 Principles of Cons olidation 

i. Subs idiary 

Subsidiary is an entity controUed by the Group. The Grauµ controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, 
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the 
date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. 

ii. rnvestment in j oint ventu re and associate 

An associate is an entity 0ver which the Group has significant i.n.J:luence. Significant influence is the power to 

participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those 
policies. 

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have 
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of contro l of an 
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties 
sharing control. 

The considerations made in detenniningwhethe 
to determine control over the subsidiaries. 



Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanato1y infonnation for the year ended 31 March 2025 

The Group's investments in its joint venture and associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the 
equity_method, the investment joint venture and associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the 
investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets oftbe associate or joint venture since 
the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the canying amount of the 
investment and is not tested for impairment individually. 

The consolidated statement o f profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of joint venture 
and associate. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as pait of the Group's OCI. ln addition, when there 
bas been a change recognised directly in the equi ty of associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of 
any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from 
transactions bet\veen the Group and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint 
venture. 

iii. Non-controlling interests (NCI) 

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree' s net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition. 
Changes in the Group's equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as 
equity transactions. 

iv. Loss of control 

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any 
related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the fom1er subsidiary is measured at fair value 
at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

v. Transactions elim inated on consolidation 

lntra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, 
are eliminated. 

vi. The consolidated u nancia l statements a re comprised of financial statements of members of the Group as 
under: 

Subsidiaries Country of % of interest as at 3 1 % of interest as at 
incorporation March 2025 3 1 March 2024 

Lenskart Eyetech Private Limited India 100.00 100.00 

Lenskart Foundation India 100.00 100.00 

Tango fT Solutions India Private Limited India 100.00 100.00 

Dealskart Online services Private Limited India 100.00 -

Neso Rrands Pte. Ltd. Singapore l00.00 100.00 

Lenskart Solutions Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100.00 100.00 

Lenskart Solutions INC us 100.00 100.00 

Lenskar t Optical Trading LLC UAE 100.00 100.00 

Lenskart Solutions FZCO UAE 100.00 100.00 

Lenskart Solutions Company Limited Vietnam 100.00 100.00 

Lenskait Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100.00 100.00 

PT Lenskart Solutions lndonesia Lndonesia 100.00 100.00 

Thai Eyewear Company Limited Tba.i land 100.00 100.00 

Lenskatt Solutions (Thailand) Company Tba iJand 100.00 100.00 
Limited 

Lenskart Optical Lense Cuttting LLC UA E - -- 1 Q0.Q0 100.00 

~
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Lenskart Solutions Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Lenskart Arabia Limited KSA 100.00 100.00

MLO K.K Japan
Owndays Inc. Japan
Owndays Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Owndays Co., Ltd Japan
Owndays Taiwan Ltd Taiwan

100.00
96.67
100.00
100.00
100.00

100.00
92.27
100.00
100.00
100.00

Owndays Down under Pty Ltd Australia 56.00 56.00
Owndays Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 51.00 51.00
Owndays Tech & Media (Thailand) Co., Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99
Owndays Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100.00 100.00
Owndays (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Thailand 49.00 49.00
Tenno Optical College Company Limited Japan 100.00 100.00
Owndays Vietnam Company Ltd. Vietnam 100.00 100.00
Contact Co., Limited Japan 100.00 100.00

Associates Country of
incorporation

% of interest as at 31
March 2025

% of interest as at
31 March 2024

Quantdo Technolgies Private Limited India 17.11 17.11
Le Petite Lunetier France 29.00 17

Joint Ventures Country of
incorporation

% of interest as at 31
March 2025

% of interest as at
31 March 2024

Baofeng Framekart Technology Limited China 51.00 51.00
Visionsure Services Private Limited India 50.00 -

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis ui

property, plant and equipment for the current a
<esSmerstfa^™Jine method. The estimatecj^e'ful Jives of items of
ffficomparati^&reriods are as follow; '
vn < y °Jf

*

1

1
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Lcnskart Solutions Private Limited 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Asset category 
Building (Non RCC Structure) 
Building (RCC Structure) 
Roads 
Plant and machinery (Other than MEI Auto lens cutting machine) 
Plant and machinery (MEI Auto lens cutting machine, ASRS)* 
Furniture and fixtures 
Office equipment 
Computers and peripherals (including server) 
Electrical fittings 
Vehicles 

Estimated useful life (in years) 
30 
60 
10 
7# 
15 
7-10 
5-7 
3-6 
10 
6-10 

# for these class of assets, based on internal technical evaluation, the management believes useful lives as given 
above best represent the period over which Group expects to use these assets. 

*Assets working in double sh ift and triple shift any time during the year, the depreciation have been increase by 
50% and 100%, respectively. 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the useful life of individual assets or period of lease, whichever is 
lower. 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 
appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of 
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is 
ready for use (disposed of). 

2.3 Capital work-in-progress 

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is recorded as capital work-in-progress 
before such date. Cost of construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are 
attributable to construction activity in general and can be allocated to specific property, plant and equipment are 
included in capital work-in-progress. 

2.4 Intangible assets 

i. Recognit ion and initial measurement 

Intangible assets represent computer software and tradt:rnark.s. lntangible assets are stated at acquisi\ion cost less 
accumulated amortization and impaim1ent loss, if any. The cost of intangible asset comprises its purchase price, 
including any import duties and non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable expenditure on making 
the asset ready for its intended use. Lntangible assets are amortised in consolidated statement of profit and loss on a 
straight line basis in accordance with the estimated useful lives of respective assets. The management's estimates 
of the rate of amortisation of intangible assets are as follows: 

Asset category 
Software 
Trademarks 
Brand and Goodwill 
Non- Compete 

Life (in years) 
5 years 
IO years 
Indefinite* 
As per agreement 

*Brand and Goodwill are evaluated annually for impairment and adjusted if required. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when • cure economic benefits,e~~e specific 
tor loss as incurred.. ::;'-'C,~ ;~:>~-asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is ll'f"~I-J..l.i!' 

.... N D 11 )··' •~~ew P. .,1 ,-
> ·-., 
Jc, ~Ii 

S>7 .-~".n 
~/,; 
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iii. Amortisation 

Amortisation expense is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased during the year. Amortisation method, 
useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. 

2.5 Inventories 

Inventories which comprise offinished goods, traded goods, raw material, consumables, tools and stores and spares 
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, 
production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. 

The methods of detenninarion of cost of various categories of inventories are as follows: 

Particulars Basis of Valuation 

Raw Material Weighted average cost except for certain raw materials including prescription 
lenses and frames which are carried at actual cost. 

Consumables, tools and Weighted average cost 
stores and spares 
Traded goods Actual cost 

Work in progress Weighted average cost 

Net realisable valu.e is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of fin ished products are not written down below 
cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products 
will exceed their net realisable value. 

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on item by item basis. 

2.6 Financial instruments 

(i). Recog11itio11 a11d initial meas11re111e111 

A financial instrument is any contract thar gives rbt Lo a financial asset of one entity an.d a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for 
an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition or issue. 

Trade receivables are initially recognised at transaction value. All other financial assets and financial liabilities arc 
initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

(ii). Classijicat/011 mu/ subsequent 111eas11reme11t 

Fi11a11cia/ assets 

The Group classifies its financial assets in the folJowing measurement categories: 
those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit 
or loss), and 
those measured at amortised cost. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to ~ = ~Ii£! crnition, except if an9 in the period the Group 
changes its business model for managing financial 
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A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as 
at FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a bus iness model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 
the contractual tenns of the linancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

All financial assets not classified as measllred at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at 
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financia l asset that 0U1erwisc meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

TI1e Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio 
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and info1mation is provided to management. The 
infonnation considered includes: 

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those polic ies in practice. These include 
whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, ma intaining a particular interest 
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected 
cash outfl ows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management; 
the risks rhat affect the perfonnance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business 
model) and how those risks are managed; 
how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair va lue of the 
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 
the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior peiiods, the reasons for such sales and 
expectations about future sales activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third patties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered 
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's continuing recognition of the assets. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose perfo1111ance is evaluated on a fair value basis 
are measured at FVTPL. 
Financial assets: Assessmeni whether contractual cash flows are solely pt~vments of principal and interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value o f the financial asset on initial recognition. 
' Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal 
amount outstanding during a particular period oftime and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk 
and administrative costs), as we ll as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are sole ly payments of principal and interest, the Group considers 
the contractual tem1s of the instrunrnnl. This includes ~3e33ing wnether the financial asset contains a contractual 
tenn that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In 
making this assessment, the Group considers: 

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 
terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; 
prepayment and extension features; and 
tenns Lhat limit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features). 

Financial assets: Subsequent 111ec1s11remenl a11d gains and losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, jncluding any interest or dividend 
income, are recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
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These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is 
reduced by impairment losses. lnterest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised 
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities: Classijicatio11, s11bseq11e11t measurement am/ gains mu/ losses 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at 
FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, 
are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. 
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities 
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be 
drawn down. 

(iii) Derecog11itio11 

A financial asset is derecognised only when: 
the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation lo 
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. ln such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. 

Where the Group has not b·ansferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the 
financial asset is not derecognised. 

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. 
Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of 
continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. 
The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its te1ms are modified and the cash flows under the modified 
terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at 
fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial 
liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. 

(iv) Offsetting 

financial assets and financial I iabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
when, and only wl1en, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either 
to settle them on a net basis or to reafjse the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

(v) Impairment of fi11ancia/ assets 

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost. At 
each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit- impaired. A 
financial asset is 'credit- impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future 
cash !lows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset [s credit- impaired inc1L1des the following observable data: 
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; or 
a breach of contract such as a default or being past due. 

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount 
whfoh are measured as 12 month expected credit lo 
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bank balances for wh ich credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial 
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the 
expected life ofa financial instrument 12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that 
result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the 
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating 
expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition 
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable infonnation that is 
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and 
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward- looking 
information. 

Measurement of e.\pected credit lasses 

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present 
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the 
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). 

The Group follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. Under 
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk for individual customers. Rather, it 
recognizes impainnent loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each repo.rting date, right from initial recognition. 

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. 
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates and delays in realisations over the expected 
life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every balance sheet date, the historical 
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward- looking estimates are analysed. 

Prese111atio11 of allowa11cefor expected credit losses in the balance sheet 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the 
assets. 

Write-off 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss within other expenses. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have 
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to t·he write- off. 
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with 
the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

(vi) lmpair111e11t of assets 

Assessment is done at each Consolidated Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (PPE 
and intangible) may be impaired. For the pt1rpose of assessing impainnent, the smallest identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets 
or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. lf any such indication exists, an estimate of the 
recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable 
amount are wrinen down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash generating 
unit's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash 
flows expected to arise from the continuing use ofan asset and from its disposal ::it the end of its useful life. 
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2.7 Cash and cash eq uivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheet comprise cash al banks and on hand, demand deposits 
with banks with an original maturity of three months or less and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, 
net of defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's 
cash management. 

2.8 Provisions (other than employee benefits) 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present obligation that can be estimated 
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the legal or contractual 
obligation. Provisions are detennined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate 
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the 
discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for: 

Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

2.9 Revenue recognition 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transfe1Ted to the 
customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services. The Group bas generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements 
because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. 

a) Revenue from the sale of product is recognized upfront at the point in time when the product is delivered to 
tbe customer. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for 
volume discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. 
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. 

b) Revenue from services is recognized in accordance with the terms of contract when the services iire rendered 
and the related costs are incurred and the balance amount is recognised as deferred revenue. 

c) Revenue from membership fees is recognised over the period of membership. 

Contract balances 

Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage 
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in 
financial instrument - initial recognition and subsequent measurement. 

Co11tm ct liabilities 
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the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group perfonns 
under the contract. 

2.10 Government grants 

Government grants are recognised initially as de ferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that 
they wiJI be received and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they are then 
recognised in profit or loss as other operating revenue on a systematic basis. Grants related to the acquisition of 
assets are recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset. 

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other operating revenue 
on a systematic basis in the periods in which such expenses are recognised. 

2. 11 Employee benefits 

The Group's obligation towards various employee benefits has been recognised as follows: 

i. Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related 
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-tern, cash bonus, 
if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by 
the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

ii. Share based payment transactions 

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an 
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally 
become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of awards 
for which the related service and nonmarket vesting conclitions are expected to be met, such that the amount 
ultimately recognised as an ex--pense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non­
market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the 
grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for 
differences between expected and actual outcomes. If the entity elects to settle in cash, the cash payment shall be 
accounted for as the repurchase of an equity interest, i.e. as a deduction from equity 

iii. Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into 
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Group makes specified 
monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fond scheme. Obligations for contributions to 
defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during 
which the re lated services are rendered by employees. 

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is 
available. 

iv. De fined benefit plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined cmm-ibution plan. The Group's net 
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of 
future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting 
the fair value of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is perfonned annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit 
credit method. 
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applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to 
the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other ex-penses 
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to 
past service ('past service cost' or ' past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the 
settlement occurs. 

The group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-tem1 employee 
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-tenn compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial 
valuation us ing the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are .immediately taken 
to the consolidated statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as cunent 
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement 
for at least t\velve months after the reporting date. 

v. Other long-term employee benefits 

The Group' s net obligation in respect of long-tenn employee benefits other than post-employment bene fits is the 
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that 
benefit is discounted to detennine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The 
obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method. Rerneasurements gains or losses are reoognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 

vi. Termination benefits 
Tennination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits 
and when the Group recognizes costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months of the reporting date, then they are discounted. 

2.12 Foreign currency 

Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of Group at the exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of 
the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cun-encies are translated into the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was detem1ined. Non­
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at tbe 
exchaLige rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

Foreign operations 

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations of its subsidiary, are translated into INR, the functional currency of 
the Holding Company, at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations 
are translated into [NR at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate 
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 
Foreign currency translation differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity (as exchange differences 
on translating the financial statements ofa foreign operation), except to the extent that the exchange differences are 
allocated to NCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net 
investment. 
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Group as a lessee 
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except-for short-term leases and 
leases of low-value assets. Tbe Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

i) Right of use asset 
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset 
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount 
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, an.d lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

ii) Lease Liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of the 
lease payment to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance 
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and 
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of 
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for te1111inating the 
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not 
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the 
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

ln calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental bon-owing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for 
the lease payments made. In addition, the can-ying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a 
modification, a change in the lease te1111, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting 
from a change in an index or rate used to detenn ine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option 
to purchase the underlying asset 

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low value assets 
The Group appl ies the short-tenn lease recognition exemption to its short-tern, leases (i.e., ~hose leases that have a 
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies 
the lease of low value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be low value. Lease 
payments on short-term leases and leases of low vaiLLe assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease te1111. 

Company as a lessor 
At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the 
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. 

When the Company acts as a lessor, it detem1ines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an 
operating lease. 

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance 
lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such 
as whether the lease is for the major part oftbe economic life of the asset. 

When the Company is an intennediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease 
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the 
head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company 
applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease. 
If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Company applies Ind AS 115 to allocate the 
consideration in the contract. 

The Company applies the derecognition and impai 
lease. The Company further regularly reviews es 
investment in the lease. 
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The Company recognised lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over 
the lease tenn as part of' other income' . 

2.14 Income tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to 
an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

i. Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best 
estimate of the tax. amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income 
taxes. It is measw-ed using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Cu1Tent tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

ii. Deferred tax 

Defe1Ted tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also 
recognised in respeot of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for 

temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that: 
o at the time of transaction that neither affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not 

give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary dffferences. 
o temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Company is able to 

control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future; and 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be 
available. Therefore, in case of a history ofrecent losses, the Group recognises a defen·ed tax asset only to the extent 
that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or 
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no 
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the 
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the repo1ting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences d1at would follow from the manner in which the 
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred ta"- assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabi lities and 
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different 
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities 
will be realised simultaneously. 

2.15 Borrowing cost 
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For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible 
for capilalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that a5set. The capitalization 
rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding 
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The 
amount of borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during 
that period. 

All other borro\,~ng costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 

2.16 Earnings per share 

Basic Earnings per share 
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outsianding during the period is adjusted for events 
including a bonus i:J:iue. 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the 
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. 

2. 17 Segment Reporting 

An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur 
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the other components, and for 
which discrete financial info1mation is available. The Company is engaged into designing, manufacturing, branding, 
and retailing of own-branded eyewear products. The Company sells prescription eyeglasses, sunglasses, and other 
products including contact lenses and eyewear accessories, which has been defined as one business segment. 
Accordingly, lhe Group's activities/business are reviewed regularly by the Group's Board of Director's from an 
overall business perspective, rather than reviewing its products/services as individual standalone components. 

2.18 Investment Property: 

Property that is held for long-tenn rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the 
group is classified as investment property. 
Investment property also includes property 1hat is being constructed or developed for future use as investment 

property. 

initial measurem ent 

lnvestment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable 
bon-owing costs. Investment property that is obtained through a lease is measured initially at the lease liability 
amount adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date (less any lease incentives 
received), any initial direct costs incurred by the group, and an estimate of costs to be incurred by 1he lessee in 
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying 
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease. 
Though the group measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment 
property is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Subseq uent measurement {depredation and useful lives) 



Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory in fonnation for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Where during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset bas been sold, 
discarded, demolished or destroyed, or significant components replaced; depreciation on such assets is calculated 
on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific useful life from the month of such addition or, as the case may 
be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced. 

Oe-recogn it ion 

Investment [Properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of tl1e asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of de­
recognition. 

2. 19 Business Combination 

The Company accounts for its business combinations (other than common control) under acquisition method of 
accounling. Acquisition related costs are recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred. The 
acqulree· s llkntilittLle asscu, linbilitic:, and continsenr liabiUties thM meet the condition for recognition are 
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwil I. Where the 
fair value or identifiable assets and I iabil ities exceed the cost of acquisition. after reassessing the fair values of the 
net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognised as gain on bargain purchase. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the 
amount recognised for the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets 
acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration h·ansferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly 
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used lo measure 
the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value 
of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in other 
comprehensive income (OCI) and accumulated in equity as gain on bargain purchase. However, if there is no clear 
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing 
the same through OCI. 

2.20 Recognition or dividend income, interest income or expense 

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is 
es tab I ished. Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective incerest method. 

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 
expected life oftbe financial instrument to: 

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or 
- the amortised cost of the financial liability. 

Ln calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amotu1t of the 
asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liabiliry. However, for financial assets 
that have become creditimpaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. lf the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the 
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis. 

2.21 Recent accounting pronouncement 

Standa rd notified but not yet effective: 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 07 May 2025 has notified Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment rules 2025 respectively, which amended/ notified cerLain accotu1ting standards (see below), 
and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after O I April 2025. 



Limskarl Solulluol:' Prlvulc Llmiled 
CIN : U331UOOL2008rTCl78JS5 
Notes 10 lht coru.alidatcd Onancial sblL'ruents for 1hc ,·u r coded l l Morch 21?5 
(All :1mounu In R.J. mUllou unlus otherl'isc &1:lltt d ) 

3A Pro e.rty, plnnl and cqut1unt!.tll 

Purtkulars Bulldlngs llo•d< 1•11101 und Le>Sehold Furnilurc 11:nd Vcl1klr om« Compulc.rs F.lt't'lrkttl Tul2I 
machine~' im11ru,•~m..-n11 fhturi:s rqulp1urot 11nd nnb,gs 

1,c..ri11hl•r:tls 

Cru<s Block 

Al I Aprll 202J 940.07 34.35 5,175.61 4,172.11 547.n 19.Hl 308.66 4$8-32 122.61 11,778.72 

Additions during 1he year ~~U.40 1,830.RII 'J32.90 16).4i 1,75 92.ll~ 2)9.0(, 2 19.79 4,l)U.'.'2 
,\Jjustmcnt due to businc~s ~u:quisilion (rdc.r 0011:: 4.SC) 4.68 4J,R 

o,,pusals (125.'III (196.35) (24.171 (4 09) f27 61) (72.97) (0,991 (452.ll'I) 

l!xchangc 1rt1nslu1iun <lir1Cr..:1u.•1: (99.2~! (2~0.83) (6.3bl (I.IJ.II (1l.~2) (6 5~) 0.03 (41359) 

Al 31 Murch 2024 l ,SY0.47 34-35 ~.781.2! 4,617.83 680.IIH 16.44 363,01 1>!2.~0 J.11.44 15,U,17,94 

Al 1 April 2024 I.S9U.47 H-35 6,7Kl.21 4,617.83 680.0~ 16.H 363.61 6?2.S0 341.44 15,047.94 

AJju:!Utui!'IH dui: 1u busine$s ucquisition (r~fi:r not\! :.ISA nnd U) 515,NI 65,50 80.5b 2·1-1.•Jo 1)6,SZ l,07l.2'l 

Additions liurins the )"~r 50.55 I.09<J,6 1 1,021.45 3~1.1 1 327.5H 1~1.53 )(,.51 J,1 12.35 

DiSJ10sals (33.40) ( 189.16) ,~ 1.33) (19.TI) (6.61) (290.221 

Exclrangc lrJn~IJtiun dim:-n:m:t 73.K'J 177.17 17.81 fl.33 M .03 •101 0.15 292.39 

1'nmsfer from investment l?roec.rt~ 1.IJ~J. 19 666,25 675.36 2,424.80 

Al JI Morch lO?S 1,641.02 34.35 K,437.1.l 6,779.98 1,784.48 16.77 l 16:IS.i6 9~1.95 378.11 11,660.55 

Accumullltcd dcprcclmtion and lmp11inncn1 

Al I Apr il 2023 II.US 0.01 1.931.40 1,874.69 326,l l 9.97 155.97 l6J.5J J.86 -1,566.71 

Di..'.r rccin,ian churgc for the year 4 1.29 J.76 705.51 470.66 77.60 1.~I 55.'lol HU,00 22.~q 1,519.25 

l\djustmcnt du~ 10 busim:b ;,icquisition (n:rer note .J SC) 2.69 2.69 

Di,po<uls (IIH2) (111.99) (19.11) (4,041 (23. 78) 165.63) (0.!IO) (351.117) 

l!N..:lt.anni: lnm~latlun d i1T1:r1:ncc (41.78) IHS,08) (3.75) (11.l,Ki (S.27) (3.20) (142.76) 

Al l i M•roh 2014 41.37 3.77 2,481.11 Z.135,28 JBUJ4 7.06 IHU6 JJ7,J9 25,55 S,594,Hl 

Al I Aprll 2024 41.37 3.77 2,481.?1 1,135.28 380.).l 7,06 18U6 337.39 25.55 5,594.83 

Derre.ci:uion ch1.ir£,t for tht: yccir 49.S I 3.76 935.'II Sb9.94 122,71 1.6~ 133.02 187,72 37.09 2,IJ.ll.34 

Disposal, (21.25) (lf,S,79) (19.17) m .S3) (6.2 1) (2'31.95) 

l:xch:mgc transbtfon difTcr~nc~ -l-1.58 91.61 11.l!S o ?S 7 .7•1 5.14 O.Ol 16L89 

1·na11sl\!f' fram lnv~ uucm (!flle'-'rtt 323.J2 159,UH 207.37 6S9.77 

At 31 Morch 2025 90.88 7.53 3,434.45 1.954.36 654Jl4 8.99 5 17.51 524.6,1 61.68 8 255.88 

Ncl carrying :unounu 
Al 31 Mur<h 2024 1.549.10 J0.58 4.300,01 2,481.55 299,74 9.3H 180.75 285,11 315.89 9,453.11 

Al 31 Mureh 2025 1,550. 14 26.82 5,002.68 3,H2S.62 1,129.64 7.7R l,IIH.ZS 42H.31 3 15 . .U 13,40Hi7 

Notes: 
(i) Upon trnushiun 10 lmll1rn acL:ountini:: ~tuntltmJs (rdi.:m:U tuns lnLI AS), lh~ Grour, uduph:tl or11ion11I c.'(c111ptiuu tn consiJ-.::r cJrrying vulucs ti!i: dccnH::d cust on chttu nflr-Jnsiliun 1,1 1ml AS. 

(Ill R•fer detijllcd occoun1ing 11ollcy for pro11ony, pbnt anJ equipmont and dcprcclntion. refer note 2.4. 

(iii) Ccrt:11n :u:scls have been plcd£Cd wnh B:inks for 1cm1 looru: 1akcn by 1be H.Jldmi. Company. Refer nOlc 20 for dct.ails of .assets pk-d~. 

(iv) Assel~ uc,1uircd durini; bu-tmes."i cL1111bimuion repRsent ASSl!l'I. purch~sed as pan or1·ango JT Sulutmns Priv:t.tc Linti1cd :1cqmsi1ion :u1d hi\\'( been 1m:n.surt:d at fair value as or ac-qu1• 111on dtlc. For del3Jls, ~f,·r n(nl! 45~~ 

(v) Assets ncqulr~d during bu!1:lnes..~ combmullon rc-prescnl ass:cls pnrch11.!icd us parl of l)ealsknrl Onl[ne 54.:rviccs Private l unllctl und Con1ni.:1 Co. Ltd. ucqui~111on und huve been mi.:usurOO ut fQir vnluc as of m:q11ii-l(1"k~~ il~ti~,..~ole45 A &H. 

(vi) During lhc current yar lhc lnvcslmi:nt propcny bas bl-en transfcmd UJ Prupcny Nml nnd Equipment 1.1.nd Rii:)11 of ~ 11.SSCI on .11:'l'VUnl u(ai..--qu1si1u)n of Dcalskan Online Scrvkcs Privalt Llnuicd r v~ ;,'; 
oe\\11 , 

~ ~o"' ff 
~1;· 



Le1111kurt Solu1lo1u t•rh·utt Llmitc:d 
CIN : UHIOOl>U0031'l'Cl71'355 
.'.'l'ott.J to tb~ COD)oUd.alNI ffmuK.i:al Jt'll l tmtHU (or I.hr yt':ar t:udrd Jl .\l:snJI ?115 

(AU 11.mounti ln lb. million unle:n othr.rv.lse i lllttd) 

Xoto: 
(I) Capil111 work m pro_i;,~ :ave-SIi: 5Cbcduk: for the )'\'.'II ended llJ on JI M01ch :o2.S JGJ JI M=udl !i:u is as (nllnw~ 

AJ :ti J I /\hrcl1 lU25 

CWIP 
Lot 1t111n I Jr.IT 

Projcru lo p,ogrus 8.l' IS 

Pro !:!CH u.-n orurll sus 1,.--::mkJ 
TutJtl 

As Ill l l l\h,rclt 2024 

C\VIV 

Prnjcc111 In proarc1-.: 

A,no .. 1 i■ C\\'11' for :ii paiad of 

9.06 

,,116 

Anmut ht C\\'U' for:.i put.d uf 
t.J 't'ar,. ?-3 \ ',an 

10.!0 

.l.0..?D 

{Ii) The Oroup doa, not h;a,;c unyc11prt:il v.mk m rrogrw, whnloC compk:liun aso,crwc. huc.w~ a;: ro)I co~w uon;...t pWl0tll.b-~.uy~ as-at Mou'Chll.,!02:.Smd M.u-ch.Jl.3)?.4 

CWIP movC'ml'nf 

P11rtlc.uh.rs 

Clpen,n1&bN:• 
Acqul&linrt due in ni.bsidiary (rcfcr 1101t no. -15A) 

AJJl1'on durinJ. 11'4:' y~· 

C:,pit~ldcd dunn, ,~ Y\":lr 

E,u h11o~e Tr11nsl.1110n Difli•N.·nce 

Cluslna: 1$:ll;Juec 

MofY 1h11a J w;ars 

More l'l11rn J ,·e:u~ 

A.Jal 

J I l\l1trdt Znl!i 

1,Ub9,tlJ 

1,069.0l 

7U8.l 4 

S.2¥ 

2.471.7Y 
ll,116.7111 

U.J? 

1,069.0) 

AJ at 

ll Mal'<'h ?0.?.4 

Tu1•I 

' l' tlhll 

Alai 

l1 i\ harc.h 1024 

7D1!.J-4 

70H.34 

1,069.0l 

1.1169.1.1 

JOS.)4 

708.3-1 

2.K8.S.'J9 

ll,512.04) 

(l.Ol) 

701.J4 



Lcnskart Solutions P rh·Ate ,Limited 
CIN: U3J IOODLZ008PTC1783S5 

NotC31U 1he consolidated fimmc:ial5t;:iteme11ts for the yc~r endtd 31 Mn.rch 2•025 

(; \II nn,o,rnts in R~. millfnn unless othtn,•in stn1td) 

JC 1.Jncestcmml Propcrcic.s 

P:1rlicul1ar5 R.lgb.t lo use ~tt-sct O rITce equipmitnl 

M at O I April ?023 
A<lJilfons Juring Lb~ yc:ar 
Dispoillls 
A..!I :t.t 311\htrch 202~ 

A< ot O I April 2024 
Additions Lluring the yc-ar 
Disposn[s 
T.l'DJUforJo PPE nml llOU•Jroft!r nok 3Al 

Asal 31 March 2025 

Ac.c:umututcd dt:(1rl•cin1iou and Imp11tru1c11t 

A~ :41 0 I April 2023 

Ot!prccia1ion clm.l'gC lbr thf;! yctu-­

Di,posnl< 
AS•• 31 March 2024 

A! at O I A1uil ?024 

Depn:cfodon charge for thi.: y~r 
Olspo.<al, 
Tr.msfer to PPE :ind ROU "{refer note 3A) 

As at 31 i\l:irch 2025 

. .\t 31 ~larch 202J 

At 31 ~farch 2025 
• PPE-Prop<rt}', plant and <quipm<nt 

ROU· Righi to use 35!-Ct 

Notts: 
(i) F:1lr Value of Investment proptrt.y 

Particuhtrs 

Fait Value 

6,S8U4 306. 75 

3.257.~6 248. 7l 
[7J.2lll (4.00) 

9,765.42 551.-18 

9,765.~! 5S1.~~ 

2.646.DS 123. 88 

(1 17 .091 

fl2.294 . .ll!I (675.36) 

780.49 J 7.68 

955.53 73.9S 

ll l.39J (0.751 

1.724.63 120.91 

1,7H.63 120.91 

1,010.95 86.47 

(27.72) 

(2,707.S6) (207.37) 

8.0~0.79 JJ0.57 

Fumlture1111d l'iXlurc.s Le:,sc.hold Total 
h:npron.ml•nts 

331A3 520S2 7,7411.14 

!5(,,G11 390.7; 4,153.43 

(8.9Sl (I !.~S) (97.511 

519.11 8911.99 11,796.06 

579.17 899.99 11,796.06 

87,QM ISJ 20 ],040.21 

( 117.09) 

(666.25) 11,U&J. I<)) (14,719. IS\ 

48.95 12.63 9JY.76 

55.15 IU .77 1,199.43 

(2.06) (~.24) (lG.-1-lJ 

102.IJ4 185. 16 2,132.75 

IU?.ll-l 185.16 Z, IJ2.7S 

57.04 13S.l6 1,292.62 
!27.72) 

(159.0S) (323.J~) (J,397.63) 

477.lJ 714.83 9,663.31 

As ::u Asal 

31 March 2025 JI Mitrc:h ?024 
9,663.3 1 

The investment propcnic." reprc.o;cnts lc.,scd prop{'ttics and funhcr given on ,sublease. The Holding Company has nul cngn,seJ. rcg1~tcred valuer for the fair valuotion of investment properties, h ha,; 
bcr.:n i:ompu1ed by usin~ Oiscow1tcd c;ish Hows mctltcid relating, to 1hc: lcnsc rtruul!I for the remaining pcl"lod of lease tcnn. Tlu: lcnsc co.s.h tlows n:cd,·nblc rrom sµch propcn iC'!- have been 
dl.scountt:J ;it tht! markc:t rate of in1er~t of NA (31 Murch 202-t: 8.07¾) :.is- :lt reponingda.t"°-

on Dcl.1i\s Qf lm;V[UL': w:IU C..'\)1(:ll!,C 1c.\;mng 1D ur.,'~\m'(.T!\ f>1i>pCrti~:; 

l>articul;1n 

Rcpto.l income 
Direct opcrJ.tiai; c::q,cnscs 

- fimmec ~-OS' 
• Dcptccimfon 

(HI) For detu..iled uct.\lunllng policy for invesmu:.nl propenies, refer note 1.18. 
(iv) For ci~bt 10 use BS!i-UlS other thun closslficd 11S invl!Stm.cnl propmics. refer no1~ 36. 

For ye.:ir l'ndfd 
3J Mnrch 2025 

1,432.63 

586. 12 

1,292.62 

(~6.11) 

For yt:ir 11ndcd 
31 March t1Jl4 

1,463.34 

586.65" 

t.l 'J'J.43 

(JZ:?.74) 

(v) Upon tran>ition to 111Ji,n ,ccounling sm,i<lurJ., (rcCcm:d to a,; Ind AS}. !he Group ndoptcd opllonil oxomplion !ti eon;idor cmying \'Olu,'S us deemed co,r oo dale of transition 10 Ind ,\S. 
'rllc O rllup has no rc:orictions oh the (C:::Jlisablhty of iu; ttLVL"St menl r,ropcnic.s ~nd ntJ 1-:onuuctulll ab lig;ations 10 purchllW,, c-omln11;I ur d.::vc.:l'.lp jn,•c,'iLmcnl prope11i1.: :tor f..,r Np:t.ira, mn.inh.uuum.: and 

(vi) enhancements. 
(•.-ii) During the curnnt year 1he Investment pTopcnles ha$ be.en trunsfi:m:d to Property Pl:mt .ind Equipment and Right ofo.iso usset on 11ccoun1of acquisition or Oenlskart Online Servict.'S Private Lhnhed. 

(T/Jl,<r sp,,eL• lws IJ,·1.m i1J1<•111fonuJ(v Jef, blrmA) 

/ 



Lr.n~knrt Solutions f'r-iv:ue Lhnltd 
CIN: U3J IUDUL1008PTC 178355 

r'llu1u tu thc consofld111ed rinni1t i1ll,jlJ1IL•me.nt.s l'ur lhe your cmdtd 3 1 M 11rl'.h lO?S 
(All n.111uu111.s ln It$, ut.illhm unlcSs 0·1he1·wise slnledl 

4A lnliilli,:lblc l.lsscu & Gt1u1hviU 

l'arl'il·.ulnrs 

Gross Block 

As lU O I A11dl 2023 

Addiuons during th~ ycnr 
Atiju,11n1o111t dui.! 10 lrns1nrSS acqm!i'llion (ri=fer n,ih: ,1)C) 
Disposals 

Tr.i.m,lation difforc:nce 
A,-1 al JI /\h1:rrh 202.J 

As UI 01 Aflril.2024 

Addi1lun~ during 1he year 

;\dJu51n11:nt du~ IO h1J.SJ1ll.!SS .tcqufsa11on (rc:rcr nDI~ ~5A and fl) 
Dlspo$.11bi 

l111pwm1.~n1 
Trnnsl11119n 4i'ffenmi::e 

Accmuula1cJ 1wu1rfUz111luu 
As 111 01 April 2023 
Amornznoon fur Lhc- )'l.!Ut 

Dlspo:,41:;; 

Tran.sl111ion cl1fferenwc 
As ill ll l\l.11rch 2024 

,\ s ill O I A1iril 202~ 
Amonlzut!uo lbr the yiaou 
D1sposRl.1> 
Jtnpaurm.:nt Jn:f'cr null.! :i 11 
Trnn51:u.lm1 cliU.t.,~cl! 
"-' nl .l I 1\1.urcla 2025 

N!!·t c:urnlu -:unuunu 
,\..!J nl .l I t\hrrb 1()2" 

As nt 3 1 M arrh 2025 

Nok!!: 

S.379.49 

60.]7 
8.HUb 

k,-139J16 

(1 ~)$1 
115 ()J 

8,6J6.5:i 

2.97 
-146 

I 72 
9.1:i 

9. 15 
J J:! 

({1 1(,] 

11.ll 

8,4]0.71 
~.GlS.l.J 

Pruuchi.54,•c 

A"reemcuu 

1,16.l.59 

,,, .. 
1,272.7] 

1.272.73 

()8 2'J) 

3:1.q 

l,26b.lJ7 

33-'.16 
501 2; 

192 3-1 
1.,027.85 

1,027.85 
ISJ ,Sb 

(:?41 UIJ) 

13 15 
1. 19:1.77 

244.88 
71.10 

Noo•«11111u~•~ 
Agr-c!l.:lll Cllf 

2.5) 

.l-Sl .. 18 

Q.()(I 

361.38 

.J7.JB 
.56 06 

I U.IJ!i 

11-U.15 
:?~ l)J 

I l 1 

D7.H 
216.8!' 

{I} Upoh 1m11SLl1on lo lndinn ac..:au111111g s l1md11rds-(1efom:d to ru; hid AS}, thi.! GJOup 111fop tL--d opuonitl i:x1.:"111111rnu 11, cl)1Li::11Ji:r c:Ul)'ing ,mlu15 ~ dc:i:.mc.LI cost on d11tt of1nms11ii:.m 10 l11d AS 
(ii) Rd"cr det1iled uccmm1int polrc:y !'Or inu1n~1bl-o a.•Hic:l.s und :1mur1jza1iun, ref~ no1t. 2 6 

167.34 
29,3-1 
29,35 
(0,71) 

V.42 
2.14.74 

234.74 
I S2S 
0.08 

(ll.U7) 

l .UO 

l:'J.00 

47.2S 
37.61 
(0 lb) 
(2.17) 

82.ll 

8UJ 
-12.]4 

(0.07) 

I 79 
126.]9 

IS2A2 
12-6.61 

C:u .i!IUIIH'.'I'" 

Jklntiun sh ifl 

0 •t! 

l~.81 

I Ol 

0 DJ 
I.OS 

I J,73 

T 1·mJl'uu11·lu 

uud pJ1lcnls 

1.7H 

I 20 
8.10 

11.2H 

12.28 
5.95 
0 •19 

IM.72 

2.llll 
I 02 

J.Dl 

3,02 
2 J I 

0 02 
S.lS 

9.16 
I J .J:7 

Tot11I Coo.d,,IU 

111.163.0S 18,612.58 
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ll'rldt,,,_.. tr:ad.e r-cawlbk • atJtt Jaip;nml 161 '-~ U.10 ... 7, '76 15..Jt I 

(I) '0,r Gtoup01 c-~K1.1re ll' Ucdi1 :artd t11neoC)·n~lu. fllld fou ::il~111,"311C'U tclltcd 10 1rndr rrt.1:n':llblrt 1:ite dl•<loKd ffl nm~ lk(C'), 
(Ii i Nt1 ti.iJe r1.."t:d\11bk111n: d11i: ih1e11 Jnwmn •Jirnthcr fK1h:cn \•hhi: Ho.tJmis C(1Ull)3nyc11hu ~ \ t.nlly '" j111111ly uith ~nyath(r p(r,.c111 Sor 1111y lrJdc r«cw.alill"1 uc Jue from tirm~ 11t 111111m: mn1r:1.nio rc,c,~,int1l\ In \\hi..b .anyd1rcctnr l.t .11 pant1cr.11 
d1rccaor or• member 

l110Tt~~~nbll!lt1tt1WJC1•tn1m,tbaf'Ul.£ud11e~nllym1cm,,a(Jtlto~Ja.)"J. 

(I~) nn.Mra.1\mb.lkJ f\"Oh\~.l,b. bol«-k ~ U IMC atcluioi ID lU..sptaJ ~ 
fvt'TkttMr:H~cdlr.NLrnun:ablc:s;uM \brdt JI. :?G.?5. \l.Jnb JI.M!-1 

I? t:;1nlll •1111 teliSh cquh:i,lr-nh 

l'11rtin1l11n 

C.ull11e11h.tnd 

8ab,iac,•Ah..utlcx. 
•t1fl l'Wffflt k'ICGOIU:J 

·"~'fMl\lh • ·nh 11ris11ul ffllllUMI) (ur le,., th.m J llHW!lh~ 

IJ ih■I,; habn" atflrr t.Jua p\h Hd ~ Hflh alt ft I' 

P,u ·rlcllbn 

6JnkJ~[u "AithOrl[llnJI ITUIWll)'filf mon: l}un J nmn1tu bl11 lcn lh.ort ll nlo1u1h, 

Othct fi,,:c:d dcr1Hlu 1.1mh NM-8:inkmi l- i.n.:it1cb.l lnuh1~11,J\1 lbt m,1~ 1hJ.11 ~ 1nt1nth\ b&l1 ldJ tll.3n I! mMllh~ 

llt'fktt.a"-rqutn~ inatnltw!MI-C'lt,ttfahSp«tUIO~ ...... &.lt:~a,M.ihr:a.foldlit-rqonHIIJO'..dp•~.at• 

,\i llt ., .... 
. 11 M:ncb?.U?.S .II ,\larch !UH 

"'"' ~1J3 

6.llSl'> l.61i. 16 
JOOSf, JP.h0 

!l,5-1:, 111 J.lllJ.:.\,1 

.... , .... , 
.31 M.udl:JG:5 JI , 1,,~ !D1-' 

!,IIJMi :?.9?1.JJ 

l ,OS9 3i 
!.,IK.S• S.tn(l,TU 

f11I Dq...b-,.th or111riJ.l m;m1nt) bmur..c: due lhtC'C'mOllthJ.bd ~ dun ll"'°"r,,o(R,'" Jl.\...161ft111Klft Ill \ladr, '.!O!.l• lb.6J:J.1 mul1,m1). iidJby-1 .. ctllllJni1Ccmp.my~;innc,1 d'.M,Jh&eb me~ tllcNartpln:l~•tdl, GGl.mt.ntfflt-1■dlcs: 
.. u,hnnu~ t111J pl~ \\llh lin11.1wLJI IIU1UUm1ni .111.iirM lu;iru iakc-n b)' ,b ... I lutJ1n1 Cumri:iny 

l t O tit,. cur l"Cld ;b~lil 

r.artlcllJ...t.r, 

CM.tuln-ntpid 
8.abac:I' WUll p-u-amm, ~•~ 
1\d~.Uh'.CS ID !ltpplf"1, 

Prepa1J 11,pcasn 

, \Jv.i.U~\;'J l o l.'.lllp l1~1;1.-.. 

Olhcr r«c-ntJblCI" 

l1!1palrin•n1 allow1111cu 
A1h,.111cc.-II) ~11.'N • 1rnri-.1lniw:n1 ulkl\\"QIKC 

,\,:11 ..... 
J I i\l•n:11 ?025 JI ,\brtb 10!-f 

,.o,n...., l...!15.!! 
6l7.7--I .IOOAJ 
4411.SS :ol.07 

14,t):! .. , 
1-'lit.lJV 76 S7 

l,QOO.J,I :..111 J l 

U! ·H l 

f4J2. t,u1, 
?.,"U.U :Z,lll.-ll 



l,t n1Mart SOiution.• Prhlafe Lim/fed 

CIS : UJ310Dt>LlOOl!IPTCJ7iJJSS 

:"<lo tH 10 the c.-on.solid11i1·l!d Fh:uanc-hll .st:atem,:nli- ror lhc )'Cll.r cndc-d JI M mrcl1 l O:l.t; 

(All :unim nb In th. ln mltlior1 unless othcrv,•U, sUlttd) 

LSA [ qulty i.hu c capi tol 

:a) o\Mthorlsed tqully lb.tu dl:plt111I 

fap.1ityshtm~s of Rs.:? .:.:ich (ll M11rd12~4: ~. l ~cbJ 

Equity 1h11rcs Scn.::s ,\ o(R~- :! end\ (l 1 Mi1rch W:!4: !:ts.~ t::ldl) 

El1uily ~hare11 S<ril.'S f) of RJ.. l t:~.:h 13 1 f.fare:h J.()!il: R.5. 2. c:ichl 

h) touc:d-, ~ub~crlb,:d and ,uur 11•Jd•up c-quil}' i.hnr n 

Equity .1b111n::1 or ~ l r.ar.h (ll l\t.arch 20?.4: R).? Uc-hi 

,\t lhc- b1:ginnini; of'Un: )'C:ar 

AdiJ: Sb:ma ISSwJ 

Adi.I. Snnus issUN durl11i; th~ yi:.:ir 

Al lhll! f.Dd o r Uu.• yc:ar 

Equity lhllfCI Su fc-1 A a r RJ. 2 ucb (31 M:1rch 10?4~ ~ lC":atb) 

1\1 1hc bcglnni:ni; n i' lhc yor 

At t h .I? C!Od of lb.I!' )'Hr 

Eqoity J'.hnrc:r Sui,:-.1" 8 of lb.. l t.'Ueh tll M11rd1 201_.: Rs. ! utbl 

,\11bi; bq;rnmne,af1b..:.y1:nr 

i\1 lllt.! (1011 of IIIC-tt.!.ar 

+e) Rlt hU, p rdt!tll!llt ~ ::uul N ,itrlttiao, iaU•thcd in r-quit.,- sh:aru 

AJJI 

31 M1m:h lOlS 

;-.lo, uhh:u u Am.oun1 

7R.22,(~l,OOO 1,564.-11> 

1:5,000 O.IIJ 
40,000 u.ox 

1.ll,2?.55,()01) 1.56-1.51 

,ASIU 

3L M•nh 10?5 
Xo. ofs.h.itre.s A muun1 

7,7M7,090 (54.17 

MO,J80 1,20 

69..)9.'12,0ICI !,JU.<! 
77,16,19,-186 1.5-U-1' 

l,4lD 

1.41D 

•U.N Q_Qj 

4.124 IUU 

?7. 11.85,010 1,s.1.1.31 

1\ Jal 

J I Much ?024 
No. ur.shliru .\ mount 

9,:U,(I0,000 tH-lAO 
10,000 Ml 
10,001) 0.02 

o,u,w.ooo IS,U4 

As at 
JI M u ch 1014 

I\"o. 0J1h::uv Amount 

7,64.26,09! IS2.R5 

6,(,(),1)9:! l.12 

1.n.s1,a911 154.17 

1.,4 10 

IAID 

-l..Ll~ 0.01 

4,Ll4 0.01 

1,10,92.m ISJ.18 

1'hc l luldlng l'amJllny 1::a.!I cqultyi.hm-csh.J'tlnt; :!I p.u v:iluo ofltJ:. lp..-r ~b11rl'. E:icli dtamiddr:r U. clii;1hh!10 one ~UIC ~W,chdd.. 'l"hc dMdcnd propo~cd, ff11ny, It.)' th'=-BUr.inJ o( Oira:h1111 tssubJ~I toar,1lfoY1d 11f~ft.-rcholdcu m th~ 
,cnntini; AnmW Gcni,r~I M~ny., ~-..-.:~c--p1111.;11,SC ofirH4'f"irn di\-ldcnd. l hc yotJng ri.i,;hL~ of . .u1 cquuy \ h:uvtt,h,h;-r oo, :t putl ( not un show oflurilil :u-c In pmponlc,n Ill il." ~h:tn:: nfthc- p.m!-up equ11y <!1tpt1.1I ur1he, l to!diig Cumr111ny, Vouog 
nglllil c.inlloL be: 1!11.~rd: .. •,cd In te'iptCI ur ~hilrc!l on wh1t h :my oil or 01hu .sumli p1CiCfl.1.l,1- pJy:1bh:- h:wi nol btcn p:ud. ln llic e\lC"nt of liqlUd:itiun, Lht equity JJ1~t'('hu.lh:13 :;uc cmitkd 10.rt-i:dhi: n:1n)inlng taf.!it'!S oftht Holdlni;: Comp11n)', 

::ificr tJl;siubu1ion or11u p-.ri:f,m:n\Ull 11:mounti. ~ disrnbutian \,ill be In pru11,.m1un tu 1hc.nuhb:r u.r e\l.Wty sbureti hcldby tbc.Jl1:i.rd1olLlers 

••> Rfi:hts, prcfrrtr11ce1 nnd rr.1lr fclions .at Ulc l_l~d Ht ciquhy $h1&n:1 ~ riu A 

1111:1 l ·l tlTuln~ Comp.11:iy b;u·i.m1.cd cqml~• .durc-;: Sc-rii!.~ r\ 1111\llt!: I) p~r \'II lui: o( Rs. J ptr thJr~ E.'l~h Jh.:lti!h.:ildcn ls d/i?blc to 004: vole pcr 1h.nrl!' held. The- dh•idcnd pro_p01t:d, l( .Inf, by~ lfoa.nl of Otr('ctm·, I~ ~IDJl-'CI 1-0 ::iprro".1} i11" 
.shan:hcild!::f~ ln Allllu!tl (il!:l~"!ll ~kc1u1,i;;. ~~(1.jll jn CM1t nl' l111crim d1V1dcod. The- \"i>hn~ rlghlst Ill an Cqllily StdC!I A slurcholdcr ,m .J pi,11 (Ml ,10 ijh,,...,, l)f h,U'nlt) :m: m proportion In IU $h.t~ of p.i id t 4ui1y Cllpital 1>t the-. J·foldiog 
Cnmr,.:iny. V1.1t(ni: rii&lutt ~n 1,m be 1:l'tttillcd in a:,pcct o l' lbe··sh.:m:~ ctn which .1nyc.1II~ ar ,"Wll\:U llum.s pri:M:nlJy p;J}"Jblc li;:t\'cn n,11 bttn PJld In 1lw cvc:111 Dfhqu.ldltiun. 1.-quhy ,;h.ir1!hnid~-~li.: 1.'t1tl1tcd ltl rctcl\.'C n:sulnlnQ 11»ctq tlr'"lhe 

lloldln~ Cornpmy 111lcr dfa1nbu1iaa oi_pu-iacoli1II wnmanl in trir: ifllljXU'lion nf ~11llily lh!lTl".J krlci ;\ held by Llu: 1h.1rct1oldtri 

C') Rti:hl,lC, prcftrcMH :and ru 1rk lfons ;11tnchcd to ('q11lty 1ti/llrL':S S\"rlcs 8 

The I ll)JJ lng t.'t'mp:1ny lw equity ill:m::i; Sr.no 8 lw~in;. ..1 p:1r v:iluc: o f kl, ~ p<:r ~h.111:. ~di 1b.m:bolJ r:13 Is c11$ible ,o l)MC! \'Qtc J)t.'T a!urc held. Thi!! J lvulcnJ pm~d. If i:t.'I, by lb.: !ki;ml o( Drrtt1Dn i~ ~•~Jll!Ct 10 nppn,•·.1.t of 
. tun:holUi:cr in Annu..11 Cknn:il r-.lrdm~. e.t ~cp1 in~ nr inu::im dM1.kmt. The. \Tllmg_ nghts o l' un equity Scti.s B shi.rd,oldt-r ;i pc1tl •nol on show ot"h!Lnds) 11r,c i r, ptnp1H1i~ tn lb ~h~rc 11fp~ld cquit} ~11pil:l.l n r tht I fu1 J ing Comp.my. 
Votfn!; nch.ts c.:in nlt be u crdscd fn f~(kl1 or 11~ .ffl:ttei: uri, l\.hu;h any c:.-11s or olhc~ !Imm p1c!iiC11tlrp;iyJble IL!IV"ll!h ,-111 ~ n pant In Lhc -c,·cnt a(hqukbdun, -:quit} ~h~n:huh!cl$ an:: m 1itk cl 10 :n::cc\\·e r~1n:iitun1 0~1>-o1f 1h1: Holdmg 
Comp11n~· ilAC"r di.1tn'bw:l0n o( J)rdcrcru111I .iunountt 1n lht!. prvportiim 111' ~nity ,twr~ Sdlcs B bC"W by 1f1t! ~ :u,:hulJca, 

E q~lr,.• thllt~taf ttl. lc.J1th (JI .\larc h l Dl-1. R:,, ! ll!"dl) 

l?l:mnum Owl C ?OIS RSC l..unm:d. ~Ungj11 its cap:1cftyJ1SmtStCCOf r la11num Jun1inc ,\ 20I ICTr.im 

Po:.>u.~h 011n~'lll 

KKK · Rinbc.;-c Vr~'\'\ lloidlng, l1C~ I.Ill 

S:1c-,)11I "iuw C.1pi1~J ~faun:tios Led 

Equl~ · !fhllrH St!rhs ,\ ur Kf, l ('IS('h (J I MArch lD.?-1; lu. ! , ach) 

Pl Ofipollunhic, fund- 0 

TR Dpl~l II LP 

Eqllll!' s)1llri!:I.St:rtl, ti M lb.? c:11<:b r,11 /',hm:h 2024: ll'II. ! tat..11 ► 
Pr 1,pp1,1m mi11es funt• n 
TR Capital It LP 

U rub?.('r Ah~m.~thrc Vc-11c1.m: Ll .. P (furm1..,-ly bnw,"11 iu llnll.uct v~,.ut.tt~J 

S tt'-lU \•ii:w C:ipit:tl ~bu:ftlus Lid 

A.J~t 

J 1 M"nh 2ir.?5 

1-',05,37.!JlO 

6.85.23.}lfl 
(;,8(;,G-1.)'/(I 

J,11-1,75,<IOO 
o,mc,16,:!l r,1 

70S 
1ns 

8lll 

810 

I.~ 

951 

1s.n ~• 
t1,8o"lii 
u ·m•:-;, 

19.M ~­

I Q,{,,ta.f/ 

)O,J/\1; 

ll.OMC 

s\ t QI 

J I i\larc:hlOU 

1.40.5.!1,79] 

7!.6S,J6-1 
7~77,(i'T:,1 

16.95.571 
60,91,766 

1M 
111S 

1s,z.sa• 

Y.41% 
'J.+r .r. 

~.4JIJ4J-,, 
7S9". 

sn.nO'!~ 
SO.OM!. 

10,&1~;, 

1'1,6-i1~ 
j0.361-. 

23.0l,t:• 

A 1 per r('C;anh oflhC'<ecan:pnn,y, including tl.J; 11::HtJ;L-U of,h,ucl,C1lJet> 111crribrni 1md other d« l!IC~Uomti:-cci\·~tl frum , h11tc:l1Glde1"!i rc-g1mfll1i; bcncfict~1 ln1cr~1, the ~bo,'e.S:l\itt~ldin£ J<pm.cnts bo1t:, ~ Jal!~ btm~fk:itl uwm:rabipil o( 
,;hara. 



l.tn.dt11.rt Salnt.ionJ Prl,•111te Llmftrd 

Cr.'ll: Ull 10DDLlOOHPTC17~5S 
Xotcs tu lhc (01tt:olid111h.td fitumci11I s.11111:rm:1us for the f~t ended JI Much ?02S 
(,\II :nnounu in Rs. in mllllon unku; othcrn·i:K .sla!C'dl 

h) Pt:111.ll.s or.W:irc• brld by pt lllUlllt!tl 

~::ime cf pron10lcn 

Eqult)' ,h:ues or lb. l « ch (31 Mnrclt 202.4: R1. l uch) 

rcyusn U.in.'1.11 
Ncba B;ms:il 
Amit Chaudhllf)• 

Sumc,:1 K.lp,hl 

f.."(lnLy ~Jurl!i !dluui..J as fully f!Jlll hnnw: .shari.-s b) C!p11J1i1JOUl1 tJf 
!«:unties pt,:m\um f~l!f\'1: 

No, of1h:1.n, 

6,S,.2),J 10 

6,86,6-1.390 
&l,,N,,,17Q 

n.s~.ooo 

,\1!U 

JI .\ b .rth !Q.!S 

69.39.9:?,()lf, 

,\s:al 

31 Ma,ch ?015 
1/. holdlnc 

S.'3S0i, 

!l,91W, 

l ,Oh~O 

1,om, 

i\1::at 
3 1 Morch 20?.4 

AHi 
) I ..\!:arch 202-1 

v. rha111:t dur1nF, t.b.c Nu, af t hurtJ •1. holtHni;. ~~ c:h:anS!,t: durln& 
year lht ye.or 

.,),6S~'I. 72.65.J64 q..4z~~ -4.7i.ii• 

-S,6$•~ 72.77,673 9,.µ1,. -4 07~~ 

-6,J,i~~ 11,71,0SI t, IJ'• -:?..Ml"o 

-0.58'li ~,J0,029 1.w. ·2.65~'• 

Asal A:'1 :llt As:U 

JI ~llmhW!J JI M.11.rch 20!1 3 1 ;\brrh ?Oll 

Tm: Cumpan)' IPJ od1hcr L~sui:LI 1.-quhy shatl!S pun,u.!1.nt to i:on111u:t wlthuut p.1>1m:u1 bi.:.lng ti.xch·i:J ln ciuh nor h.l!I lh1.·rc b1:cn tin)' bu)'•b11i:k ofsh:art'.$ for lhc pc:naJ of Ii....: )'i:.lr.s ifl'ltr1cdi,ui;ly prci::cdfog the b.alanc( .!oh(~"I t.b1i: 01hi:r than 

bonu! i!ltuc 11l1.·1HioncJ :ibo\'I!. 

160 Instruments cntin"ty equity ln n11tun 

O.Ol)I"~ (JI March 20::M. 0.001"•) Cumul~c,,·~ C(lrt11,ul811ril)' Ccm\crublc rrcfC'm1cc ShaNs-Si:rlcs Dor Rs. :?: t::ich 

l),Olll~& (JI Maroh :?02J. O,()Olw,1 Cumul;itn·c t'ompul, ,mlyCun\'ertiltlc: Prl!fc:rct1cc Simes-Serie!! 1; of Rs. !<"~11 

0.0111":. (JI Man:h 20!4, fl,OOl't.) Computinril:, Cum crt,bl..: Noo-(umul:u!~-c Prc(1.'11.-n.::i: Sfr,m:s Cllls,1 or lh . ! 1::teh 

11001, . (l ! Mtirch 1<t!:4, O.OOl'n) o.nnt~. C11mpuli,urib·Con~c11ihk C11mul.1u,·i: Pn:fcn:nco Sh:iu.~•SL'til!:) II or R,. ~ 

iuc.h 

0 O(tl"a () 1 ~l:1rdl 2024: OJlOl~el Compul~rny Con, ·crtiblc Cumula11,·c i'rcf1.:u:111:c, Sh;)(CS-S~rro I of Rs . .? each 

n Or,1•. (l I March :!OH: 0.001~41) Con1pul~rfly ConHmblc Cumulall\·c l'n:1c:r'i::ncc Sh.i~-
SmN ll orJb. :!c:tcll 
(l.OOt•, (l I M:ircl, :?:O:?:J; 0 OOl~a) Co.urull;t1nly C'tm\'\·mblc Non Cwnulam•1: 1-'n:frf(rtCte Slmres Cla..'is :! o{R.c;, IO 

ca.:h 

O.QOt• 1 (31 M.11cl, .?0:!4: :--;11) CompuliodlyC>h,..:nihlt! .:umul11U\C Pn:fcnmi:c Sh:arcs-S'--ric.s C l:i!IJ l of R5...? each 

b) lnut:d. i-ubscribtd an,I rully p:ald-up prercrtacc shard 

IJJIOI~~ Cu11111b1h·~ Ormpuburi1)' Con\'rrlible Prercmu:c Sharo--5.:.-it, A or K,.. l r.11c1 

;U tJ14,• bci,:1n11ln~ ofthi:: ~'.\.':r.r 

Al t.he t<nd ur the }'c•r 

0.1101¾ Cllln.1iln1.h1: Cuampul4UrUy C1111,e.r1Ill11! Prrk rc:nn:Sh11rn•Strkt IJ orlb. l t-,11!.h 

At 01c bog:mnin~ tll'lho ;~ar 
A t 1he t1nd ertlu, ,-..■r 

0,QOI •,{ Cu:m11l11.thi! C0impulw,.lly Ca1Wt'rfiblL! Pnrtnmcc ~ll~ro-Scirk"\ D r,f R,.? e.::ic• 

At th~ h-:l[.m11111e. un tu: ~'!Car 

Al lb<: eod of 1tn• yur 

Q...ffOJ~~ Cu.1t1t1lat.he C r.>11:1pul.J-Orll}' Co11,·c.-rdbk rnrnenccSlir.iirn~S~ri.-s E nrlb. l l.":lclJ 

,,1 ihc. 1,e,1nn1n11, ordtc y-car 
Al I.bl' t nd or the. !·c■r 

o .. ooi•✓• C11mu!11the Cmmpuhoril)' Conn:rtlllle Prderllll«.Shara•S<ir iu r ~r Rs.! ~cb 

,., , U,c IK!;tnnmg 0(1hc )'!Ir.Ir 

Al ibt: utJ of lh~ ,·e:::ir 

0,001•1. Cumullllhr CDnipubarUy CotWl'r1fl1h: frtfertnct Sbam-S-crio: C of RJ. l r:1clt 

.,\11hc- btj;tnning ortlh.\ ~'\!ar· 
At Hu: cniJ of lb~ yi::ar 

~~ M1t 
JI Much !O~S JI M11rcil lDU 

9S:.W.OOO 19.04 

j}(,_70,DOO 19,.J-i 

J0,000 0 06 

1.1.1.so,ooo 1-iJo 

JS.111,UOO 7,6,1 

t..!0 .. 00.UOU 2.➔.0U 

::!,J0,00,00U 46.0U 

G,oo.ao,000 

1.uo.00.000 

9J,SO,OOO 

ti5,00,0UU 

&,on.mm 

80,UO,OO,Ol)U 

7.00.000 

9'!.7J .• m.ooo 

7J.78.So.S 
73,78,505 

4/i.65.660 

Qi 65.6611 

'>3.75.4M:M 

9],75.-188 

JK, 11 ,06K 

.ut,lt,il61 

til.,4.l,621 

?.19,76 .• hSS 

l .?U.()U 

10.0U 

IH.70 

1) .00 

6.00 

1,600.00 

1.,1•...s 

Amnrrnt 

l'.76 
14,'16 

lq ll 

IU.l 

ts.7S 
18.7S 

1.6! 
1:61 

p·u1 

l:z.29 

➔5.95 

.&5.'lS 

IU,Q.:J 

JIU-I 

~1.1. or i lrnr1.-s .,muu111 

9S.2tJ,(ltlO t •),04 

96,?D,CIOO l9.J4 

30,0()0 0.06 

l.:!l ,SD,000 ,?.;Jo 

.iS.10.000 1,b-1 

1.20.00,00I) :?.;.co 

?.J0,00,DOU .&ll.00 

6.00.00.000 l l 0.00 

1,00,00.UUU 20.00 

9.i,5'1,ftOU IR.70 

t,5.00,00U IJ.00 

6,00,00(1 6.110 

S0,00,00,00(1 l .tiOO,ClO 

95,156,.&U,OOO 1.Ylll.118 

~o. or i htlrcs ,\mmuu 

TI.7~.l(IJ 1-1,76 

T.l,7tSOS 14.16 

96,65,660 19.J] 

16.65,fi(cll l.'IJJ 

IJJ,]5,4-8,IJ 1K.7S 

93,15,U8 n .7!-

lLI I.OilS 7 62 
Jlj, 11,MJ , .61 

61~~l.ti"-, l:!.19 
61,.U,ftll 12.2.9 

:!.:?9.76,,16S 4,5_g5 

J...:ZSl,76,-165 4 5.!JS 

..54,67,'YI I IOQ.I 

Sl,6l.9U I0.9'-1 



(..tnslc:ar1 Solu116nJ f' rh'ille LlmllC!d 

Cf'N: VJJ1ll00L..?UOS'P1'C178JSS 

., 'ota to the con10.lichtc-d fillllncial 1t.olNn1U1.t1 for tl1e ~·c:ar ended J l Mareh !O!S 

(1\II 1Ulll}\,ll,lj In Ri. In mllll.on unless Olhtrwbii tlatrd) 

0.001, ~ Compul111rUy Con,•trflble (urnul111lve rrttr,r1:acc- Sh,11r-c,~Scrin I or Ri.. ! ncb 

A1 the hc,;.innlfli; ot"thc )Ur 

At 1111,• ~ad uritic )'tar 

O.(H)l~'i, Cornpul.sorny Co1w crtlble cumul.ntlvc Prcrerencr Sh11_r ts-Scrict II of R.<i. 2 euch 

At lhc bcgmnlng of the yc:u.r 

Len: Con,.:-rslon lma equity 

Al lhC c-11d uHhe yu.r 

0.001'"/o Compulsor-ily Cann:r1ihlc ~on--cumul:nin Pn Jerrnce Sbu~.CJ:aut af R,, ?. 

At lhc bcgiMmg oi"thc yc.u 
At tlll! end ar tit~ yur 

O.UDI"}~ Comp1.1borily Co11n~nibl1.•Comuln.dni Prdcrt-nc~• Shmr"' ~ Serie, U or RJ.? 1.111.ch 

Al 1hc bc_gmning of the year 

Adct.Sha.rcs Wu~-J 

At the end ol lhc yu.r 

II.OD 1 •/• Compuhorlly Co11,~rtibh: Cu1nuliuh·c r rde~n(rt.Sh:are>-Cl.1u.l ur R,. ! c:ach 

Al the bc~nnlng ofd1e .)'<:It 

Add: Shares Wuc,d 
A1 1hc:- end or1hr y~11t 

0.001•,9 Compulsorily t'o11,"e-rCibll' ~un-cumu.lJ1,tin Pn!rcnnct Silo.res-ClJus ! of R1. 10 
euch 

At the bc.i;iMtnt:: a(thc y.:ar 

Add: Full p:aid up t.lun og. 1hc )'l:111' 

Al lhC' t:nd 11f1hc yc:u.r-

Tolal 

d) R~hu:, 11rtftrt•nc:c11111ij n•ltic:lhm, -.i1l11ch1:d IO prdc.r-c.nce , h~r\'S 

66.S0,9JJ 
66.50,933 

•'7.37,Jl\1 

47.J?At, 

89,68.8--19 
89,68,19.IY 

7•.•7.11,';,00.1 

7"4,S7.116.DOJ 

b,95,175 

6,95,11,75 

5,65,7U 

5,65, 783 

&.1 .. 1?.!.1,5kl 

l l.30 06,;i0,933 IJ.Jn 
L1_l0 66.50.9.lJ IJ,311 

9.ol7 51.11<1,0,9 IO.J6 
(J,J:?,650) (0.80) , ... , -17,)7.-$19 9.-17 

17"-! !9.68.849 17..94 
17.94 5,.611,fN' J7.9.i 

I.A~l.57 
"14,67.Mti,OOJ l,49J.57 

l,-4U.57 74,67,86,IIOJ 1,-193.57 

l.J9 

l 66 .S.65,78) 

5.66 S,45;783 5.66 

1.610.97 U lS,17,707 l,669.Sk 

The HlillJ mg Compal\)' li.a.s •~i:u.:J Compul'iVfll)' ..-m,111,:mblc picf~-n:11~'1: ~h;m.:.s lC'l'PSJ haHni; a par , ·.1!Ul' o(R.s . .:!: pi:r-1harc tmfo:r 1.hun CcPS Cl,i.ss 1 uf Ri IO 1.:~ch)1 Prdi:n:nci: .iibar.:s l~rTJ :>. prcfr:~otfal ri;tu ll!, IO dh'itJL'1MI OH:r equity 
1l1-.1rcl10fJi:rs. DwlU1:mJ un cumul.ilh'c pu:(m.-nc:r: ih;ma 1:1 mn dcclan:J for :a lirwncbl yor, the L"lltttlcn,i::1\t th~c:w j~ c:ittu:J imw:ard to ,h~ nun )'Cllr. The, pret<:fcm:c :dl.ncs llfe l!fltitki.l u. ooc ,·n1c per .ihilri.:: 01 rm:crmgi o( the HulJ1111; 
Company on UII)' n=sulu.tlom of thi: JlolJms. Comp.my dirl!C"llJ• unCctlni; 1bdr ri~hlll. lo the ~a,t orfltfl,l1IU1l,.m. prdcrcm.:c ~b.:uchultku ba-.c !l. pn:Jhcnual ngh.t o,•~r cyuhy .Jurd11il~i.!r;, lf' h,= n:ff,,liJ 10 lhi: C",: lr:cil o(l!'.lJtilal p.riJ-up J JM.I 

di,1d1md in imeJn rm ,uch 1h11r6. And 111 Iht preferred nghti lJ ~11~ufa1cd tn ur,de~ .-~.nich!!t S of Al1kleJ ~f ;\HIM:i!l!lt,n lAOAI, 

11,t p1cre,~11~ii: sbQc'C'.\ ~J)· a di\i dcnd ofO,C)nl~, pL..- ,mnmn. Thi: rnlc ot' cb\·i dcad is rnl1LCL-d 10 0 ,001,1, ricr 11nnum from S11~ P,.'f annum c.:irHtt w,c,f, 29 l\fan:h l OllJ. ThC' div.idcnd rii;ht'i 11m cum11La1h~ TIil! p1..-frtcncc.1h:lrc; rank allL'.'.;rd 
t.iflht:' f (tmty ~h;sr~ in 1h-: c••mL nf .u. llq1mb1fon. 

~, Tern) 0r ~uriu.n.lun af pr1:fon!u,ee ,h.11.n:~ 

fl,OU1% tll ,-.1,a,ch 10l-': OJHm ti) Compulsunl)' Con,msbJi.: Cl1Dlub1l\·i.: PrC'f..-rent'I!: Sh.msofdtc Comp:w)', h.3\rllli; .:i nornln-11 ,11ltk o(Ri. 2 i:llt'h (u1h..-nh.:m CCPS Cl;m l ofR.$ rnt::tl!hl v.fwhkh ~lull be i:n111lnJ rn b,;: 1.-um't.•rwd lnto 
f='.qm~ Sb.irC'l .ii tl,i: c:trliCl-1 ,;i t'tl1'" fol to wins. L'H'n1Y In lhc mu.nacr :'ilipuJ:,1~-J u11Jcr At1idi.-S 11 1111J r\OA. 

ScricsA 
Orie busmcss Jay 1mmcd1u1dy J'!rcC'i.'tlin~ rhi: filing ofrht: Red Hi.:ff1ng Proiri:cru~ 111 ~U11ll~'Cfll111 1,1th II t1unl1fkd IPO: or Thi: cxcrcu,c of .m opu111t bytlic. Prclh-L"ltl'e $h:1tei ,S.;n~ A Sharch111JIC'r, m n:ipccl ofc1th~·r Iii.: 11111 CN' a p.m ofahc 
Prcfr~cl.'i Sh.an.-s: or Not lat~r lhlln l 5 ~T:tn lrom ,. Oc-1Dbcr :!O l J 111 U1.c rna1u1ier s llpul.n1ciJ 1.1111.kr Artlcli:$ 11 u( r\OA: 

Sctks B 
Ot11C' busiocs~ J:i)' Jmtm'\hurdy prll:('CUin~ lhc illlu& of tbc R.:J l·h:rrin~ Prospt'ctu:s in connC'CtJOn with .n qoollfu:d IPO, ur Thc i.!n-rdsc of an upllon by the: Pn:fi.nm:~ Shun:s Scrrc, B Sh.Jtl!hokkr~ In r1:sp~'t of citl)l:r lhlC' fbll or .a p;irt 01' ,J11,: 
Pr:cfCrcni;-...-Sh~rtt; ar Nvt li11r:r lk:in 15 ye.in f'mm 1hc 6 f-cbnrary 2013: 

Scri..:s c: 
Om: busmen J.1y in11m·J1111r:ty prl:'l'edmi; tbL· mmi:; 11fthi: Red Hcn:mi: r'nnpt!t:lLII m conn.:-cuon with !1 qu.ali fo.~1l 1ro: 11r Th..: c;<crr:uc of'9n t1ph11n by tbi: Prtfi:-.rcn1,.-c- Shares S<!rict,; C? Sh!11i:MIJc111 m m r l.'\:I nf t:"ithcr the full nr 11 p:a.n nflhe 
Pn:l"cn:ncc Sh:il"C!l; or Nol Luer th:an l:S yr;JO Imm the 22nd ,-.t:uch. :!016; 

Scrit.."' D 
On~ hu~ini::$~ dl~ lm:nc1.htucly prtc-cdlni; lhc lllitt& 11f1he It,('(,\ I Imm~ Prmlp<L·t~ In cnnal.'ttlcn '"-ltJI ?l qiulllkd I.PO, 41r The ~~er,.-l~ ofan op110n by tb.: l1rt'lhc:ni;-c Shucs Series D Slun:holdl-r, In rtiil'IC\.'1 ilf ,"illll,'T 1he 1\1.11 m -3 p~n o(tbc­
f'n:ICn."DCC: Stw11:1: ru Nol liller tli.nn l-S )'\"11.t'S limn tl11: 2od ti.fay. !016. 

S,:111:J· E. 

(111'" bw.m-=n d;r.y lmmcd1~tdy r1cc.:din_g the Jif1ns. or the Rt:'d 1-krr.iny Pnu_p~li~ In c:onnc,c111111 \\'Ith ll qwllficd fl•O: • rTh.:- c.-;ncl~ o(un ari:un by 1M Prdcn:n,cc Sbul!I S!i.!rles E.ShJrttwld.:l-t In r~r cc1 ofc11hcr tbC' run o r II p:in arthc 
Pr'cibt11i;:cS1t.Jrtj; a, N111 l1t1cr dun 15 )"tDll Crom thu and Scpli:mbcr, 1016. 

5':dc, f 
~ bu~Tni::t.\ dny im1W:,li:;i1t:lr prr.t\.."fling 1h~ 11lin1;-ofll1e Red 1-kmnB Prn:qtl'\'!ILL'I In 1,."(IClll(!l'tlon "ilh :1 4u.di(il."d IN>, ot The ~, .. c:rch~ ol~nn c,plion by lhc I~rcfcrcm:e Sh.uc,c S~ric:..,;; F Sh1uc:l1,1l~rJ In rc~'Ct nl c.[111(:r 1h.:full nr .1 p:in qflhc 
11:te!(~cnt'i.' Sb.1rc,-c; m Nn1 l.nlL"r lhJn 15 ~'1.1.aO ltom 1hc: IC11h S,:plcmb~..-. :!O I 9. 

S..:rlc,,:G 

On~ b\liffl,ss d.ty immidi~ltly pm'.tdil!:C lht Aling. ri r th~ R~d l·lming PrllJ;pi!i!llfJ 1n «JtlnN:til.\ff \HUI ~ iflidlint.'d IPC>; ir 1'he acrtbc of ,1n option by Ilic P,,c.rcccnc:.c. S.h.ircs Sc~~ 0 Slt!itc.ho1Ja1 Tn rospi..•d of <'iiJtcr tt,<' full or .J pan ol' lhc­
Pn:.re1mcc Sh~: ur Nol t.1Lcr thnn 1-S ~-cm fmm lite:- 211th f.k1..'CC11h1.'1. ~fl IIJ 



Lcn~11r1 St1lutkm1 Privutc: Llmlfr!l 

C~ : UJJl0fHll.lOC21PTC17SJSS 
~ofH to the conwlhbted OnlU1d11t 1tnlc:mc:nu fffr' tlie yemr ondtd JI March ?O:?..lii 

(All amounl.l in Rs. in mlll/OQ IIRIC$S olherwht J1lat~d) 
::k,i,l:5H • 
One bwincss-dny lnum-Jwtdy pn:c,:dln~ 1,bi,: films. o(d1c ftC"J Hc:rrlng i._,otpL"CtUJ m co110\-"tt,on " 'ith t 1Lu.11itiell lPO: or The c.tcrcisi: of ;11\ op1iun by the Ptl!~n:n i:i,: ~tm~ SL•nei H Shlln.•holckn in rc~p,:1;1 ol'.:iih1:r the full or :a p:tn o( thc 

rrcftl'C'ru:c Sb.:irc,:: or Nut 1 .. tcr Uinn lS ~,:iu11 !tum the 26th July, 2021. 

Serles I 
One bu~incs~ J,1y lmmcdi:atcly pr-ec:cdin~ du: !iling<>(lhc Rc.d Hcmng PrMpL'CIIJ!I ID coona:.tion with II qu:llilicd lPO; or Thc c.xcrciscor:m option by lJ)e Prcfcrc.rw:c Sh~ Ser-kilo I Sh,m~hnlJo, [n rcspr:ct of rithc.r thc Ml or :i p!lrt ll t' thc 
f>rcfcti.'fM:e Sh:arcsi or Nm lalcr than 15 t e.:lfll from lhc d;uc o(i1o,~u:mcc nf.sh:ircs. The heM>w Wblc proviJl!!I the dct:uli w.r.l l~StWnc~ ~filhari!!i: 

:,lmnhu of ,1lmrd D111r af ADotmcnl 

Jb.·H.Mtl Apn1 I J. :W:U 

J ,64,l6l Apn l JO. :?O:!.'.!. 

J.(,4,16l Mo)' 16, 20'.!.1 

99,712 June 0 1, !O:?.:! 

1n.S3.SJJ2 June OS, :!02'.!. 

3::?,3110 Juoc: 17, 20:!'.!. 

S,65,956 July 07. 2022 

4.79.017 A U1!Ul l 06. l0l'2 

Scnei ll 
One bu!,1ncss day hmn~.h1,11trly ,,~c-edini; the filing of the Rt.'tl lk m os Prospcrnt.,- m ounncr:tion m lh a. quaUticJ IJlO: orll1c e,11:cmsc: oCnn oplton by thi: P,cr .. -tcnec ShDrcs Series II Sh1m:h11ldtr, 11:1 ci:~,,~1 of e1thi=r the: full ur a p.111 oFd,e 
Prcl(rcncc Sh.ucs; or Nol l;ui:r 1hnn IS >-c:;in from Utt: d:111: o(lssu11ncc o!'sturc:1o. The below 1.1blc pro,·idc$ the dculls ,\·.r.l 1ssu;anc1: ....r fh!llC$: 

No\'rmhc:-r l 7, 1022 

4,42,6l0 No\'rmbc:-r l 7, 1022 

4,--12 .. 650 No\'rmbtr IS, W22 

4,42.6!0 

l:',Ul,810 

Si:ri~I~ 
One bU1.i.n1.-s.s " :iy immed1::ndy pr1."CC"di11g the tlhni; o(thc Red H1.'lTmi; Pn)ff)L--Cnu m conn1.-ctmn " 1Jh :a ~u,ldkll IPO: or T1tl! 0 1.--reui: ol'an l'lptfon by the PR:(crc:n1.·c Sh.1m S1,-n1.-s ll Sh:Jn:ttolJ~"r.1 in n,..-,;p1,'\."1 of ..:hhct thi: full or :i p:m o(thc:-
Pn:fcn:ncc:- Sha~ or Nor l:ui;:r 1han LS ye.Ir,! frotn rhi;: d:111: o(Bsuillnci: of 1han:s, Tlii: coO\."Cn-1on r.m u l!i l 121iS6: l flO f lOO L"Cluity -Ymi.: for 11 :?95b Si.:rl~ 12 CCPS 1ubjt't'l to the: [1--nns and i.:ondi1ioru or' dac di.:fin111w agr-cc:-mcnt,'1 ~ i.:1.'1111:d 

b)' the Cum1,:m~ incluJini; lh1: SHAI. 

Clun I 
The CCPS 11h:all"bi.: cam-1.·mbh.· m10 fu&i.my Sh::arcs (is d.clini:d m the ,\nklc:i.) 1n die muo of ',U 1: l (for C\'CI")' Q. 1>1 CCPS bdd+ I EqUit)• Shurr;:J to be 1$!,,UL'-d :itl..:r cumhdcnn@ lh1.• unp:icc ofbonuJ u.sui:, 

Clau ! 
'ntl!'. CCPS lllu.ll be coo,·1.11ibl.:i inM Eqwty Sh;m~ f;i.i di:lin.1.'U tn ih..: Ankles) 1.n the rt1IW nf; l:.\0 (fo., cn~·ry I CCPS hc:-ld. 311 fqui1y Shar'c) to be in:uL-d .11'11.'1' c:11n:;l~rin11t tl1..: imp:i.cto(bonu.~ b~1-11:, 

Clllu l 
Thc CCr S.\h1111 be con,·c::nib!u ln1-, Eqwty Sh2rcs(asdc:-linN tn the Anldo.) Ill d.c ~110 nf; 
(il tf'IC);.10 (filf e,•e.ry 100 ('('"PS hdd, ~O Equity S.lt:u-o 10 be !:Jtll\-dl ln the c,-cnt cuhcr damt111ic\1t bt1i:mllth_1n3I up;in51on UtJE-CI ha! hccn .'lchitt\.'cd on or bl:fm-c S1.-p1i:-inbcr lO, ~015 
(f1I l:S (for 1,.,.·cry I CCPS held. S ~qnil'f Sh.1rc- 1u be iuucdl i11 1hc c-vtnl b1l1h dtttnenic Jnd intcm11tlm1,1I ~l((ID,n~iiJl1 mrg:ct h.u been ,1cb1c:-,-cd OJI I)( before September J-0. 2tllS 
{iii) 100; lO (ror C\'CfY 10 CCPS hdd. I ~quil)" Shlll'l:l lO be LSsucdl ln 1hc C\.:onl nl!'1dwr dom~ lic nor in1cr11a1lun:il CA1rnnsli\n t.:it_gct b:a bc:i.-n ;1,ch1C"\--Ci.l vn or llcfo,c Sl:p Lc:mbcr JO. !1)~5 

31 th1: opdon nr 1M huhk r of C:CPS .11 J.ny umc- pmrr u, 1il }-i:!lnl! :1,unmJ.11c.11ly, S ik}1'1 pnor 10 c.,(lir>· or .:!ti yc.Jrs; uutorru11c.illy S 1fay$ pnor 10 occunco, c- of an 1::d1 t::\Ctll, llquldU1J,m or ,nmHng 11(1 or tlli: I loldlnJ> L""omp::my. Ttu~ 
cnn\-c-:!i1nn 1~ ,, utijcc1 Ill CCl'S 'bctn!; fully J"l id :lnd halJ tu aocndlng .md p.1nu:.1;utin~ ,nth!! t.lil't1.&~imu of the Sh.m:lmh.JCJ11 nrthic lhllding Cmnp;1n)' until Scp1cmbcr j O, ~O:?.S. 

0 Shttrl!S In thic CC}'S or llnhHnu Complln) f1d iJ by t:ad1 th:auhaldc-r holdin: 1110n: lb.in S•/4 ih:arl!-5 

Prl!.(cnmcc :-.hut'! - Scri1:s ,\ vr lb .. 1 H tll fJl ;\larch 10!,I: R,. 2 t11iclt) 

l'I 0,,po rtunitie,. Pw,.d~ll 

Plntlnum 0\\I C 2018 RSC Linuticd, 1~dng 1n il'I c:1pJ.c:i1~.u trus1ec of l'l;i1inum fa:,minc A :::Otlf TN.lt 

Pn icrratt t b!lre, .Seritl 8 o( lb . 2 each Ill Manh ?02-t: Rs. ? itacbl 
Uni1:u;cr Altcm11li\'\! Vcnmn: LLP ((orn,,;:rly knuwn as Uailiil.cr VL·nrurul 

TR O.p11Ql ID l\.burmus H 
TR Cnplt:1I m· M,1urillU~ 
Pl;,11num Owl C :WIK RSC Ltctrntd, ~ ti.ng in ia l-:.ip:icit)'ll!I 1ru~, ce orPl:mnum J:umtnie ,\ WIS Tru~c 

t•n-rcrtllCC ill11rH - Scrieo• 0 or RJ. l r:t.c.b P l M" rc:h ?Ol--1: Rs.. 2 taeb) 
'°'l;:irn11."'n1c:lnvr;;;um;,11u f'l \:..LJ.4 

Alplw Wu\'t: V1!t1lll"c:i LP 
SV'r II lli;h1bulb (Cayn111n ► Limit,:,d 

Prcfc:N!nct 1-lu1ret- Srric, Eur R.$. ? ucll (Jl ;\lnrtb l<J!➔: fl~. l c:1icht 

Pl Opponunitlc..ii F"v.mMI 
Platlnurn U"I L 20111 RSC L1111Hcd. at1Jn.}; [n i1, cur .11cil:,o .1.."i lruilcc t f l1tu1lm.m1 J;bmln.c ,\ :?OIK, ·no1 

Prrfonricc .1h1m·J• &•r lt':S F 11f RJI. ? r:u .~ (31 Mnrcli 10.!..l: R1. l u d1J 

Kcd;1.!1ra c~pl1;tl fmd n LIJI 

K~dalUU N11rfolk 

f' rc.frr, ,w .. • d uir.u • St:rlll', G t,r R..,. 2 Heh() l Marth l f-12,1: R,,.? d t-h) 

SV.F U L1,, ,o, lb (C,)m >nl Umi<«I 

Allll 
31 Matcb 1025 

:-{u. ur -1lmr13 

-15,73.2~2 
17.0-1,0 15 

7,Jl,50S 

4-8.J 1JBD 

17~l'.l.l0.l 

14.67,1:?5 
l :t-,i3.5CJ! 

.J.-';J .J.,t.lJt.4\ 

?Ci.%,iU 

Hi,OJ,208 

tfl,05,534 

l 'l,Cl5,H4 

Jl.74,605 
IS.59.175 
1,,0Q,R•U 

1.,1.LJ.76,-¼S 

..... , 
31 Much lOU 

~~ ='-"1>, of1hUQ % 
holdini ho1dlnQ: 

61,.QX~ •• .J.5,7J,282 6 l.!JI\"• 

::J O'l",. 17,0-1,0 15 !3.0Y"'a 
Q l),&Q. 7,B.50~ 9.9~"'. 

50.00". -ISJ:!.IUU 50 OO'l'• 

11.s11-·. 17,1R,l0l 17.Sk'l/i 

1s.ur. 1-1.67,1!5 15. Hlu• 

1--1.2 1•. 11,n .sq.2 I.S_.21"• 

4.!1.:Y,A• .J.5.2:J}li!6 -Ml2M-• 

13.7(i•~ !6,96.7!13 :?8.7(;». 

17.1 luo 16.0,1.208 17, l 1•• 

5')Dn", ICJ,t15,534 so.oo~. 
SO <>ll0 • ,(f,05.5J--I .SR.OC)!-. 

s.uoa. J!,7~.6<:15 .SJJO'u 

25 lH4 • 1) .-l0,17S 1s,1~, ~ 

:!1 .Jl•■ l l,QQ,/\-0 1[.J!"~ 

u,o,oo-. l.li.71.4o5 1()0.UU~. 



lrn,kAr1 Snlul:ion1 PrlYl:lllt IJ mhtd 
ClN : 11.HIOODt2Ull~P'TCt78'JSS 

Sate, U) 1hc c-onsolid111,d fin.ucllll \ l:ltt mcn1, for 1be ~·r:1.t ~nllt.d .\I March 10:!.S 

(AU Amounlt il'I RI. lo mnllu" UTJ.lc~ oth,rwin n a tedl 

Prcfcrrnc:m m .un s • Sulrs II ol' Rt. ? ir:t<'h (:JI i\1:lrd1 20?4: R.s.? uth) 

Alpb Wll\'C Vtnturc, LP 

B~)'c:lpirnl 

Pr efrrcnt1? 1h11r~ • .Srrfos I of Rs,! tJch (Jl ~1:trch lO!-J: l tut.h) 
AJph.i. \\'11vc Vcrm.1rc, II U1 

A\'C!ndtn Fu111rc UQckrs f und n 
E"piq C:1ph:11 n 
M:lffl1chh: lnvetsmC"ots f"IC".. Lid 
R.a\.i Mud1 l::umly Tnm 
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U:d.!UU'.C Ill Ul~ ~~h'IJlln1:, f)f tbc ,\Ur 

Add: Rrmca .. utrnttrn lon orr~1 nnpl-.iymm1 bmcfit ;tl,,n 

Las Tr:nu,tt-rral 10 rdilim:·d l':tmmg~ 

8.1.ll.nce 111 th,• cod • f Ille )Cllr 

\'I t,·1..-ri,:t1 t llf'rc,u:,· 1rn.111l111lo11 rrwr,·v 
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Thi:r rqirt::k:nt:. cu\t nm1tr,,J '1y 1h1,.1. J luWltig {'un1r~ny 10 pu~ h:uc lt11)1\11 ''1.iult}" .shJrcs frum ~ •tbr}' n, :irki..'1 throUgh 11111 Holt.ling: Comp11ny'.-l~ Ul' tru,: lbr 1~ulni; th.: ..ii.iu·, ill tit..: \,.1g1Me cmpiu>'""- 1.1n C~U'Tt'l.1,: nf 1too.1I: i;,rtJ~ 
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8 Currct1tprm hlun, 

Ptrtic11t..r, 

f',n,·11111•D tUr cmphn ~'1; ho."tr.:til~ 
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Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
ClN: U331OODL20O8PTC178355 
Notes to t he consolidated financia l statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(AJJ amounts in Rs. minion u.nless otherwise stated) 

Revenue from operations 
Particulars 

Revenue from operations (refer note 42) 
Sale of goods 
Sale of services 
Other operating revenue 

-Lease income (refer note 368) 
-Olher-s• 

• includes customer support fees, sales of scrap and website licence fees. 

Notes: 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2025 3L March 2024 

63,599.39 51,662.99 
l,327.43 1,045.65 

l ,432.63 1,463.34 
165.72 105.05 

66,525.17 54,277.03 

Sale of goods includes sale of m:inu.factured and traded goods. These include prescription eyewear, sunglasses, contact lenses and 
accessoncs. 

Refer note 41 & 42 for delllils. 

Other income 

interest income on -financial assets measured al nmortised cost 
-on fixed deposits 

-on financial assets carried at amortised cost 

-on comnrnrica! paper 

- others 

Olher non operating income 

lnrerest on income tax refund 

Gain on redempti0I1/ fair valuation of mutual fund units 

Gain on sale /fair value invesrments carried at fair value through profit or loss (net) 
Foreign exchange gain {net) 

FVTPL Gain on defererred consideration* 

Grant income 

Management support service fee 

Duty drawback 
Gain on temrination oflease 

Rent concession 

Gain on fair value of call option 
M'iscellaneous income 

Year ended 
31 March 202S 

576.29 

56.93 

61.65 

2. 15 

27.70 

726.59 

82.98 

1,671.98 

56. IS 

l 3.8lJ 
0.15 

18.35 

4.41 

106.93 
161.41 

3,567.59 

Ye-ar ended 
31 March 2024 

820.39 

25.49 

4.98 

0.68 

641.43 
27. 11 

29.87 

34.75 

10.76 

0.47 
6.63 

0.74 

218.39 

1,821.69 
* 011 account of exti11guishrue11t of financial liability by 4.4% relating to purchase of additional stake in Owndays Inc (refer note 22) 



Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
CIN: U33100DL2008PTC178355 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(AU amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

26 Cost of materials and compoents consumed 

Parlicufars 

Raw material consumed 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Add: Purchases (net) 
Less- Inventory at the end of the year 
Cost of raw material consumed during the year 

Consumable consumed 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Add: Purchases ( net) 
Less- Inventory at the end of the year 
Cost of consumable consumed dur ing the year 

Tools consumed 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Add: Purchases (net) 
Less- inventory at the end of the year 
Cost of tools consumed during the yea r 

Work in progress 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Add: Adjustment due to business purchase (refer note 458) 
Adjusted Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Less- Inventory at the end of the year 
Less- Inventory disposed 

Fininshed goods 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Less- Inventory at the end of the year 

Translation difference 

Total consumption 

26A Purcllase of stock in trade 
Particulars 

Purchase of stock in trade 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

4,977.73 
19,071.83 
7,819.82 
16,229.74 

87.05 
1,453.88 

336.41 
1,204.52 

9.35 
68.69 
17.56 
60.48 

(0.98) 
0.98 

107.55 

17,603.27 

4,761.60 
14,308.34 
4,977.73 
14,092.21 

99.19 
910.23 

87.05 
922.37 

8.99 
47.02 

9.35 
46.66 

11.25 

11.25 
26.35 

(15.10) 

43.62 
79.56 

(35.94) 

(180.78) 

14,829.42 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2025 31 Nfarch 2024 

4,573.45 3,473.70 
4,S'73.45 3,473.70 



Leoskart Solutions Private Limited 
CIN: U33100DL2008PTC178355 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

26B Changes in inventory of traded and finished goods 
Particulars 

Opening Balance 

Traded goods (including goods in transit) 

Finished goods (including goods in transit) 

Closing Balance 

Traded goods (including goods in transit) 

Finished goods (including goods in transit) 

Translation difference 

27 Employee benefits expense 
Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 33C) 
Graniity (refer note 33A) 
Share based payments to employees (refer note 3JE) 
Staff welfare 

28 Depreciation and amortization expense 

Particulars 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3A) 
Depreciation of investment property (refer note 3C) 
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 4) 

Depreciaiton of Right-of-use assets (refer note 36) 

29 F inance costs 

Particulars 

Interest on 

- Long t1m11 borrowings 

- Cash c:redir and short tenn bon-owings 

- lease liabilities 

- Asset Retirement obligation 

- Others 

(This space hu.1· been i1t1eh!io11al(v left bla nk) 

Year ended 
31 Mar ch 2025 

1,663.46 

79.56 

2,426.31 

145.73 

3.66 

(832.68) 

Year ended 
3 1 March 2025 

12,628.04 
616.35 

65.55 
88.95 

388.65 

13,787.54 

Year ended 
3 1 March 2025 

2,04 1.34 
1,292.62 

259.9 1 
4,371.82 
7,965.69 

Year ended 
3 1 March 2025 

120.89 

14.49 

1,245.67 

60.49 

17.36 

l ,458.90 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

1,161.94 

1,663.46 

40.20 

(541.72) 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

9,936.03 
492.22 

37.92 
63.70 

335.04 

.1 0,864.91 

Yeur ended 
3.1 Murch 2024 

1,519.25 
I, 199.43 

600.40 
3,403.32 
6,722.40 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

321.47 

17.95 

887.04 

3.43 

1,229.89 



Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
ClN: U33100DL2008PTC178355 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 l March 2025 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless othenvise stated) 

30 Other ex enses 
Particulnrs 

Marketing and promotion expenses 
Commission and incentive expense 
Consumption of store and spares 
Tnformation technology support expenses 
Office maintenance and security expenses 
Professiollal fees 
Postage and courier expenses 

Contractua I labour 

Marketplace fee 

Rent trefer note 36) 
Travel and conveyance 
Communication 

Electricity and water 
Repair and mainle11a11ce - others 
Insurance 
Staff recruitment and training 

Paymei1t and Collection charges 
Rates and taxes 
Printing and stationary 
Bank Charges 
Provision for warranty (refer note 18B} 
Corporate Social Responsibility expense 
Foreign exchange loss (net) 

Fair value loss on financial liabil ities/ equity i.nvestment at fair value through profit or loss (net) 
FVTPL loss on dcfererred consideration 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
Royal.ly expense 

Miscella11eous 

Total 

(This space has bee11 i11te111/011afly left blank) 

Year ended Year ended 
3 I March 2025 3 1 March 2024 

4,484.13 3,52 1.06 
7.331.63 7,614.68 

293.97 226.00 
1, 107,02 1,023.47 

197.28 127.53 
979,00 652.63 

1,272.22 796.39 

895.10 697.37 

423.02 443.93 

1,397.71 l,OSO.S3 
569.68 446.71 
228.75 194. 12 

582.26 377.82 
272.75 227.58 
109.59 78,75 

174. LS 146.15 

657.69 499.41 

157.75 106.17 
40.74 37.26 

6.51 5 .1 4 
167.25 117.69 

-1-.00 
53.16 195.7 I 
5.32 

20.00 

57.53 69.34 

1.90 

168.47 2 l 1.60 

21,638.61 18,.917.34 



Lenskart Solutions Private Limited 
CIN : U33 l00.DL2008PTC178355 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

31 Earning/Loss per share (EPS/LPS) 

The calculation of basic Earning/loss per share has been based on the following profit attributable 10 equity shareholders of the holding 
company and weighted-average number of ord inary shares outs randing during the year, 

Diluted EPS/LPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profil at1ribu1able to equity holders of the Holding Company (after adjusting for 
interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity sh3res outstanding during the year plus the 
weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on coaversioa of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity 
shares. 

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the holding company (A) 
Effect of dilution 
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders after adjusting the effect of dilution (B) 

Weighted-average number of equity shares 
Number of equity shares and. CCPS outstanding at the beginning of the year including impact of 
bonus issued during the year 

Add: Weighted average number of equity shares and CCPS issued (includes exercise of sleek options) 
including impact of bonus issued during the year 

Less: Treasury shares held by the company at the year end. 

Weighted-average number of equity shares in calculating Basic EPS ('C) 

Effect of dilution: 

Add: Weighted average number of share optio11s outstanding including impact of bonus issued during the 
year 

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for i'he effect of dilution (D) 

Nominal value per equity shares 

Basic eamings/(loss) per equity share attributable ro owners of Holding Company (Rs.) (AIC) 

Diluted eamings/(loss) per equity share attributable to owners of Holding Company (Rs.) (BID) 

Year ended Year ended 
3 1 March 2025 31 March 2024 

2,955.89 (174.61) 

2,955.89 (174.61) 

1,64,54,63,060 1,62,64,84.246 

2,70,49,394 63,18,8 14 

(74,695) (2,36,259) 

1,67,24,37,760 1,63,25,66,80 1 

36,99,256 53,24,093 

1,67,61,37,016 1,63, 78,90,894 

2.00 2.00 
1.77 (0.11) 

1.76 (0.1 I) 

Diluted EPS represents earning per share based on the total number of shares including the potential estimated number of shares to be 
issued against stock options in force under the existing stock option plan/scheme, except where diluted EPS would be anti-dilutive. 

Note: 1l1e Holding Company has issued bonus shares of 69,39,92,016 fully paid-up Equity shares of fNR 2/- (Rupees one) C3Ch as fully 
paid-up Equity Shares in proportion of 9 new fully paid-up Equity Shares of INR 2/- for every I existing fully paid-up Equity Shares of 
lNR If- each to the eligible shareholders of the Holding Company whose aames appear in the Registers of Members or in the Register 
of Beneficial Owner maintained by the depositories on the record date, i.e., October 16, 2024.Consequent to this bonus issue, the 
earnings per share bas also been adjusted for all the previous periods presemed, in accordance with Ind AS 33, Eamings per share. 

(This spal'e has been inten/iona/(v /eji blank) 



l.cndmn Solu1lon• PrinlC! l.imitcd 
Cl.)I : l/JllOOUUOOKrTCl7835S 

Sot6 to the. ruruofld:ated fiutancla.1,11ummonu for Ihe ) 'Cllr 11ndcd J I :\111n.h ?0?5 
(All au1oun1.J In RJ, mlHlon unlt.11 olhu\lb:t st:Hed) 

a) lncam.t.t2'° t'tlW•tts 
The m11J0r compulltnl" ormc-omc w aptthi, lite 

CurnnlT.u 
C'unm1ui 

Ad1u~1mmt ofLlx ,..,-u,lni; 11> L'.lriia-p1:nod.11 
Dcfcmd 1.u Cc-rC\lll)lc-lu.,ri,;c 
Tolal incumc tu U'fH/IIJC rt(OL!nlltd In 1hc Sr11c11H!'r1t uf l'n,n, and ton 

Drf,rnd T:n: 
Income lil\ effect 
Tutal incom~ tu rtcoz;_nl~,ed In Otlir:r C11m11rthr11.i.hc lnc11111m 

bl kuancilb.tion of effuc1h·r IIU nit 

Profi1 bc:ro~ Wrc o((ln~tJ ufassocmo aodJ(11n1 \'CnJurcs 
1·~:t u1Ul£ tbc Comp.1ny'J 1.1'< rah.' 
Tiu. cffi:cl of hems M l tfodllt:liblc in clctcrmlnint; uu:~Mc prufb 

lmpJct ol'in«intc U'ted 1u dUTcrou.i:d r.ui: 
l:.frc:ct of U.'t rcbccd II) prc-wimu: year (Income- T ~~• 
ltr«r uf dc(crmt 1,u c:rt,1,tcd on tamll1', dUT«<nccs for either,~ 
EO"ca n( dlfTctffll 11..\ r.uc:s m .fareip ,JUMdllCUMS 

Unrttop,iscd dcG.'tTcd ~\'. a n loJs;c-s 
l:.ffcct o( p..-rm.inc:m d1ffcr~11c~ 
Othc,,. 

T.:t\ dpc:n,c: II~ nt"oifllbl!d fn SUHll'Hlftll or J1rnm :ind L em 

lJduri!d T:n rd:iln ht lhll! rollo\\i■g: 

P11rticul11a 

fl~fcrnd UL'I ai.,111.1 
C.amcd rlJil'" ;ard bu-JtPC<li lo:,,i;-w:s, anJ t.1.;p,cttJlton 
C"Ollllr.ad l.blnlruc:t 
1.,,,. li,b,htb 
rroperty. plJm :amj i:q111pmc-n1. R.J;trt u(u>I! uni mtangthk »)Cl$ 

l'ruvcmm for cmpk1)'\'C bcni:lilli 
Provision for 1~~511ll11'>'11m:t and Joubtful 11Jv~r1~~i,: 
MSMED tr.u!c: PJ.)1tbk<i • O\CtJuc 

PJuvi.iion for w:arr.uily 
OOhn> 

Otrernd i.it Uuhilitkis 
ln.lln&1'hlc :u~elll ac-qu1n::d 1.100cr hu..~rru:~.!J c-umbLM11c,n 
C:h,mge ln fo1r ulu~ ,1rln, •cs1mcnl$ 
F'J.ir \'ah&.: oft.ill upti<Jn 
Udw .. "fJ 

Dt filrn-d tn. 

llnrn'O'l:ni.Kd ddnnd 1111 :a.uc-b• v -c.rr:r tH,1cib brlow) 
ltno~;niHd dr(tl'r'td uu: :buts 
Rcc11i,:nlscd dr:(c:r"ri:d Ult lfablllllu 

F'or thl! yur tndt•d Fo.- the )'fllr itmk·d 
M:ucb l l, 20!! M::m.:h l I. 20?_. 

l,U!)b-1 jqJ.!1 
(20.04) 

(IJ),J SI IH.61 
NKD,J6 IP~l.85 

Fo.-tht)Hr cndtd F11r lbt ;or t nd~ 
~lucb JJ. l O!S llan:h JI. !0!-1 

062J 
0.6:? 

For 1b.c- ,ar redcd For the J·cu tndtd 
l\liarc.bll. lO!S Mard. ;U, !OU 

Amllll.01 Amount 
J,K979A 60!.7JJ 

9~1.0, lll.71 
: t.75 J Q, 10 

D 94 
11::.371 

,~,.,,, 1,0,C19 
1166.S?i (5)7,79) 

x.•1 rs.nu, 
1,11.s1 
NK0.16 6'1.85 

A~al ,\ J LI i 

M:trch J I. 1025 M1trcb J 1,l!l!-I 

1.171 Wl l,l'H>YS 
J00.'7 !09,S:? 
505 80 )Ol..ll 
J~7.ll 114, 16 
.!O I.SO .!OSJti 

ID.SO 
1),1>< 
J(0-1 ll-t? 

21-1] 

:?,786,.tS 2.0.a).77 

(l,.1 14,Yl) (l,Slll,341 
(375.0:?J ( l h1.:!J1 

m . 1~1 
IHI 

(1,3,.,80, (l,67?.S7) 
1191.59 J71.20 

1.50!,88 l,'3U7 
314,68 .t.u.s1 

1,514,'7 1,510.34 



Lcnskfirt Solulions Pri,•ttte L-imitcd 
□:-i : UJ31UODL2003PT Cl783SS 

Nor cs to the cowolid11t~d financluJ Jt.uttuumls for lhe )'Car eaded JI i\brch 2015 
(All :Jmuunts -In Rs. million uohiss uthcrwin Jtntc.d) 

\loveml!ot nf def~rrtd t:1x :a.ncu 11ml lbabniHes ror tbc ,·~u- ended :\l.:arch 31 '0"5 ... 
r artlcul:u-s Al II 

01 April 1024 

C.arrll.'d fot'\\lllJJ bu!i.inc5i lo$.!le5 nnd Jcoccci11tiun 1, 196,95 
Contr:ttl l~b11id1.1s W9.8;! 
u.'lliic: lillbtlidc, 303.SJ 
Sccurhv JC'Oo5llj 
Prooc11v. alant and ooultlmc.nt., Rfo:h1 of usc:Jlnd [nl.:tnuible :mcu s,u6 
Pmvision for crnr,k),,.o;:. b..:nL!fiU 205.46 
Pro\Ji.•ion (or lus:.i: iillownn.cc 11nd dotJbtful =itl,·.u.n.C'1::S 
MSMEO 1tadc D0\'3blL!~ • in+crduc 
Pro\'is-i'lm for 1\•um1ntv 22.42 
lnnimrlbh: :&SSt!I.~ ~tt1ulted Ut1dc:r-buslt1~ cdmbin:mon 1 l.51DJ41 
Fl..lr1mluc of~I ontAln 
Chanl!ll in fall' vulul.' ollnVdtJm.!nl.!\ (161.lll 
Other dmmt!! i.lftfen:n.:e~ 2 1.Jl 
Tt.111.11 371..20 .. • m'11UdUJ .imounl o(:?.09.76 mdhon on iaccoum 01 h~ffl(JiS comb1rt:1non 

'.\1o\'tment of ddcrr,:d lllr 11.SSds .11nd l..inhHillcs for 1he n~nr c.ndt'd :\hatch 31 201...$ 
P:lrticul.nrs Al" 

tll Aprit 20:?3 

Carrll"CI fot'w;mf bus1m:ss losses ::and dc1m:c1a1ion 911.79 
Contm.::1 llabtlirit .. -. 174.0l 
Le-:.~ llobilhf~ 20!.05 
Proncn v, 1'11.JRl :i.nd i:111d mcnt. ROU and ml;ini:iblc 0$.SclS 40.78 
Ptu\·islon for cmplo,-cc hcncfh ... 194.Sl 
Pm\•i:;,on for \~'3rr:lll1Y 18.77 
lnt!ln !!lblc ;U!>clS acuuir~ und!!r busmcss cumbm::iuon (1,630.24) 
Ch.an •e fo fo(.r \'!lfuc n(lnvcsuncnis (01.01) 
Other timm~ di.tri=rc-nce;( 51.83 
Toial (67.17) .. • includ..::. :unutJnl ofS,84 milhon on ::ic:..:otint al hu.,;1n.ci;,; cnmPITTJTtflll 

The Group's nnwinini; opu11tin5 loss explrv .tH st!l rorlf1 111 th1" t!lldt bl'luw: 

P:.trlk u lcan 

Lo~s c.:arry r11rwurdi: 
M.irch 31, 2021! 
Murc h JI, 2029 
M:irch .31. 2030 
Man:h31,:!0J I 
Febru:uy 2~. 103:! 
M:m::h3 l, 2.0JZ 
Febru;1ry 28. :ZOJJ 
March J 1, 21)) 3 
M:m:h J I, WJ.J 
March 3 l. 2035 
lrklc1ini1c-

~Ill muled throus:h 
Profit or Lou 

(l:nr tcctgnbtd aqd 
busl.ne5.J combin:ithm)• 

6 1,5i 
8.70 

337,27 
9.JO 

(51.91) 
)9.SI 

-
?.70 

(21.181 
tlG.M 
376.W 

~·tu roured rhrouib 
Prufll or Lui:! 

{t.:urtc:ogoiJc:d .ind 
budacu combin:1flonJ* 

397.04 
IU.n6 
{7.15) 
40.)4 

5Jl2 

l7.SO 
71.20 
8Jl 

563.0-1 

NUIL-,;:- • 

Rccog111tfon ln PtuOt Rt1cugnUio11 In OCI As a 1 

and losJ 31 l\ lurch 1015 

13.J:! 1,21 1.~5 
81.95 300.47 

(135.00) SOS.XO 
(9.J0\ -

]55. IO 387.JS 
16.21 0,6;! 261.80 
IO SO ID.SO 
IJ.64 IJ.64 
J:!.6:! - 35.0<I 

11439) ( I.SL4.971 
118.131 (18.18) 

! 1?1.61\ ms.021 
8.62 13.31 

1-13.48 tt.62 891.59 

Rtt-ognitiun in Profit Rcco~nillon 1n OCI A.1~1 

:aodlon t\-f:m:.b J l, ?O?-l 

1171.SRI ).l9r..9S 
2.5,73 2119.12 

IIIS.7l JOJ.SJ 
.l.04 64,16 
-uu 205.,16 
J.65 22.42 

8.'!.-40 {1,510.341 
tl.J:!.J2) (lb;! ;!J) 

{J8.7l\ 2L4l 
f l:?4.67 371.10 

For tbe )'C::lr cudcd f '<1r 1bc yc:ir end1:d 
Much 31, llllS i\l:!rch J I, 20?J 

l,S!,1 2.,. 
10.86 I0.86 

148.65 12.74 
27,Q\ 27,QJ 

1,J0.74 2-10,74 
-10,SII ~o.so 

68l.7l 681.7l 
12.:ll 12.~l 

51)2,7'.! f>.lo.11 
32.31 

4,930.99 l,-175.27 
6 711.l.5 S~IS0.7~ 

:1) During the yc.:ir ended M:uch 31, 2023, 1he H4'ttding; Cc:unpany for th.e first lime h;id rei:ogn\~ defem:-d cu on .:all 1imin.; differences Cinch1dlng ca:rry fomilrd hw.inels loss~, .:md un:1h$orbed 
t!cprednttonl. 

bl The C"omrany's s.ubjfJ k1rie:.-: hn.."i ,eco~iRJ dd1med ta." only to 1hc cxtcml thlll n is r, rob11blr: th11t pm lit wru be ;w;:a1bblc :ig:11nsi which 1hty c-an be- u~cd. Thi:! C'(l~ti:ncc of un.ibsorbcd I.a.'( 

loJ:scs and dt1prctiaL10n Is :m 1:l\'ldcncc 1tm1 fulurt tn.'t.1blc protilJi nmy 1101 be i1v:illublc. Thcrcfofl."', in lhc ~ gf hlslol)' of rec-en.I losses, 1hc $ubsidiary comp:1ny rccogmscs u dcfi:rr~d l:t.'< "1C:L 
only lU lbv extent lhlll tt Ii~ $uffidcol lu=it,J.., tcmpu.r.ll)' JUfC"rcnc"-" ,-,r d1crc k: r.nnvlndl'I~ ntlirr .-virlrro-it d\..v. mfftd,!l'l.l t.:.i.u.bll! 9t0.[u..: w-llt bo!.1&...-\Wl.Ulle wp..<rl:51 w"k\, S>N.:.lb. ""'W.n~d r.a.~ •~\..-;.E'o 

!b,: rci:1li.~1Jd t.L."< bcnu:.tit wm be rcalimt lldCIRd 11:1, 1153Cl5 (rccus111~ d or u11rtt{1g n l,;cdl 1111: re\Jk.WC"J tU C[lffl ,cponlng llah.: u.nd m:o~uiSt:d/n.:dm::c:d 10 the ~xrum thll ii Is probable/no lon,ecr 
proihlbl.c inpccti,-ely1h111 th~. n:bt~ Jax_bcndl1 will be rr:olise!d. 



UnJk.on Solulions Prh>alc Limi1~d 
CIN: U33100DL2008PTCl78355 
NolCJ to the c.onsolldttled rin1111cl:tl slatemc.cus for 1hc year ended JI Mnrclt 2025 
(AU amounts in ff.j. in million unless othc:rwbc staled} 

JJ Employl'e benefit oblign1tuns 

Particulars ,\J • •JI Mun:b 2025 ,\Jal JI M11n:b l0U 
Correau Non<uJTc.nl Currcnl Non~u..tff.nt 

PrOV1510n ror grntmry 112 50 1S5.98 75 90 82 95 
Provision for compen.sutcd ubscnccs 240.48 65 39 188 83 28 15 

Tolul 352.98 221.37 16-1.73 111.10 

A Gnuuily• Un fond~ 
Tite Group has :i unfunded defined bcnulit y.r11tuity pla:n for qu:1Ufy111y cmplayccs, The sclu.!.rm: provide for lump sum payr11cn1 10 \.'CSted cmplo)'ed al retm:ment, de:uh ,._foJe rn cmploymc-nt or on 
1erm1nauon or employment Ves11ng occurs upon complcnon of n.,,e year of sc:rv1cc1 E.,c:ry employee who has comple1e.d n .. ·c )'c.:lB or more of Sft'\'1CG. G,Cts a gratuity on departure at IS d:tys basic so.lwy 
(lns1 drawn) (or ench completed )'ear o(S<mce on h:nns not less fu,oumblo lhan 1ho provisions of1he poymml ofGranuty Act, 1972. 

TI1e following tables summo.ne5 th" components of nc1 benefit ~spt:nS(: rL-cogm1:e.J m 1he Sta1L'mcnt of Profit nnd Loss and 1hc ~ntus ilild nmounts rec-ogni:ecd m 1he balun cc sheet for the plan. 

Obdoiure or gratuity 

(1) Amou.nl rtt~nised in Ilic st·1te.men1 or 11rori1 and Joss 11 ·11 ondc:r· 
Dcscrip1ion , fe:1r ended 3 1 March 2025 \'e:1r (.'nded 31 M:irch 202-1 

Current SC!r\.'icc co!? 57.55 

lnh~rest cost 800 
Arnounl rrco2,nlsed in 1heJrntemcnl ofnrorii und loss 65.55 

(1!1 Mm1em~n1 in the linblH1y recoenised lr1 lhc: bnlnncc sh~et is u.s under· 
Descrip1ion Ve11rtnJNI JI M:1rch 1023 Yr.ar t.ndNI 31 .\larch 201-& 

Present ,-.Jue or defined benefo1 obhgauon as,, the >Wt or 1he }-car IS8 85 
,\dJustmcnt due to bus.mess acquiSJtion (rcl"cr no1c 45 r\) so 03 
Currenl service: cost 57 55 
Interest coSI 7 -14 
Actuarial loss n:coi;msed dunng tho year 1012 
Lmb1hty acquired 0 88 
Benefits pmd (20 58) 
Trnnslai1on d1ffcre-nce 419 

PrHt:nt v:ilue or dr.Cio~ bene.fit obliu:ation aJ :u th" tnd of the yeur 268A8 

(111) Exoc.-n5c rccocnlsed in the Other Comprehc.n.11ivc Income (CJ:cludlnf.! t1u:) 

Description Ye:ar-1.•ndcd JI M:1rt"h 2025 Yenr t:nded JI M11rc.h 20?-l 

,\cw.anal loss,(g:un) on ansms from ch.1ngc tn financi11I assumpuon ~91 

Actu:inaJ loss on :ui$lm~ rrom e:!fTV'rit..'ltc~ nd1ustmen1 7 21 
Tornl 11c1u11riJtl loss 10,12 

Rc·mcasun:-ment gaTn,(lou) on defined bcnefi1 plons comprises the ;,c1uaru1.l losses resulttog from 1ncr~ or de.:rease in the! prnent \.-aluc of1he defined benefu obhg.1,uons bc..--c:ause or eh1mges 1n 
acrumi:U auumpltans Md cxpcne.nce adJUSlmmts and recoymKd m '01her compre.hcns.s.,·e mcomc1(105s)'. m al.!COtdancc w1th lndAS 19. EmplD)ft! Benefits 

(1'.-} The princinnl ACluodul 11u11nu,1ion.oi: used in dt'.!tcrmlnln~ 0 nlluitv benefit oblhulllnni ror thu Cnmonm••, ohns ·tre shown below-· -. 
Or:scriprion 

Discount rmc 
Retirt:mcnt age 
Employcc u.11rltior1 rate 

Rwtt or inctcuse in comorns.1uon 

Due to its derined ~n,lil phrns.. I.hr Comp:any ~ ~xposed 10 ronowing sign1fkunc rijk :­

Chan!!e in D1scnun1 Rn1e ,\ dL-crease.111 d1si:ount mtc will mcnmsc plan liabillty 

Yc:ar t.11dtd JI ~hitch 202.5 

69,.~.~-

58 years 
.ioo1 .. 

6•0 - 1•-. 

Yl'nr e.ndcd JI ~lurch ?02-t 

7 '°''-
58 years 

•IM~ 
7. , ,. 

374~ 
s 2') 

-12.71 

11230 

) HJ 
S 29 

IHI 
I 33 

(6 22) 
(J 681 

158.35 

0 I! 
13 zg 

IJ.41 

~ The prescnl value of the dl.!tined bcn('flt pion liabtlity is c.1Jculattd by rerenmce to the future salaries or the plnn p.1rt1c1pants. As such., an mcrcil.SC m the sahuy of the plan pnrt1c1pants "111 
mcn:ase the pl311S lrabohiy 

Mon-ality 8.; ~forbidi1y @JCl!i • 100,.♦ oflALM (2012· 14) rates ha\ e been nssumed \loh1ch also me.lodes the 3IJ0\1.'3.nce for disab1lny bcnefilS 
W11hdrnwp) Rate A dL"Cl'c11se 1n wuhdrawnl m1e w1ll 1ncn:n~ 11lan linb1l11y 

°'mug_taphic:11 A$Sump11n,, usec.l 
Assumption rq:ulou~ future monaluy.,. based on pubhshed $1ll11sue, ond mortahiy 1uble !ALM (2011-14) 

Rttirrn,tJtt Ase · The en,plo)'ees of the Comp:my n.re ossumed to rc1lrc a1 the age of 58 ym 

ruJ1I A$al 
P1rticular, Mnrch J I 1 2025 Murch 31, 202...J 

BHe Liab1!11v 26548 ISUS 
tnat:3.Se d,scoum r.ue bv I~• C.851 1267) 
Dtaease discount rate bv I~\ 3.05 2 88 
Increase saint\' mOntion b"1 I ~o 2,77 2 55 
Dmease sa.lruv i111ln11on by 1% ('.!6-1) (2 •11) 

Tbe abo\c ,rns1t1V1ty anaJ~SJS aR b.lSCCI OCl a chang.e in an 3SSlllt'lpt1on whtle hold.11y all oilier QS.Sumpuons constant fn prac.ttce, 1h15 is unhldy to occur and chru1£,es m some of 1hc usumptions rnay be 
i:om:lttti:d Whl!"n calculnd.ns 1h~ scns:1tl\'11)' of th!! ddincJ bencfi11 obhgnuon to Sl~1ficant octuanal t1SSump1fon1 the same mc1hod (present vnluc of lhc defined lx!m:ifu ohligtu,on cntculatcd wnh the 
proJec.:tcd unH cro<fit method al the end ofUu.' repon1n11 pcnodJ has been opptied which w.15 appU"d while c-::ilculculnlt Ute d~Om:d bcnclit ohhymion lmb1hty n:cognL--;ed ,n 1hc bak1r11:e shccL 



Lt.nsUrt SoludaM Prival~ Umlted 
CIN : U33IOODL20DBPTCl7K355 
Nole, 10 tbe con.tolldiu , d n nand1I Jltltmenll ror t h\" yur C!rtded 31 l\otarcb 1025 
(All amounll In R.1,. ia niJUon unless o.tberwlJestated) 

(vi) T. follo11dnl'!' n .• ..,_ ts art UDMtrd toncr-Ibati to I.ht deJi ed btatf'il nta la future ~e:.11~ • . ... D ' D 

Duulprion 

Oto I Yc:ar 

ltoSYe.ar 

S YCM onwanSs 

AJ:•I 
M arch J 11 20:ZS 

The wcight<d ••ms• dunitioo oflh, d,nn,d bcn,fi, pion obligation at !he md oflhe 1tp0rtlng period is 2 years (Morch 31. 2024: 2 y,ars) 

8 Compt.ntaled abnncn 

As at 
Mard i 31, 1024 

16.00 35.27 

54.77 72.01 

16.76 19.02 

Compensu1cd 11bsenl'c:S which rm: c:xpc.C::lcd lo occur whhin twelve months ofter the t:ind oflhc period in which the employee rcndcrS the rel11tc-d services arc rtcognised H undiscountcd ll1bility 11t lhc 
coosolidDted sunun.uy ,uucment or 11.S5C:lS 1md Jl11bUllics date. Compc=nsutcd absences which llfe not «pcded to occur wilhin 1wdvc months 11nCf' lhc end oflhc period in which the.employee renders the: 
rrl2tcd 1ervica: arc rrcog.ni.sed as liabiU1y at lhc present value of the dtfincd bcncfil obliption al du: consolidilkd J\lft'.\mUy mummt of assets and lfa.bilities date. 

Compcinutfd •bn nu , A_..I J I M ar<h 2025 
Aul 

M■rthll, 2024 

Current 240.48 18!.8) 

Non currenl 6S.39 28.1S 

C Provkh1n< fund 

Contribution m:,dc byComp,nics in lhe Group during lhe ynr is Rs. 616.35 million (Ma..:h 31, 2024: Rs. 492.22 million, Ma,,:h 31, 2023: Rs. 321.97 million), 

The Code on Socia.I Security, 2020 ('Code') ri::lating 10 employee bcnefi1.1 during employment and p0$l etnp,Oymcnt benefits rc:cclved Prr:!iidcntlal llSSent in StJUc:mber 2020. T11c Codo hu.s been 
D published in lhc Gaulle of India. Ccn1dn se:cliDO$ or1hc Code came Into effect. on l Mi:iy 2024. However, th.e final rulcs/interprcunlon have not yet been bs1.ml. Based on II preliminary a.ue.ssmcnl, the 

entity bclir:vei the impact orthc clwl£e wnt not be significant. 

£ Empl0)'C4!' 1locl< option plan 
The Compa,1y h,s irutltu1<d on Employee S10<k Option Sch<m< in the ycor2012. lcnown .. 'VAL YOO ESOP 2012. This Scheme W11.S •doptcd by lhe BOIJld ofDi~el01> on 9 Octob,r20l2. This Scheme 
W3S subsequently amcoded by sh>n:holden' approval d.>t<d June 22, 2016, Nownbtt 27, 2020, S<pll111bcr, 27 2021("Thinl Am<ndrncnl") md Januo,y 17, 2024 ("Founh Amcodmentj. In Exin 
ordinary OcnemJ Meeting held on September 27, 2021 the Option plan wu also renamed as Lensknn Employee S1ock Option P14n, 2021 ("£SOP Scheme'"). Tot11I number o(option.s ouu1anding ns on 
Morch 31. 2025 •~ 10,797,430 (March 31, 2024: 952,665). Th .. • opliOllS ore convertible inlo cqu•l r,umbcr of cqultysh11m oflhc JllU' voluc of Rs. 2 each. The scheme hos been de.,crihed b•low: 

A1 ■t 31 March 2025 Aul JI M■rch 1015 Al 11.1 31 Muc:b 2014 
Na:mbt>r or option, Coatnctwil Ure: Number of options Contnclual 11ft Number or optlom Conlr■c:tual 11ft 

Crane month ouhtandlnc pn Otll1landlng ou1111nding 
bOOUJ 

lkc-12 S,000 4ycar, 50,000 4 y,a,s 10,SOO 4 year, 
Jul-I• 30,440 4 years 3,04,400 4 ycars 30,440 4 )'C'1f'5 

Oct-14 4,000 4 yea.rs 40,000 4 )ICllrJ 4,0011 4ycu~ 
Nov-IS S0.000 4 ycara S,00,000 4 years so.ooo 4ycan 
M.y,16 3,220 4years 32,200 •years 3,220 4 y,ars 
D«- 16 . 1,800 • ycan 
Apr-17 SS,690 4 years S,56,900 4 years 59.393 4 ye•,. 
Scp-17 3,000 4 y,an 30,000 4)'\'m 3,000 4 )'CIH'5 

Apr-18 34,750 4 years 3,47.SOO 4 y<ars 45,250 4 ycus 
D«-18 S,200 4 years 52,000 4yws 25,200 4ye>n 
Jon-19 20,000 4yurs 2.00.000 4 yous 20,000 4 )'CUI 

Apr-19 1,000 4 years 10,000 4 years 1,000 4 ycArs 
Joi-IQ \OfOOO 4 yi:au l,UU,000 4yms 10.000 4 yc:ars 
Aug-19 15,000 4ycars 1.50,000 4ynr> IS,000 4 )'<1.15 

Scp-19 IS,750 4ynn 1,57,SOO 4 years 11,750 4 yc:irs 
May-20 6,000 4 year, 60,000 4yms 6,J2S 4 yciu,; 

Jul-20 . . 5,000 4 years 
Aug-20 1.000 4 )'ClU■ 10,000 4 yc.m 2,200 4 7elll'S 
Scp-20 S.000 4yurs S0,000 4y,ars S,000 4J<ars 
Oct-10 - . 3,250 4 years 
Nov-20 . 1,300 4 ye•n; 
Occ•2.0 - 5,600 ,,..,,. 
Jllll-21 . 2,100 4 )CarJ 

Mu-ll 2,000 4yurs 10,000 4 y,ars 2,000 4 .)IC:t.r'S 

Apl'-21 20.'IOO 4)""" 2,00,000 4 yc,rs 20,000 4 )'t'llt'1 

M•y-21 1,000 4 yc11r1 10,000 4 ycnrN 1,000 4)Ul"S 

Jul-21 13,000 4yeon 1.30.000 4 )'CB?X 13,000 ,,., ... 
Aug-21 2,100 4yars 2:2,000 -1,.. ... 2.200 4yean 
Oct-21 18,IOO 4y .. rs 1.80,000 4 )'C':1.1"5 18,000 4ycllf'S 

Nov-21 18,089 4 y,nrs l ,80,890 4 years: 19,689 4 >""" 
Dcc-21 4,000 4 y,,urs 40,0U9 4y<:us 6,000 4 ,. ... 
fan-22 4,DS 4 years 4S.3SD 4 yeilt'S 16,900 4,-. ... 

F<l,-Zl 11,(00 4 )""'1 1.10.000 4 yc= 13,000 4 y,an; 
Apr-22 K,500 4y<>'1 85,000 4 ytars 8,500 4YfiH'II 
~bv~22 IUlOU 4 v~nrs 80.000 4vears 20.000 4 y, ... 



L,mkart SoluUoo., Prlvoce Limited 

C 1N: UJ3l00DL2008PTCl78J55 
Notes to the coasaHd1Ued Onancial s tatenwnl.t for 1he ynr end~d 31 March 20?5 
(All amouncs in R, . in rrilUon unless otherwhe nared) 

As al31 March 2025 
N\lTOber ar optfon.1 Conlnc-111111 life 

Guot month out1talld.lni: pre 
bon1H 

Juo-22 9,500 4 )'Cilf5 

Jul-22 16,000 4 years 
Aug-22 60,773 4 y<!U$ 
Scp-22 3,000 4 yei>rs 

Nov-22 10,000 4 }'Cll,-S 

Dec-~22 8,500 4 years 
Jan-23 6,800 4 )'CQCJ 

Feb-23 900 4 yen.cs 
Mnr-23 9,000 4 yea.rs 
Apr-23 14,800 4 years 
Moy-23 2,000 4 ycars 
Jun-23 5,000 4 yc,1rs 

Jul-23 48,500 4 yc,1rs 

Aug-23 25,000 4 years 
Sep-23 1,150 4 )'tUJS 

OCl-23 1,04,800 4 )'CW:$ 

Nov ... 23 1,000 4 yea.rs 
ll<c-23 . 

Jan-24 19,400 4yem 
Feb-24 26,SOO 4 years 
Mmr•24 2,000 4yws 
Apr-24 40,720 4 years 
M•y-24 8,370 4 yeru-s 
Jun-24 12,500 4 )'ll1Lr$ 

1u~24 95,871 4 yelll"S 
Aug-24 S8,02S 4 ycor.; 
Sep-24 37,000 4yurs 
Oct-24 4 yeors 
Nov-24 4 yc.trs 
Dec-•24 4 )'Ciill 

Jan-25 4 yt:'llfS 

Feb-25 4 )'CUT$ 

M>r-25 4 VOW'S 

10,02,483 

Aul 31 Muth 2025 Ml at 31 M•rc.b 2024 
Number of optlont Conlncc·u:al life Numbu or op lions Contnu:tual lire 

oubtandin1: ouu1andio1: 

95,000 4 )'<ffl 9,575 4 ycars 
1,60,000 4yem 16,000 4-yca.rS 
6,07,730 4yem 66,773 4 Y"°"' 

30,000 4yem 3,000 4yem 
1,00,000 4 )"'Or< S,000 4 yeo:rs 

85,000 4 years 8,500 4 years 
68,000 4 )'CIU$ 21,500 4 yea .. 
9,000 4yem 900 4 years 

90,000 4 yt:IU'S 9,000 4 yeru:s 
1.~.000 4 yem 43,300 4 Y<ffl 

20,000 4 )'tQ.r5 2,000 4 yea" 
50,000 4 ycnrs 5.,000 4 y.::ars 

4,85,000 4 years 57,200 4 years 
2,50,000 4 y<llfS 29,250 4 yenrs 

11,500 4 )'tlifS 3,150 4 yea.cs 
10,48,000 4 ) 'CMS 1,05,300 4 y<llfS 

10,000 4 years 1,000 4 years 
30,500 4 years 

1,94,000 4 >"'"" 21,600 4 yenrs 
2,65,000 4 years 26,500 4 )'CatS 

20,000 4 y<llfS 2,000 4 yelU'S 
4,07.200 4 )lt.llfS 

83,700 4 )'CM'S 

1.25,000 4 years 
9,58,71 0 4 years . . 
5,80,250 4 years 
3,70,000 4 yc.ars . 
1,00,000 4 ye.a.rs - . 
1,50,000 4 years . 

1,14,500 4 years -
l,1 8,100 4ycnrs . 

10,000 4years 
80,000 4 years . . 

1,07,97,430 9,52,665 

During the year ended March 31 , 2025 the comp:tnyh.:ts issued bonus in the ratio of I :.9 on October 16, 2024. Accordingly nwnbcr of"ESOPs oulst1111ding till October 16, 2024 arendjusted with the 
bonus impac.t. 

Ve,tinJ? pattern (•/•) 
The options sh1U not vest lit any time prior to expiry of two years from the dute of grant of options.. unless otherwise dctermini:d by the Bou.rd. The 'f'csting s~hcdule of thi: optiou.s " 'Ou.Id nomlDlly be QJ 

under: 

~1crlnUon % lo be ve11ted 
Clll'r- (2 Ye:u- anniversnry) 
At the end of \st year £rvm grant dutc 
At ll:te c11d of2od ~r from grunt dnte 40% 
At I.tie end or 3rd ycnr from gront dtate 25% 
At lht: ci'l.d of4lh Vt'llf from m'IIJlt d.ou, 35% 

• c llrtis on lnltial mifoimu111pcrlod of scr;•lcc required for any stocks to vosl On comp let.ion of this period. v~tlng occurs for the. fu ll cllffpariod. 

ReunclliDtlon of oul1t11nding share options 

1ltc numbcr imd weighted average C!xcrcisc price ofs.hare optlon1. under ESOP sche.m~ 2021 11.rc as follows: 

De:trrintfon AJat31 M1tth20I5 AJ al 3 1 Mntth2024 

No.oroptJmu 
W clghh1d H•l'"lla• HffdH 

No. oroplltns 
Wcila:!11,d •"crego 

11rtce e:rertlsl! nrlrr 
Ootlons ouUtandlna at. the beelnnlnl'I or lhe \'CDr 9,52,665 1,074.09 9:93,362 585,19 
Adil: New oorions BDntcd durine: th~ yeu ore bonus 1.,97,588 2,143.09 3.41,300 1,83.9.00 
Ad,d: New onrions L'TDnt-c:d durim.• the wu- po.st bonus 8,22,600 230,00 

-Bonu.s shares issued durinti: lhc, vcur 1,02.24,603 
Ootion owllndlnl! a(tu coruide.rinl! hDDUJ .issue 1,11,97 456_ 150.45 LJ,35,062 905.51 
Less; Exc.rciscd.durinl! Lhc vear S,3S,380 45.66 2.1&.342 219.70 

-Settled durin~ lhe ..,., 40,850 2S9..43 73,570 US.32 
•l..aDsed durin2 the Vfnr 9,23 796 332.8) 90,485 1.207.64 

OD.tions outstondln2 1t the tnd or f.ht ve:.r l ,07;97 ,430 140.114 ,,52,66S l.074.09 
IOn1Klns exerds11bk: ut the end orlhe yeo.r 3 8.31.248 4732 3,7,,772 281.16 
Weit!"htcd ovcrilt?C rcm:iininl' conU'Uctval Hfc er the ootions oll15tlmdinl! 2.69ycors Z.91vem 
Rame oftx<rcist mice ror outsinndine 001ion1 'Rs. 2,210 Rs. 230 ncr 01>tion lu. 22 lo~- 1,839 D<t ontion 



Le.mi:kut Solution, Private Limited 
CIN : U33100DL2008PTCl7835S 
Nottt to the comoUdnted fin■nc:iaJ stntemt"ntJ for tht year "ndt!d 31 March 2025 
(Alt amount.I in Rs. In milUon anlHs otherwise s taled} 

TI1c foir value of op1ions fuss been measured wing Black-Scholes option pricing model Expected volatlUty has been b4Scd on an cvalu:uion of the historicul voliitllity of the Comp:my's share price, 
particularly over the historical period c-ommcnsurntc: with the expected term. The expected 1crrn of the instrument has been based on historical experience Bnd geneml option holder behaviour. 

The fair ..-11luc of the options and the inputs used in the rneo.surement oftht gn1nt-dnte fair values of options nrc as follows; 

Partlculan Gr■nt puiod For th" year ended For the: ye.or endtd 
31 Moreb 2025• 31 March 2024-

Weigl11~d avernge fn.ir value a1 grant dDte 
April 01, 2023 to July 19, 417.00 
2023 

July 20, 2023 to D,rnnbcr SOS.00 
19, 2023 
December 20, 2023 to S56.00 
Morch 31, 2024 
April 01, 2024 to June 30, 63.04 
2024 
July 01, 2024 to Oc-cembu 46.48 
31, 2024 
Jonu'-')' 01, 2025 to Match 60.57 
31 , 2025 

Weighted .ivernge shim pric.u al grunt dale April 01, 202.l lo July 19, 1,387.00 
2023 
/uly 20. 2023 lo Dcc.mber l,SI 1.00 
19, 2023 
()(:i;:embcr 20, 2023 lo 1,600.00 
March 31, 2024 
April 01 , 202,1 to Juno 30, 184.00 
2024 
July 0 I, 2024 lo December 184.00 
31. 2024 
J.1.nu11ry 01, 2025 to Marth 202.40 
31, 2025 

Weighted a.veruge den=ise price at gtnnt dnu:: April 01, 2023 to July 19, 1,839.00 
2023 
July 20, 2023 to Deermber 1,839.00 
19, 2023 
Oc:ccmbcr 20, 2023 to 1,839.00 
Mnrch 31, 2024 
April 01, 2024 10 June 30, 183.90 
2024 
July 01, 2024 to Dc«mbu 230.00 
31. 2024 
louuary 01, 2025 lo Man:h 230.00 
3 1,2025 

Dividend yield(%) O¾ 0% 
Expected life ( numherofyenrs) 4 years 4 y<llrS 
Risk free inu:irest rate(%) 6.80% 10 7.20% 7.30% to 7.40% 
Expected volatility(%) 38.20% to 40.60% 37.50%1038.50% 

• Considc-r Bonus impncl 11t n ratio or I :9 during the ye.or 
. ... Bonus is issued In FY 24-2S and hence figures ofFY 2:l-24 is Pre bonus. 

Expcn,c rccognli cd in t he.1t1hm:M:Dl orpru,ni and ton 
For demits ofShllfe ba5cd p:aymer.t.s to elllJJloyccs. rt"coga.ised in sunc:ment of prufil tmd loss during the ycar, refer note 27. 

(11il.r ~acr~ has ban lntenlfamiJ/y l,fi blank) 



Ltfli.lul.r1 Sahnfons Pr-i"o t~ Limilf:d 
Cl~: l"J,lllHll)l,200MP'TCl78J5S 
;\'ates 10 lhC. canmlhl:itc-11 rin"nd■l.slfih'1m•nlt: for the ~artn1drd 31 ,\brc-11 l0!-5 
(Ai1 J1 m01mt$ in Rt. lo 11\llUon uahw 01hc-n1i~ 1f1Ucdl 

.'M C1r,1t11I imd othn· rnm1nilnit 11U.: 

P:artkul:1n 

.J) ~ima.1cd ,UT>Clun1 of contN..:t:• renuming_ Lo bl:' t?i:ctUlcd on c.1{11u f :ai:coun1 and nl)I pn.wtdcd for fne1 l)f c;i.p11al ;aJl';im:c:-1 

b/ Oub11tn1hng<:<pou obl1s:i1100 :c bi: (ullilk d onT,;i pclllld oi 6 ~·cuts, fn:im rcspcciwc d:ite o( lmport. under 1hi: F.PCO adtcm= wi;Jun~l ln'JJl'ICI nf 
pl.1nt omd ~ ch1ncrr,, 
cl ~ her MfflJ;IU\JnotU • lnfoomtion. tc·d1110lo'"v !Wl'l"'-'IM ~, k.."111a; l 

JS Cautina:cnt rl:111,iUtl,A 

A!ill t 

JI .\111nrh IO!S 
J(lfj.17 

.l.!47,60 

As :.1 /\~ Iii 

Aini 

3 1 Murl·h 202~ 

"f,----- --~-----------,--- ~-~~-------- --- --------- ----l''"'-1'--" "''"'=h =a1';:al5'--~-Fl.,_1,c;\·lcc•'cc' h'-'l"O"-'-';_ __ ---I 
Income l.u; h1i ~,!1in °11(11bce11ackn11wlc N :u ctum&{1n R.~ 111111111)11 rl!fi::r 111)tclbcl11w IIJ1J 'i' l!il:!..11 

l.!9 .. 15 1!9.15 

Ntit!!: 
I In :1d1.hnnn. 10 dlc- obo~I:' two ,;11,),:j, 111 rl:SJl".'Ct o( a1r;a:umcnt y1.~r :!OH!-l 9. lnoomi:•1~1' ;iutlmnti,i:, h.t:i d[3,;11lowcJ .t1.-it!lin c.xpcrufirurc: J.rnlMlfltmg to IJ\'R SI 1l.S6 m1llfon lb!!' C'Clftl~llY Ju~ :it'L'q'lt'd thi: JwiU1m :m,.,;l! o( l.."IJR JIJO ~ I millm,1 1111d ( o r 

bJl;incc dL1allow.l11ct"3ppeal k:u. bi:cn tilcJ 1~i•h lnttln'lt.-....D'\ .1u1bmitJC'f. f'unkr. ru, d::ma:m! b.ai b~-eo lssucd U_Jl;\lll'ISt 1hc- .thl'l\'l! if15;1!lm\':lnL'C! by tl>e lrtcomt'>t.i., J1.1lhor1tld 

2 The Muld.ins C,11111..1~• had n:.:c1H;:d ~~~,;Jffll~~ rwdcr fill' A Y !013.1--1 (rom mL'Umc t;:i, J Whon&1lo'll \..,·l,1:n:m ,hi," J 1:p,1ru1u:cnt i-.wocd 4'::tlUOO on Ji:-rn011 o /"n:rt.Jin 1mi:-..p1,uMJ C4_,h ncJ 1l4-

}. Thi! ,;,mtlng~n; lilbl1ily for UST a.ud Cmtom ~ ..: is noua:utlrtl of (l:,,,.~i fietlUln ,lfZcr11 ll(t,;1,•ct•,Wa..m:11,. Suclq;boa Wt-tc l,c-in; 5,,lil 11.1 1~1
;~ OST. 110..-.:• o: ,..t'.f. 1h~ GST au1Uait1c~ m, of r.b~ \'1ow \rot wi.:b sp~,,:t:itlc~ wl1b 1:i:rn ~:m'o!J' ktiSL't :i.sc 

tu:ilhli.-: ,!!dl.S~e;, 

J6 Rli:ht of11tc U«-1-C (ROU) :t.~1tl IUU!.U:ahUII)' 
'fh.c a:oup h.ls J~ ~i: cOrllf'uC\li (br \'..ltluw. propcrno {i!lllliwi11i; l~ ~;h,;i.121111-1., ulTl.;c- bi..iWln~ unJ . ..t<no.J i..:,,;:.J 1n tb, no1....-~11 O:tl\trK ,,1' l,1,1~ >, 

- 1.o,ebold laml 1g I li:;aM1 \"M'CU!Cd l''ilh Rlj:isduni Su 1~ lnd~1rb l IJ~wll)'JWfl~t\1 , nd lln~ l Cllrpcr.u.Jm, L.td..f RflCCJ) for D ricriod i)t~9<J )'t.:lr,i 
• lt',UL: ut'oi1kc- btn1ilmit :llt;f1ltl1'"4 ;ll'1~11y ln\.~ IL"3~<: tl'nnbctwt'Cl1 1 lu 15 \ 'i::1n,. 
The Gffi"P'll 1..t,hSIJlllll) iaW~, i\i" lc:ssq, .1r.: ~111tdby 1hc 11:.urn'.s 1111" Ml 1h~~ kl:.,\'U ~~<\1. StU:'.h lr.1~<!l .lr< rCC\'tgn~d .u n,_;i1,1 1a 1.1~ UM!,"I, V1111bcr~ 1..i1 111' t u\11 f!K"J!'"fhr.':l. tbctc Ille «mm rrnpmy h:.:nci,wh l.:h w~rc (ur1h~T Jl\ert ,1r, ii.lb lc.11u.rdu:tfn& 

llr ~ :>.r ;ind d;i_uifi~ :a~ lnv~ Ul'h!tll !"Ol)l'l'ty, bu1 at the- }UT cptl 1hc ilJUIJP dOcim'II h,1i.,:. .any we:\ rro,,tn~ ln 1ke co~liit.m~d 1i111111d~"'!lt11 tcm:ntit. 

1ltc- Cimur .1:ho tw«mm lc:es~~ l)( butldini:"'11h lcU dun ~ mrmlh.1 ,1.mJ c1.Tt,:11n li:J..'ll" ;l.)N:lSwkt'1 lc,w Wh11!. Low \":l]uc 1:-.ud; n~n.~ whnk n.ilt.llJ m: IJptn INR 1n,oon f>:'I m,mrll llll: Ol'ifllf llfllllli::i ~ - .than t.mn li:~ i.:" u d " lt:~~C r,floW \')luc 

it~M!l" l"l'\"lltr'lillOO~\o:nu,llm, lortltl'j,"-k~..e, 

(..I.J Comp~n,· ll\ J,..li¾'r 

lkclui1£.t"Stn 1h1." U1rt).1■1p, \;al1.11:11fR11l,!11111CIU:{R0Ul !1m1J fhr thi., y~r ~ltk!J J I \b,di 1fl:?S imJ !I ~Wi.=h :!111-111.rc:1~ fnl lm\-,: 

P.1rdcul1m J I ~hlrdt Jtl?S 

1Lo:.a~l1<ihlb111J 

Bal.lnL"t: :JS oo Ol Afril ~H!..I )ll.SQ 

Atldiumu 
..-\dju!Umcn~ due to W.,mc-s~ ,1cquM1lon 11e(( rnutt! ,13) -
Oclcdllfl -
A!Jju)lfflllt1t '"' J.1.."l:mnt llfmudltk:1llon 
!¼uh.in~~ G111AJ (l..mj 

Oi.T1rt:~On \4.00! 
l111n;i lml1ln\ 
B.11l111c~ :uuu J I .\la,ch :!025 .t1!1.~11 

nrwhll!h 
lnvi:..1,1rncn1 pmpc11y{rcfc.r nu1.: JC olbcr Lhan k-;1fflo91d 1m1J11,1,i;n'k:1tl'6. offn:c '-'<tUtptWnt,. & fiunmn· iUl&I fmurc.,) 

!tu.du c,1 UM: .1i.1c1 fO,hc:r 1km d .Ju11i.:cl m tJlm JC I J-111,5(1 

Putkullan 
lt.itJr&ec ~ \ln QI April J.IH-1 

,, ll!tiuo,~ N ~ tht t c..1r-

1\ilj11Mffl1.'tl1 due t1\ bus.ani.:s1 .:ii:qui~1tion fri:ICr o11t(: 4 , J 
Vin!tlll'.l! C®: l t'ffltCI! 11!.lr:m~ 1hi: )1::ir 

'l'rJnsl.;unm dlflCtCtte" 

Dc:li:l[i.l.lb 
_AJJ111:i,-,tt11.111 tHI uo:caam ufn11JJalib.1fon 
Pa~'ment (If lea~ lilihrhriu (induilirut inli.'l"i::.O• 

IR11liu'lt:t as rm.JI :\huch :!O!S 
Ofwft.kh 
C-Un-cn1 Jette l i.iblrnics 

~oa• C\IJ11.'lll k . .a.-.e: 1111111Ilt11.'1i 
• le-llc r,:i~mcnts ni.il11b tcnl p..11d r« Mardl 3 1 :::!:025 fo:- lndiu ic-~nxnl uf INR 1.qy,u1-1 ln!lllai .!ll'd lncttrw1ooal .1~1 Qtlf',:R 3.'15l 11S mnl11.'J1 

L1.';ls~ p:.i.yrn.:mll mdmli.:,. fcnt r,1ld fnt Mnu:1 ll !.0~-1 for lmlL.J JCW 0:.1 r1flNR I ,::l6 i X millinn ~•iii rnu:rrutioo.-31 ~~nt o(l,-iR 1.316.'J mill111t 

The ~1focm·c iottml r:111: f11r J~~ lb h1ll1J~ 11'~.0'1' • -111' _. \J I M!lfdr 202.&.: It.DP ~ -1<1~~,. 

Thi: roU,mlnu v e ,hf. ~u 1o u11t.1 cN:u;11h.cd 111 c11nmlliJ:1tl!d 10rouu1rr .rt11e~mc.ar of pm fit " ad lum 

Pardrttlus 

lli>p,cdmti(lr, l)fR1!4n·tl!'~ a»ru, 
h1!~0.-, c-Jiiprnsc ctn lea,<, h~blli1k~ 
F.xl'(:n.~c rl!l.itlll& lo shon tcnn le-.1~ t lm:I~ in otlwr ¢(J)CTU~j 
G:nn ontcmunnc1ouofkill~ 
'fot::al .Jm11ac1 n:-c:nl!llkc:d In c11rm:iUd.11lt!d u mm!ari' .1U.tl!mimt ur nrnril 11ml IJ~., 

DuUd lnt:a 

ll 4\l;u'ch !Cl?,I 

Lc~~eh(•i.J l:m11 Bulldln~ 

l~.SJ I.IM JS7.SO ll.7SJ.!O 

U-43.5.!I G. l lG.75 
l.104.4ll 
(2Jl7,t,1) (13.751 
1~.2,~ ltl73 ~ 

Jb2) :i! t•ll,7(1\ 
ll..17~ 77) t •U>O) <4.J5"1 8SJ 

Cb,-'l \ 

lo.7.J.5.5 1 J S.l.50 15H:Jl.l lil 

8.0,U,SO 

~D.7J$ •• ~ I .JH.30 7 ,7'111 }7 

J I ;\b1rth ?lt?5 Jl M11rih zri.:u 
t ti.7S6.!l.1l 1-1,-H LTI 
~.9:!-1,JA 3.1'511.(U 

l,IS7,00 

l.;!➔J-01 '"'''""' 
! S1J.57 J 7li.SU 

( 151.7i) (74, lll 

(5(t50J 

(S,913.JO) t4,77J,311 
12.165,3-11 t6.7S6.R9 

5 ,256..J.\ .l1~U.41i 
1-,.otl.QO il.906 .. U 

\'r:."1.r rndi:1t Yc,11r ~ni.lccl 
J1 .,1anh :!11?$ ll /\lu.tth!IJl.& 

5,J!C..77 ➔.)!ll.~5 

1.:!-15.67 m .04 
I J •n.7L t.ollo.SJ 

0 8 lS"I (6 ,631 

8JJ07JII) 6~l?lt.09 



l..t-r1skllrt Solulknu l'ri\'illle Li:nihcd 
CJ::li: liJJIOOOUOD~PTC17,11J5S 

Si:tlcl li:t lbi: c;mm1lkJ:.11led nn11nd•I 1l•!i:rm:n1_..- r11r the yur ..-ndr d JI '.\larch lO!S 
(All .1mouot1 ln RI. I■ ■1Ullon 1111lc:u uthtrnbc! ~tiatctl) 

iU:.turity m1..al~•1h. oflr.ue ll:lbllltlu Is :11 foWms! 

Pllrt.kul:11.ri 

Within ntll' fClt 

E:cpcru;c rcbm.i~ tole.isl'! or sm. 1cnn ll'25f• (utdudcd in oth~'t c, ·!113r:..t1 

(R) O{K'rallni:; lf'a!t'S - /\s Lcnor 
The Gmup hu ~"Cn.au1 prapat1e1 gm:11 nn s11hl\'J.Uii:-d~1firo ap ltl\>1."J;ISTl'-'-n1 1,ror ~'flY in !.he: c1>n.,;c,hJ11100 liri:i.ocu l .tt:1tcrm.-n11 

As Jt .\luc-h 201S 

4,571..53 

l•UI00,6 1 IU.77l.ll6 

.u,143 75 

Ferr th.f ye:u mdEJ ~1:arch for tht ~~r cndt.11 Mnn:hJl, 
31, l ll:!S l!Jl~ 

u •n11 

\ ' c-nr'cmh·d 
JI J.1:arcb !O.?S 

1.0:-!0JB 

\ 1u r roded 
31 ~brth 10!.4 



Ll-D$lc.:1rt Solutions Priv:elr Limited 
CI.N : IIJJIOQl)U008PTCJ78l;;S 

Nor11s to Ille conioHdored fllwnci.tl Jllllr.JllrnlS for rhc. )'Hr tndftl ~11 t\brd1 202S 
(All amountJ in Rs. in million unk.>J oth=isc natod) 

)7. Fi11:n1cl.11I fni trunu~n,, ~nd ra1r ,•:1lue mc:1\11remr11111 

A . ..\eetuntlng cl:a.Jsifie:llioru: :aud (:air ,:duo 
Thi! Ornur•~ -;a.,t-..1.11" nnd h.ih1li1ie$ ror wliich 1':ilr \Uluc Jl'e di.sclosc-J tH 3 l M.m:h 2025 arc :is below: 

(i) f11ir VQJut b.lnarcby 
Firwnt1al .:i.s.,i:u unJ flnonci~I H:abiliu,:, rnl"lmm:d !1t fuir va.h.1e m the bal:in~t' :,hcct :lR' C'Jtr1;0ns.:d in1u thRf: IC\'cl> of (:nr w.lu< h1cr.ucby Th,: lhrte fc\~1$ :m: defined 
based un lbc. ohi.crv::1b ilit}' of slg:nilicunt inputs ta the mi:1111w-nmi:rt1, :u follow$: 

Lnd I: Quo1cd prices IUIWiJustcd} UJ 11cri\."C mukclS r1>r O.n.111C'bl iruuvmcnrs 
Lcvvl 1: lnru1,:. mhcr lhun qunu:J rnci:s im:luJ..:J within Level I 1hit 11rc obsenablc for tlie ass-ct or ll.3bilily, cllht!r Jin:ctly or lnd1rcctly, 
Le,·t1I l: lnpuu whic.h. :m~ Ml b:tscd on ob.scrVllblii m11rkc1 dnlil, 

(it) Fim111dt1I Jn!1trunlCnl$ Dy c11IL·gury 

The t"tU"n.int!. vnlui.: 2n.d Ullr value orlinanca:il m,trumcnt, bv c::11ceori.:s 11S :.1t 1\turC?h JI '>01.5 wen: ;a~ rollows· . -
Pur1fcul:1rs Cla.s:rificadan 

.Ai;u 

31 Morch 20!5 
F'l1uoc:hd ::a.ucl.J 
tn-.1~- in m,,111.,1 flmA'I (.~(tt no.te .SC) fVTT'L •• 9.878.31 
ln\'Ulffl1:'Dts• in prefi:ren:t- .'ih1m:s (retft' nolC' SIi) fVTPL" llH..)6 

lnvtsUn<ml i11 CPN (n:fl:r 1101c SD) Amortised cfttit 2.61 
Tndr recciv.ibl~s (Rcli!t nail! I IJ• Amortised cost 1,251!.8•1 
CII.Sh u.nd c.a:..h cquh.-.1lc11ts fRcrcr note 1.?r AR'.oniscd c~t 6.5-11.lq 
Bunk b:al;mcc$ oth-or th.u, CO"Sh nncl cash cqulvn.lcnts (Refer ncilc I l r ,\incrlt.scd cost ! , 106.5•> 
01h.\f financial .:1.s.sct.J (Refer note 7> FVTPt." ' 106.93 
Od:~r firunc1-a.l 35stt§ (RcfttnOlc 6 ... t'.- 7)• ,\J:aOrtascd CMl S.1%.S7 
Tnllll fin:1ncfo,1 MS<'U ?5.276.SI 

FJ,iane:bf lfabilitfu 
Borrowings fR.crcr note 20)# AfTIOniiCd COSl J .459-39 
Tnu.lc pa~11bl~(Rl:!fcr ·no1c 21 )# Amut11!ieJ tu~, 7.J99.S6 
l.cJ!< lillbllllioS(R<f<r note 36) J\1'.!h)rt.iiCd co,, 11,269 l~ 

Oth-:r fin.in..:1J1 habilittts(Rcfcr nou: 2:?8)1' Arwrtiscd C'fbt 9291S 
Otbcr lin:mclJ1 liabllhlu( Rc l"i.:r natl! :?.:!AtP FVTPL'• 1.76SM 
Tat;;a.J fi.o~ncbl U:ibilltics JS.HZl.63 

Th~ l"olfuwlng mcth..,ds I 1Nmtnp1h1n~ were u)cJ hJ ~s1im:11c the: fo1r \":llues: 

Asol 
JI Morch 202~ 

9.615.64 
1.18.00 

2.67 
J.4 il,Q5 

J.021.3~ 
5.031170 

7.g96 11 
29.US.~I 

~.971.H 
S,161.66 

16.786.89 
I.OZ029 
4A!l.1J2 

32.16-U O 

• TI,c Orobp hllS no1 disc:lo)Cd lhc 11111 v;,lucs tor iln:mcl.1I insmun::uu c.u-ri..::J ~i :um,rtlr,,'1U ca:91 su.ch :i.: tr.:1,J~ tC?C;,l,·al-tlc.11. C31ih :1nd bank b11I.Jt1t:~i;. n1lu:r fin!lncfol:s J./ii~lS, 

~C3Uk' their canymg amtunb 3.r,e '3 n:::L>on:ablc approxurgtiun of tiir v3.lue~ 

• • Fuir value 1hruu1:1h prufil and h.1~ tll.,,,,;'Ollttt 
:t The Group h~, noL-dtsdoscd the fair \'3.luc for financial inruumc1u C3.rrled ::u :unoniscd cosuuch !l$ borrowing~. tr.:1de pa;11,blcJ 1:mtl other Onnncbl Kobili1ti:s. b..:causc 
th~1r c::myin::, :irnounts :UC :I rcaso11.1blc .appru.-omo111Qn or ri:»ir nluc 

(ul)Ou.antit.:all~t di5cl0iuta tff fair ,•;,lue nM.:uure.nienr h.li:r:art.h• fur :bS'~lS 10 :11 :\lur4.h 3 l 102S :.ind us at March J 1 "0211· . -
Lr-\·cl 

AHi 1-U:111 

JI ~larch .!1l1S 31 Mucb ?024 
Finand11I :ancu 1111~it \'JIUf.' tbrouGb prutlr i nd lou 
lnnll~nts• in munul fu:1ds ... , .. 11 Q.~78.31 9.615.~ 
rnvc:~tffll.!nts~ in p~fr..rrm:c Sh111QS L,:\'cll 184.36 148.00 
Fulr v:ilu,: of c,ption to a~quire adJitionul .:itakc. in shares ur ~ Pi.!thc: Li:~1J 106_9] 

Lunt1itr 

(fii) Ou:tntitati,·c- dll:dosurf.'S fair ,•:aluc ma.wrcmcnt bl,m1rcb" for lbb1Utks :ts :t:t )latch 31, 2025 2.0d u :u March J I t 202.a: 

Lc:nl 
As:.I ,u:u 

J I ~lure.Ii 1025 .\I i\larch ?0:U 
Finltldal lubilillu tat rAir ,•:1lu~ 1hrough pnRI .:rnd Ins~ 
Couudc:m11on P3v.tble oe:unst sh:uc ,aca1.tuiucin L:-·cl J 1.7650'1 4A:?3 92 

(iv) \ '11hation ltda.niqut usrd co dt-ltnoine talr "·2tu~ 

Thlssccllon explain" tlli.:Jud~~mi::n t.Jt u1,\t ~ li n,111 lc!I mndo ir, tfotcrt11lnint1 c.ha f.iir \llluc:s or1he finnnd.il jn5uun,cnl!C tba1 ,ire (al reicui:,n1ieJ und m~~ur?-d :n fair \'Uluc :m,1 
(b) n:asun:.d ;u 2.m0ctii·cd cost and for which (J.ir ,·.alues llrC' disclosc-d in the Consotid4U!d Fin;inci~l lnfonn.ulons. To provide ~m indlcal:ion 11bou, the n:liubilily of Inputs 
u.,eJ detcnninlnJ lhe fair ,·:rlu~. the Gruup h;.u cl.ass-Hied 11.5 l'inllnet:11 msirumanl.5 irito the- lhrtt te,cls ~c:nbc,J under the :a:ccthAlin.g sundW 
The following 1111:1hods wt~ o.5sumplu)ns hrl\'L1 bci.n usr..-d tn tsrinmli) tlu} fair values: 
(A) The fair v:sluc onm'('i,.Cmcnts in mu1u:al ft..nd u.nhs is bJ.SCJ on Lhc nc1 :i.sscl value (NAV) :as s1a11:::d by the hi1uers ol'tlursc nm111nl fund unll, in 1hc puhlL1h~ smti.mcn~a.'4 
,u the U;abtK.:: Sh,-ct datt. NJ\V rcpn:scnts lhit pr11;c 01 ,,_,h,~b lhc iss\l\'t will ~uc fin1htt units of mur~I fu~ ind 1b< price ill wlm:h 1ssucD \\'llJ rcd«msuch unll.> from 1hc 
irWl!SIOD, 

(Bl fn m'derto a.rrivti at du: ruir ".aluc ut'unqw,Hcd ln\'esUnt.nt-;;, the Oroup 0b1ulM lndcpcnt.11:nt Yuluutions. The lc.chniquc..11 Ui.~d hy Ille \.llui:r urt- us followi,; 
>) I.come appro>ch • Ducoun,cd e>sb Dows f'OCF"l method 
b) Market upproa\1h- Emcl'f'lriSe ,,aluc,Snl~s multiplt me1hOU 



Lt'nskart Sulutioru rrl,ote Limlttd 
Cl o'I: U3JIOODL200APTC17RJSS 

Nottt b lht- caruolid:aCt'd rm.ind~I St.:anmt"nlJ tor I.hr f~irrndrd ll Much 1025 
(Al111mounu In RI. in million unlcs, (Uhen,·isr stated) 

CC) lo ordrr 10 a,rl\lc :u the llU' ,~luc of1hc dc(c.rrcd cons1dcn1ion p;i,fabk ror Ownd:iys gtoup ;~ont\!' C:rrlo SimuJ:itions UJC: randmlnn1plm.s 1c-c.hmqu~ ba,i:d on 
conunww--,mu: smchtbhc r-rocaqs tu gcncn1c 3$."iel pncc p:tth.s. Siaul:tr 10 bmumia.l lttes, ~yt,fTs 1rr nkubu-d wed on lhc diIT:rcncc between the :l.iSCI pri,cc :ind 
c:<~rcl§C prica in c;ic:h ind1vldunl price p::uh and tlu.·n d1~cnuntL!d b.ick 10 the mcasurcmcm d;uc. 

{D) In udcr 10 a.rrh"C a1 the (.u,.- \·alw u(lhc c.111 option uf Le Pddr lanctia {LPL):~ Simu.b1cd the c.'t.lWIY ,~tuc ot Ll'L -lS oflhll' CXfCC1cc1 ~Jtcn:.IS\: J.iw- ur 1.hc ThuJ Tr.in~hli.': 
W11.rraru: undc.r II risk•ncutnl rr.unc,"n,k. usin1t ch~ c.xpcc1cd \'Ol.o.111117 dcrh·cd rrom WJ.Jdcllnr public comp.anle:i CGPCil:t- Fof i::ach -1;inuluinn 1u:rninn, cdcub.1cd llu: v.:1Juc­
of Neso BrunJ..'i l-' tc. LtJ .'j stake In Ll'L befon: nnJ :;ifh1r1hc ~x~rci1'i: o(Lh~ wurrunts usiny the Option Pri1.1!n.g Method for equity \'&1k.1t:• aillucutuHL Thi.!' p:l)'Ofrfor eul!'h p:ith 
wu co1npu1cd .1,51b~· ~t'.lla .:if: (tl 1hc incrcma.nLll v:lluc o( tbc: suke posl•c:<crciso less 1hc: :age,r~tc cx0teisc price or the ,v:asrJnU-.or !ii) icro. Thi5 p:t)\lff \,~ 1hcn 
J1scou~1'"J tu presem v;alue US1ng lhc ruk~~c r-Jtc. 

(YI V:dlllllon inpu:u nnLI n:h1liUH)hip to r~ir ~•lu~ 

1-.:i!)'inrmLc AHi As:u 
31 ~1:trtlt 1025 31 Marth ?02-' 

Fh.1:utdul t&UtU 

Unquoe,d prd,re.ncc sham- ThfhOptic, Inc.. 

V;1lu;ition 1tChhiquc Compornbl< ~Juluple Based on th1.• Income 
An,tyst, UJ>prnJch 

Rc,·rnce nmtt1plt t.fu, l'H,c 

01(..:uuot for Lock orM:arkt10.b1hty (OLO~U 14.00", 20.00'. 
0Jl;C()lllll J":tlC 21 .oo~. 10.Wii 
Lung urm su.,1.1ln.:abtc: i;r·o\nh rate 4 00°. -t 0011t, 

Un11uuied IJreftr'tllCL' -cluirts-- ~\dluld Tcthnolutics Pr'h'ltlt Limih,•d 

V.alUDbOn rcchniquc H.o:,-!J on l ht' lncntnt: Bu~o.l on the Income 
:ipproJcb 1ppror1ch 

Rt\·~nuc m11h1plc -
O,sco,n1 for l.ltck or M,,rk,labllhy COLOM) 20,1)()", 20.00-. 
015':oL.nl r.uc 2!.~7111 22.51' , 
Lons term sustainable ~v1h rue 5.00'. 5.~ . 

UnqutU.•d 11rcfor',mc1C d1Ares-Th111kerbe.1I l.:lb~ Prh-::u r. l .l mltt.'.'d 

VafuaiiM 1cch,uq~ 8.i.sc<l ut'I the lrconll! B~cJ on the Jm:omc 
approach :ippmxh 

Lun£Wrrn !iUJr,.laim1hh: yrmv1h ruh: J.00', --too•. 

01!K'0.'1Jtt ~1c 50 oo•. 20.00', 

Oi:(C'rrcd Co udder a rlon for o,, uduys group 

V:,lu31.ion U.'(':hniquc Munic 0Jrlo Sin1JU111un ~liJtlie Cnrl\) Snnulation 
Approach A.ppro,ch 

R1~k Fn.-c Rute 0..50-. 0.1••, 
EBITDA I olutili1y 20,f'H'r'11 30.00', 
CrcLlil sp~IJfJ I 1.1°, 1,.1$% 
Plym:-nl discount r:atc 1.64". 1 39•~ 
0£1eoun1""d (;icier for EBlmA S.OO"e 8.UO'♦ 

Fair ,.:alu~ or c::aJI oprion ror hurt"Stmcrnl htld io L~ Ptthc: Lunc.tlcr 
Villt~ion lttbniq,uc Based on ~ Simubuon N:\ 

Rl•k Free Ra,c 2,0,- .. NA 
Equity ,·olalllhy 40.00",, NA 

Timt"toCXll J years NA 

t\l) ~ns:i1h-it!" •ft!ll~·d.l' 

For lbc Jilir '1111Ucs of fin1n1i!i',1l :u,:ct$, rt!"'.1son11blc possible cbang.cs ~I tht o:pc,111ng done n, one or,bc s1gnui..-:1aru Unllb.kr\';lblc lnp,11. hold Ing other mp.us coru10nr, woukl 
h!l\'e the followlug impact: 

PMfic,ulus A .. I AS-at 

JI l lnch ?D2S J I Much ?OU 
Impact IH1 Jm•Ot b~fori.' lax: 

ln,•ntJM.nt in Uoqoolcd prcJrnnct .c!Clru -ThinOptJu Inc.. 
llufl1uC' Mutrlpk 
Jncrc:asc hy 0, I:< NA 0.77 
C>.cre>.<e byO I< NA 0.73 

Dbcounl for li.ck-nf metrkctahility (0LOi\l) 
Increase by St,,. Ni\ 0.70 
0«1C3S< bys•, N,\ U.80 

01.scounl ru.rc 
lnctttSeby 5% Nt\ 0,67 
l><=aie b, S•, NA 0.90 



Lenskart Solutions Prlvnlc Limited 
CI N : U33JOOOL2008PTC l78355 
Notes to the consolidated finunciul srntemenls for the year ended 3 I Milfc.h 2025 
(All llDJOunls in Rs. in million unless otben vise s rnted) 

Purticufars 

Long term sustoin11.blc grow1h rid e 
Tncrcasc by I% 

Decrease b)' I 0 (1 

Guirleline Public Compnny ~I ultiJlle 
Increased by I o, ,o 
Decreased by I 0% 

Guideline Trar1s:1u ion Mulriplc 
Increased by 10% 

Dccrenscd by Io•~ 

I nv('sm,cnt in Unquoted preference s ha res - Adloid Technologies Pri,•n1e Limil«f 

Discount r11t~ 

I ncr--ase by 5% 

Decrea~e by 5~0 

Long term sus tninn.blr growth nlfe 
Incrcttsc by 1% 
Decrease b)' I 0 ( 1 

Unquoted prcl'c.re.ncc s h1:tres- T hinkcrbell Labs Pr i,•ntc Limitetl 
Discount rate 
lncrcnsc by 5~0 

Decrense by 5°t1 

Long t~rm sushd nnhle grow1h rule 
Increase by l11o 
Dccre:use by I 0 o 

Fair ,·uluc of option 10 ncquire nddiriomd .~lake in sh.arcs or Le Pc1i1c Lunetier 
Equiry ,•11lue 
lncrcosc by I O~o 
Di:crease by I0°U 

Volari lily 
Increase by 5°0 
Dt i;rl!asc by 5°/~ 

Consideration 1>uy:1blc aguirut sharr ucquishion 
EBITOA forccusl 
I ncrca:sc by I 0° o 

Di:1,;reasc by I 0°U 

Volatility 
I ncrcast: by I% 
Decrease bv I 0 'i. 

/\<al 

31 i\lurcll 202S 

NA 
NA 

0.71 

0.66 

0.7 1 
0.66 

(22.% ) 

-l~ S4 

4.03 
(3.56) 

6.63 
10.17 

8.22 

8.06 

1,337.00 
974.00 

1.163.00 
1,140.00 

1,937.32 
I.S92.09 

1.729.96 
1,800.53 

~"1\\) T t,-e. fo\lo',\rin:;;. t.:&h l .... p l"l:;111.~ t\\~ lh<! cll'.1.l\i~ i.n le1.•cl J i.tc.ms. fut:' u,~ ye ~u · c.nd!!.<l .l I M !I rl'h 2025: 11m l l 1 M :lr<'h 202J: 

ta) lnvcs tmenl 
Parriculnrs l n,·cstmcnt FirumcinJ li:tbllities 

,\, ot I Aoril 2023 127 18 4A03.9J 

N et i:hnnl!C in fair 1-·nluc of financ-iaJ assset5/liahili l ies measured cu FVTPL 20.82 '0.01 

A, at 3 1 ~l:1rch 21)24 1-18.00 4,4.?3.92 

Ncr l,jhanl!i! in fai r \1atue of financial nssscts.11inbHhies m1.-:nsurcd ill FVTPL (5.321 ( 1.67 1.981 

Pure has~ of tinandul assets 4 1.63 

Pnvnu.: 1i t ol'dcfum:d consdic:ratioo r u I2.65) 

Foreign c:um:nc:v tr onslruion rus<!n'.: 3"25180 

,\s ar 3 I March Zll25 184.36 1,765.0? 

( /'111.,; space lwx bt11!11 mwmtrnmlly lcJ1 hltmk) 

As ar 

3 I ~larch 202-1 

0,76 

0,74 

N.-\ 
NA 

NA 
NA 

(N.99) 
46.76 

4.40 

(3,93) 

2.70 
9.62 

5. 11 
4.67 

-

5,0i8.53 
-1,198.78 

4,523.24 

4,755.71 

Cull onrion \'aluatioR 
. 

[ 06 .93 

. 
101>.93 



L<"n1br1 Solutioru Priv~tc Llmilcd 
C l:'1: U33100DU008PTCl78JSS 
Notc:s 10 tht cons0Hda1.NI fini,ncbl st:u~mt"nts for lhe ytu ended J I ~tarcb 10?5 
(AU amounlS In Ri. in mJlllon u.ule.ss ndu:r,vJsc i tuccd) 

38, Financ.lul riJk 1rn1n::t~cmtnt 
The Grou:p·, prin~l fm:::1nc1al 11abiliues cumprise orlt,.:a~. btittO\\ln£S. tr.aJc p:y:ibli"i. le~sc h:abilitics. c:ipu.:al cm.:h1or. ,e1ention money pa~-ables., emplo)'cc benefit p:1y.a.blcs. dc.{cm:-d c:onsn.ler.u1on anJ rcrund 
li:ibd111es. The m;am pUtposc: o(tho,c famncbl lr.llbi?iu""-s JS co fln::1ncc the Oroup's opcntions. The Group'i princc~J fin:uu:ia.l asscu incll.Mk lo.ms. trade ~d mhc, n.-«ivablcs. 1n\'Cstrnc.t11 m ptcfcn:ncc ,ri;h:arc-.s. b3nk 
dcpmi15, ~curity d..-,,mhs ond cash 1Jt1d ca.~h cqut\\tknt.s th.Ji dcri\'C dircc1ly rrom ili opcr.itioru The Group ,, oposcd ~ nurkc:1 risk, cn:di1 ruk :.md h,quidi1y risk. The Group'" nun=igcn1cnt oversees the 
m:un:sg~nt of these risks ~nJ opprai,scs tht! BoarJ uf01~1ors from lime iu Um(' b:ui.s the imp11ct wess.menL 

(Al Crrolt risk 
Cttdn rul.: 1s 1hc rin: of firuncbl lnss 10 the group 1f :i cunomcr or cnunh.-rpa.rty 10 :s fin.mci11l 11sS1:1 f:uls 10 meet its contnctwl obligltfons. ;md .irise5 princ1p:illy from the groUJl'' n:cclvablcs frnm cuQnmcrs. lo:lM 
:and other Jq,osns etc. 

The (11rryin11 amnunts of finllnd:sl assets represent the 111:a.dmum credit risl-. exposure. 

(i) Cn:1/11 r61,. 1mmagemc1ll 

Creda rifk 1~ the' l'UiL: th.11 counh:rp.1rty will nut m.cc:l It$ obl1p1ion.s und~r a fin;rncial instrwni.:nl or L'USlomcr «:vnlr.u:l, l~Jding to :. f1n:anc1.1I luss. Th,: Croup Ji aposcd to cn:Jlt ri~ from it! opir:mlln.:, ~ti\-ilits 
{prinunly cradc mxi,":J.b!esJ ind from its fuunnn,1 x1i\·ma. mdudina dcpl$1~ wuh b.ink.s 2nd fin.mcial mstiurtinn,. (o,~1.gn cxc-tcngc 1rans:aruons: ind othe:r ruunci:tl insuumcnl$... The Group only dais with 
paru« iwhich h;is l,'000 c-mlit ralJnJ;/ "onh1nc:s:,. gi1,:tn bycitc:m.al naung o;cm::cn: or b.ascd on Group's m1CfTQI ::a»t'S$"1Cnl 

All duubllUl rc.ci;.i,-:s.blc:11 ;.ira duly rc.cogni7.cd li·om 11mi.: 10 ti inc po!il disc-11.'oi,lun with key st:il.choldt:r,;i and pmvid1.-d for ftt the Con.,:oliJ;ucd Financial lnfonmH~n:t ~ deemed t1J1pmpriatc. 

All 1hc tin:mc1al ~15 carried ,u :1111ort11..cd cu~ were ,.mnsldcn!d good 3J :u March 31. 2025 :.ind ~l;i.['ch 31. 202_,, 1'hc Gtnup h:t.,; not :u:qum:d 11ny c.redit 1111p.:&1ri:d ll.."'SCL Tl11~~ wos m, modific.iulon 11, :.ny limmcltll .... .., 
~la.rc.h J l . 20-ZS 

b1.int:1lcd tolul ~m.ss c.amrinu 11tn1JUnt al dcbuh 
Exoec::tcd credit loss- simnlified g,nifflll.l"h 
Nt'I c:a.mlnr. ■mount 

r-1:ttt.h J I. 201" 

ES1in101cd 101;11 irross c:u-ryine. 11moun111t dcf.rnh 
E).;t,ftttd credit loss. simuhtied acoru;:idt 
Nd nlT)'lnu ::unoun1 

R«:oncUJ:llflnn of imp:1irmtnt allow;mu on tr.adt rtte(v:;rhlcs: 
lmp:1irmcnt 11llowancc mc.tSUrc:'d 111 p..:r simpl1fictl i1ppN.t1.!h 

Loss :allta \\irncci :11 C111 ;"\htrtlt J 1, 21>23 
Add ClcSJl asset ori"itlltt"d or uauirtd 
Lou •Uow~ntc u on l brt"h 31. ?OlJ 
Add 11<;.,~ ""-"" ormrmod or •couil'ild 
Loss :tUon 1111ce 11.5 on ~htrch J I. 2025 

n. Fln:1nci11I initru.ments aind c1ub dtposil~ 

Nut dut l .'-'ll th:to 
\AS 1.157 -H 

l.lSU-1 

Nor due Lc.;s 1ha.n 

2.152493 \,!6S.46 
(5. 191 

?.l.il.93 1.160.27 

86.89 
(ll.lOl 
55.79 

(IS.n) 
~0.02 

Tr:u.le nc-tinbtes 
1-2 )'fll r l•l ,·1,..ur.i Mort IIHrn J v,nr.1 Tulnl 

12.6! 17.40 1.29~.91 
1:.2.62) 07.JOI 140.011 

. . 1.?58.89 

l'r:adr rirc::d"11bltt 
1-? veo::t.r Z...l ,•ear11 Mort' 1111111 J na.n Tou11 

JJ.95 9.fi➔ 7.76 J,.169 74 
13).20\ (9.6-11 (7.76) (SS.79) 

0.75 3,-113.95 

Crcdh :Mc fNm b:tl:ulc-es wllh bJ.nlt..r :md fin3nc13I lnstJ1uoons i5 man.i1scd by the grolJl)~ trcu"-ury ,kpJrtm~m~ lnvi:.«U1"1tnta or surplu.~ fund.~ Jro mmdc m ;ipprO\·cJ lnv~mcnl insU\lment,;; J.5 aligned wnh the Bll:srd. 
Thi::- hmiu :u-c set to minimise the cune~nrr.11iun orn..k, ond lht~fore mi1is:1tc finll\CQI loss lhrouJatb councerpany·s pmcnu:d f:tilwc to m:ikc paymt:nli. 

b. Sccurhy dcpu!Ut ::1.ntl oth,r-• d,-11,nu 
With ri:gi.lnJ.1 tu sei;urity Jcpuslt a.ml ulbtl ad\':tnCcll,. lhc ~nttgem~n, bchc\oc:J Ihde 10 be hit:h quality assets wiih nc4:ligibli: crt'\lit rhk. The m.::11:agemcn1 believes the pJ_rtic~ 10 which the.c deposhs 1md other 
ndvuncc& htm: hc..:n made lutvc mong c.ip:achy 10 meal 1hc ohlig;uinns itml wbcll: 1hc ri,k of dofauh L, ncalislhlc or nll :and 11ccordln}ilY no prm•i:;fon for cxcoplcd ,m:dil ln~i. hJJ h(.'<'1\ rrovu.lcd on th.:!:c fint1.11c1:i.l 
t1s.,;c11-. 

c.. Trode rtt~ivables (EJptcftd t rtdll loll for 1ndr nc.r.h•ablH u:ndtr 1lmpUOtd 2ppro:ach> 
Tot Gmup follo"-'S' 'simplilicd mpproach' for m.:01:,nmun of imp1innmt luss llllo"'41lt'C on lr.u.lit n:cei\.Jblc. Under die .simplified o.pproacL lhc Gwup does not tr.Kk ch;u,i;n U1 tttdst risk. Ralhc-r, ii rttugnizes 
imp~trr'ICtU loss i;Jllo""unee based on life.time ECl1 :u '3th rq,omng d:itc, naht from fnubt ~ol:]'l.lllnn. 
For homcgcnous group 0 1" tC!cch~blos, lhc Group \J:iiCS :a t,ro,;$ion nwtrlx lo lktcrmine [mputrmcnt loJS a.llowoncc on lhc {Xlrt.folio or 1r:Kio m::ciVilbh:s. TI10 rro\'i!iion mo11rb. 1:i, h.1.:,i;:d on iis hLS1orically obst:.'r\'cd 
c.J~fouh .nnd dclll}' rates uvi::r 1hc 1:x1i..:i::1cU life af 1hu 1ru1.fo ruccivublr: und Ii udJush:LI for forwanl lookmg cs1imoti:s. At )\:Ur end, thi: his1urii:al ob~rvcd dcfnuh ontl 1fol:1y r.itcs an: updu1..:d ond chan~c:s in th..: forwl.lfd­
looklng csilin;it1,.-s ;ire .an:llysrd, 
Fur other dcblurs th1t 11rc hc1c-roi;c:nous [n n:itur..:. 1rnhvtJu:aJ rc-cciublH which .1rc: known 10 ~ un<:oll«tible :are w1u1cn off by n:Ju4,.•1ng 1hc: canyini; amount of 1r.ide- Jt"~el\11blt and the :imuunt uf 1be loss is 
~n,~ tn lhr Smkmrnl of Pm fit :md Lem: \vilhin otha apcnsc:s. 
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:Socu 10 lhr consalid:ucd H.nnn<lal s1:ucn1tau ror 1ht yrurrndtd ll ,\1mn:h ?0ZS 
(.r\ll 1mu1111b In ~. in milli 9 11 11nle~s n 1l1el""·i ~ lit:ttl!d) 

(Bl tiquldi1y risk 
Pmtlen1 l iqmd1ty nsk mtu1.1~1:me111 1mplte::s maln1cun1n~ suffic1c,-.1 ci:uh and d,~ il'-'a1lab1Hty or fondiny lhrou_gh lln :idequ111c Dmoun1 of comm.1tted Q'«fh f:ic1J1111s 10 mo:1 obhpbOns when dut and to close out 

maric.n posmons Consu:lau1g the busmi:ss requJrrmaus. 1h~ group's tu-anJry mJUnu11.ns Jlwubihty In f\.mdin-" b~ mrun1111nmg nv111lnb11Jt)' Wider cunmuUl!d cn-d.n l ines. ~fanu~tmen1 monuors rollmc rnrcCMrs 
of the Group's hquid1ry po.5111un ind cnsh: .uid cASh e.qt.t:1\'3.l~LS on Ile bilS!S or c.xpcc1cd t'.lSh nows 

(II ,\b,,,nmt:r uffiHitJm:ml t,,J.,lu,~1, 

The tables below anD.lyst the Group's lin uncHll lu1b1lmes 1nco rekv1uu mau.,nty ~oupln~ b:asl!d on th,:ir i::onuuc:tua.1 m111unut:.> Ths a, dune ro, all fin1s11:1;,.l lmb1h11.rs: fur "t,ch tho tontrntu~ r.i:mmbes ilR' 

es.ses:llilJ for an und.:rsundmy or the umt ni oflhe cash nows Th1! wnounlS d1.sc.loscd In the ruble 11n: the con1rnc1u!1l und,;counh:d c.nsh now$ Bulnncdi dut: -.1,,1th111 I:? months equal 1h1.11r i;arrymg btt.l1tnc~s 11$ 

1hc impact of dascounnni;r.i nor 11grufic11nr 

Contrlllllual 111u1uritfo1 , rfinnntinl li11hilitle, 
On 

Leu than 1 ye11r 1-5 ycur:r >5 ~e:ars To1;11 
drmnnl.J 

rU .11 J 1 1\farth lU!S 
Borro\\lngs 543 IS SUOSJ ?.Ol:? J-' 10-I 13 J,.u,1 20 
Tr.idc po)'llblct 7,3'1') 56 7,JOQ S6 
Lcit5t li;abthua 6.2)8 l2 IJ,860 61 5,830 26 26,Ql9 lQ 

Olht r nnanc1.\l l lohllm~s q29~ 1.7650'1 2,o'IJ.H 
Toul ~J.l S 15,.l67.97 18.6JS.IJ.j 5.9J~.(}9 JO,ISJ.35 

AJ 11 J I March l.02,4 

Bott0"''"!;S 2,J•JU -i<, .!,-186 13 107 ,.., J ,074 J8 
Tmdo p11y11bli:,:. S,16166 S,16166 
L~lM: li:ibilmas 4.S71.5J 10,ni u6 J,8JJ 75 20,ISSJJ 
Odi..-r fi.n.mc1.II htlb1lmcs 1,020 zo ~.-':?l 92 SAJJ 21 
Toi.ti 13,0U .93 17.683.11 5.0-11$,1 l~.768..5.9 

r~u ~1-h:e risk conc~ntrnlion 
Collcantrooons crnse whtn t1 n11mhi:.r of i.:ounterp11rue; llrli) ,'f'lyllgl!'O tn s1m11nr blbln.::i:. .a.ti'Ylll<w:3, 1)r .lh,11v.1, .:::1 , 11 ""• • ::in,., ll'"'!JT"'~rr-111 r.-c1nn nr h1w.:«onam1c folutes 1h11 \\Ould cctus~ lb111r :lbtlny IO mttt 

con1r:.c1ual obt1g.1W011S: 10 be sanul;niy afftc1ed by chilrtS,Ci in c.conamu.:, poluii:.il ot 01hcrcondiuons Conce11u:wons indicate Iha: rd.111vc sens111\'II)' of the Comprul) ·s pe.rform1111ce 10 dl!!vdopmrnts 011.:cuni:; 
.11. punculllf rndustry 

In order ro il\'01d l''(C!!'SJM~ conl!r:n1mt1t>n! ofnsk, th~ fon,pany's ,oliacs and pmci:durt.S include sp1,,.-c11ic g.111d;,tl1ncs 10 focus on ~1t! mumu:nam:i: of a dl\'i=1s1fh:d portfohD hfonufia:J concitfltmuons or crt.'Cl1 
nskl 11r~ con1mlkd :ind 1n rin.1i;ed accordtn~f) 

IC) M11rkt-1 rbk 
M.:rka:1 nsk is 1hi: nsk 1!ua1 the r:ur Vllluu ar littun: at.1ih Oow-i oJ" .11 linlinc1:il warumen1 v.:tll l1uetu111c b-ilttJusc al ch,m:es m markiit priccli ~frlrk-.:1 risk comprts~s 1.hri!..: ty~ ornsk 1t11i:r~t r.11e risk. curr~n.~y 
n-s\ ::ind 01hd pnce nst such ~ "qu11) po.."C nsk ;and commodry nsl- F1nmo:1:I lnmummts Jffcco:d by nwk~t nsk mclud: deposns. 10-.·es1ntats mnd furdtn c:urtd1C)' rccdv;ibli:s Md p:ayabl~s Tht.: 
s~ns!ll\flty tmlll)'Sl> m the followmg. s1:c1rnns r.:lnh! to th~ position as :u M:m:h 31, 10,!.S ::md March l l, 20?4 The rui11lyscs -!'\"dude thl 1mpul of mowrnmss rn mn\~1 \lmabltt on lhc Clln)_1ny "'31~es or 

y:tuiry .zn:d Olhi.!r pDJit-.1.:11rc11:u:nt obll~uoru :ll\d prov1c1on, Thr i.~n'ltbVU}' of the ri.:lr;w.:uu prcfil or loss 11cm 1s thu cffl!ctof tlll! assuml!d chcHJijt:S 1n r.:spc.ct1\'1! mark1.!l risks i h 1s t5 bosed Qf\ did fini:met:tl 

"'''"' 1111d fin,,nml lu1liiliD'1oh~ld •• ,\b1ch JI, W1~ ,nd ,\l,m;h JI, lP:~ 

(i) For\!ign currency lbk 
fore1~n curn:.ncy nsk 1s 1hc nsk that th.: fau v;i\uc: ur fuum: cash n~iws of 1,11 e:-cpr,,~un.: will il utUJ.lh! hccuusc of chuni:cs m ror-:i,yn !!:\Chong~ rilli:s Th!! Group·, ~,pos,m: 10 th-.: n~k of ch.u.i;es in fore1~ 
l!'IC!fl.tan~ r:ne"". rcbia: ;nm;inh,• 10 ih-t: Grou,-s opcr.1ung :Jctr,uus ~ the Group's nct m\'d'lm .. 'fllS in fonuanJubs1d14') Foret~ c__xch!Uli;.ot a sk :ans~ frnm recai:;m!h!d :156..:IS uud lmb1Luts dt.-no0un1,11~d m a. 
cum::ncy th:n 1, not th!! t'unc.uonnl cuN1..-ncy of 111) of the Group i::1Llll1t:S Th¢ Group dOr:s no1 U11-: ro""111d ,m11.KL5 1111d ,,,:aps '°' sp.teul:1t1,-.e pul'JMt'"d 

The Oroup'.S 1!:\posun: II) fon:1sn currfflC) nsk zu lhe tnd o(dt.: n:porung pr:nud arc JS follows 

fo-tfl~ndaf Assets 

0:hlff" r..:ce1vubl1:s 

Tr.tdc and uth1:11 ri=1:c1\ Jbk, 

Ohct n:~--ablts 

Trnd..: r(ICi.°i\-nbl~s 

Trade ri:ce1"1tbli:s 
()her n:~1viibli:1 

Othi!r rei.::ek-.•.oblus 

.-\4'.-:inces to ,;upplJcn .u.d Clp'IAI odv.anca 

,\dvnm:es 10 supplii!r.s Md c.:ipnnl t1<ll,fUf\i:,'1 

Ad,'IJ1cu 1a 1upplicrs JJtd i:npulU .idvtanccs 

Ad,1mcc,: 10 suppliers and c.a111uil 1d"wices 
Adv;,nco:s to ~upplldrs nnd aap1111I 11dvancc'll­

,\dv:anccs IO supplk-t5 llld ap1ud ::advnnc~ 

Adv:mci:s to suppheB ood c:1p1r:d ,:ul-v.u1ct, 

,\dv11nt:o:! to 11upplti:~11ntl eopLtnl 11dv i1nl!Uli 

Atk-anti3 IO ,uppht!B :ind C .. 3.JUl;d .ld\.-:t.nC.C1 

Other rtci:w:tbta:s 

Othtr r~ccw:i.bh:.s 
Ot.i« rc."CCl\•M>tcs 

0 1hi:r rcc:i:wobli.:!I 

As 111 l l M:1rrh20l:ii 

Cu.rrttU') ,\mc,unl In 
t~On!lgn Cnr'l'~II(') R:,,. M 11Uun 

MiJlion 

SGD l0W 649.78 
T I-IB U2 4.08 
c:-.'Y 
JPY 2,075 7J 1,18700 
AED 1, 2J J,J ; 1 
AED 6 ,9 ISl l7 
SAR J ,. 7173 
CNY J 01 ~, ,. 
EUR I IJ tQ.& Y! 

JPY -15 02 25 75 
SGD 0 50 J I 59 
USD 0" JJ 57 
,IED J 57 HJ.OJ 

THB J 56 II JS 
IOR Jo lQ 01• 
S,IR I 82 U-l t 

JPY 4()C SQ 2Hl 57 
IOR J7J J.l 2 , -1 

THB 0 ~.? I 32 
l'SD 0)7 JI 26 

(TJrn VNJCC htn b«n ,nknmmnll,,· kfi blunltl 

,,,. .,. .... .... 

,,' 

0 b,Ass
0

..,='·. 
, 4"\ Irr-" • "4'-• 

,' .s.rr ·-, ~\1 
I ") . ,, 
I ) ' • 

~"' 

A, Ill J t ,1nrch ?02-1 

Amoun1 in f on:ien 
Currenry ~liBion 

R<. Millhu1 

O.JO l6 57 

1.110 98 J,IJ2 05 

J JJ HM 
IOI. os 60 

a 01 070 
I 60 IJl.59 
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N-11a to the coniolid111cd ri1111ncinl -~l11trmrnu ror 1he. ye11rmllrd J l M11rch 1025 
(All n111u1u,ts In R.•. fn 111illio11111de,;~ 01t1~rwhc ,\fated) 

Finundial Lillbilhit:S 
Tr:uk ..,d .,.1,,:r p,)'lb~• 
Tr.ull:' :uxl othi:r p;.l\:l.bb.:-" 
Tnd.: :and othrrp;N!,1:1 
Tr.id< :ind'""" P=hl:• 
Tr.1"'= and other p;a~bk1r, 
Trad, 111KI Dlh<r po)'lhk~ 
1",r.uJ~• iwJ otlb.l rpa~nbli:i 
T:rud'2 and OEhi:r JJJ~abl1.1s 
T nido and olb:r p;,)Oble> 
Trod.:ondoch:, p,)>hlu 
Tmdi.:and odrrp;nab~ 
T r:u!~ .111d ath.:r fJil~bk:1 

T r:ut~ .111d athi:r O.l\!lbl~ -

Sen1i1.h•ity • .\nalyffl 

SCO$('nJiln"it)· 
ISR SGD lnttt":15o: b~ 1•,. 
INR.SGD 0.."Cre~ b~ I"• 
EURO Scn.1ilivil)' 
l~ ltd1UR tm:ri:::lk b~ 1•., 
l" l'l EUR O..:cr1.-:tS1.:b~ 1111. 
USO •~n~ilhity 
~R.l.SO~h~ 1•. 
rNR.CSO Oci:'rcs.: ~ 1•. 
C;'lY Scnsilivily 
INR.C~ Y rnm.~ b~ 1•,. 
INR,CNY 01."l:tt:a~i.: h~ I ''• 
JP'' Sl•n, itivh_y 
l'\RIJPY lnc.~ b, 1• .. 
l'R JPY lkcn."3So: b, 1•. 
S.,\R Snuiti\il~ 
I~ R. S . ..\ R Iner-an: b~ 1-• 
INR SAR D~c~;i~ b!- l " il 
tl>lt Scn.\lt:lvity 
INRJIOR lncre=isc b~ J.-,. 
INR,IOlt D,:c n:-351: b~ I"• 
A EO San.iti,il~ 
l'RAED~~ 1•• 
1,R,,\ EO ~ cn.::1.i\o' b~ I"• 
CiHP Scn:d1frit1 
INll.OlJP lncreas.! b~ 111 

.. 

INR.08JI O.:m:~ b~ l",1 
:\IVR &-n~1.hity 
J:-,,R GBP lncn."3So: b~ t•. 
l~R.GBP 0.."Cft'2SC b~ 1•,. 
THU Svuitivil} 
INR.OOP lnc~i: b~ 1•,. 
INl\10UP lncr\."J.S'1 b~ 1°u 
VND S.:n.siti-Yity 
INR..8:lht lncn:a.si.: b~ 1•• 
1-.:R.. em Dccrasc b,· ••• 

Cu rren(") 

AED 
EUii 
1,SO 
CNY 
JPY 
SOD 

IOI\ 
M-Vll 
TH8 
AEO 
Q(Jp 
v:-.o 
SA R 

SGO 
SGD 

EUR 
EUR 

USO 
USO 

CNY 
C'NY 

JPY 
JPY 

SAR 
SAR 

IDR 
IDR 

AED 

AEO 

GOP 
0 81' 

~!YR 
MYR 

THa 
·rua 

v~o 
VNO 

AJ nl 31 .MO.tr.h !0!5 

Amo1n1 in 
f orticn Curn nc.y Rs •. \IU(on 

Milion 

JII )) YJK 1-1 
I IJ IUI 11 
J~1 l~ Ill 

14:! Ul 1.67!87 

7.IIIJ 23 Hl!K ll 
l llJ IOH~ 

7,11 l •~ )6 6[1 
CJ 11 2 116 

12 !O '<I I~ 
UU? II ~6 
IIIIO Q II) 

:1.• ~• 7l I'# l'tJ 
2,1 ~II 5J'i •12 

Prnilil hl'!(ore llu 

.r\.J:f\l A," 

JI i\tntth 201.~ J I .\l:trch 20:u 

HK uu 
(HK) (MMI) 

(111111) 10 3M) 
II OU II JH 

(l bl, (I 751 
263 17.I 

(lb l~l ( I~ I MI 
1ft 2h 1111 K 

(~~.12) PH,! 
un (N•?I 

( I :!11 10•~1 
-&11 tJ 42 

Ill ),I) 11 111 
u;, 111011 

() JM) U ?7 

J" \1117) 

(111111) 
U OU 

(11011 (1100) 

OU! 1100 

(116-1) (11 l~l) 
II I\.! 0 IHl 

(U.:OJ (0 IMII 
tllO 000 

f{hn fpcKC N, h,•t.•11 ;,u.,•mvnt1J~v ll!tr M,miJ 

(, - \ -
I/ 

-. 

.,, 

At III l l ~\larch 102-' 

"maunl in Fartit:•• 
Cun'cney .\lillion 

RJ. ) llllio, 

(62~) (Ill 7 I I 
I Jk Ill JJ 
l 7r, JIJ 7l 

'JJ "" 1.oc;o1 

J.)Oj "' 1.Ull•CI 
(IH U) (Xl S <HI) 

(1!1 J?i (I IRj 
IJ 01 0 I M 
CJ IM OJ1 
l I I Ill 8" 

147 1 0 O;I 

I l~ 'I M:'! 

n ,11~,. cnuitv 

Al nl A," 

JI Mnrch 2025 JI Mnr th 20U 

H$ 6•J 
()M) (6 J)) 

(U IMII (0 2Ml 
II IHI ll :?K 

(I •71 ( I JI) 
I 07 I JI 

(12 171 1762) 
I'.? 17 7 ~J 

(IM•~l JaM 
119~ (J; 6MI 

(; I~) (D j!I 
J 16 o JI 

111m (101 
Ill! (0 Oil 

(1.61) 11!0 

2 Al (11201 

(llfHI) 
() IHI 
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L<n1k:ln SoluliOM Priv>lc Lhulu,d 
CL'I: UJJIOODUQ08PTCl7K35S 

No•e~ en lhf coniolrd:ued On11nci-1l Sl::tkm.cnl1 ror the yt:ar e.nd«I JI M::iirc.h 20?5 
(All a.,r.Wlunts In R.J, in minion unlcu othc.od~c ,.,,~tcd) 

(i.i) l nt.erut nle rid: 
ln1e~, r:at1: rh.k 1s I.he mk th;a1 the fair ,'l.lue-orfu1urc u.,h llo\\sota nnmcO.I in.(trumot will Ouctu:slt' bcatse or ctu.a:,es In fflfflc1 tn~ttSI r.ues. 
Lubi1iu~ : The: Group hiis t ..:n.,in CA"pos:urc rl1n1c:rl!:,I r.atc risk \lo It~ rc..~pc:ct 10 Its borro"l"f"" Wen du.nn~ tho ~;ir, 

A~u1r.: The Group's liic·J 5,lc-pwill arc carneJ a1 mmortl~d co~, anti art li11.ed ~le Uepu:,.tb. They ;,,re t.hcrdure Mt sub}Cd 10 lnt,rrst r-Jtr: ri~k 11$ i.letil!i~J in {nd AS I07, ~ll\CO ntilhrr 1hie C:ln')'Ulj unmunl nor lhc 
ful\m: t.'nsh nuw.~ Will f\tclu:u11: hi;1:1na:i1:~ n(o chan,i.: in mnrk.:1 im~tt.::;a n 11i:11. 

lk Gruup':i uutSt:.u1thfl: borrow,ni;s as ill the cnJ of r~pmtul£,pcri>J 1.,; ~ fo lluWl: 

Par1ieulan /\J 111 ,Asal 

.l l Mt1rth 10!5 JI ~hlrcb 2014 

Borrow,n~ " 'hh Oouttn~ in1crC$t ru1t ".l61AS 4.171.6~ 

Borrowin~ wilh f"'cd n tcro1 r.w: l.1•7.94 799.86 

Sm:,;lth II)" a.rutl}..sb 

The scnJulvhyn(proli(m lo"! h) Wng.c lo tlh.! h1tertst tt111,....; an tht borroMnG,S with llomni: inti:ri:,.,;t r.lli!S Tbc imri:itt "" prnih/ lrus b~fon: tu: 1.s :is b:low· 

1',rtkulm A<1 ~l l\:t :1t 
31 Mar,h 2025 31 ~l,irch 20?.I 

h•••.s< Inc,.... by S bps (IJS) (0.59) 

,,. • ..,., d= by S bp, u~ 0.59 

(iii) Price risk 
The Ciroup·i uposurc 10 price riJ\k ari,;cS rmm ln\'t:-«mcnL,; hdJ a■d cl11~:,.1Jic:tl ,n the balance '\heel .it lalr vulu.c 1h:ro1.1;h profil or lo~~ To m.i.uage 1hc pritt: u:,.~ arising. from in,t.'-lnh:nlll, 1he groupdi\'c:~Hie11 il!l 
Jl<nfolio or ..it~ 

StMithil)' 

lm1ucr un prufit btfore tl11 
P.ar r[cul:m1 ,~:.1 A) IIII 

J I M11roh ?025 l l ~1:, rch 202,4 

:\lulu-;tl funds c:trricd :ti fblr , •::alur lhroug'll 11rc>Ot or hn,s 
N,.'t ><S<IS ,-.luc - lncr,:,s,: lry 100 bps 9R,1R 96 16 
N6 .ib,S,t(J v.1luc -dn:rrasc b,· 100 ..._, 19U8) ('16.16) 



Lc~nk1H1 S<1luH11tH Prk--;11r Umhcd 
CIS : l!lllOIJOL.!IJll~f'TCl70.S.S 

(I\U 11m111Lall 11l Rs. in .. mi.ici a11Jru Clllu,'r'Mhl' 1111.ll'd) 

)9 C■11L1lll ID.:llll.lJ:~n~11t 

fl'lr lhL• f"ll'flO~ nflhi.: grmrp•,; c.ap1~l m.u'L;lJ:l'nlCflL 1::np1ul illeludi:i 1H&:JcJ L"'lllrt}' c:11p1til, L'lll\n'tl1bk pn:Ji:IL'fll.'r:ihPl'd.. , ,-,;-ur11i~ pttnnum un,hll n1bi.:rcqmty r~ ,:rn.-s .1tmbm:1hk Iii 1hc L'qll1~• holckn ... TIIIC pmruicy 
objt'i:11\'1: u l tllC' !ttoop"1 ~:ip,1.11 nun.aicrncm tS 10 L-M1.m: 1hc !ll(lllp't ab1lt1y 10 ~WIIJ.tux as ,1 ~ cw11erm .1nd m.ulmnc th~ :lharcb111tkr y:iluc, 1\-bMgcmcru Jmsl!itS tfa~ ~mip's e.1pn.1I ttl{IUrcme:n~ m '1rdcr w 
11ia.101:u1:1 r10 ctficit"nl 11\·cr.ill finuilq!Ui , tn.eliui: wh1k nw111dm1.t ,;:;'(~L"ISIVI.: k-wr.11:e ~o cb.,ni;l!!I Wu\.' m:uk rn Iii.: cib,cct1,·1:,. pcilidu ,,r pm.-.~UL'-:1 fut 111umi;1og L-a;,1tal du:r11111 tlu.· ~~ cnd,-d M.ut:b l 1, :!01:S 11011 
~1.,n;hJl.l-0~.l 

UoTTT11winp I im:l\nhag j~,c" IIJbi11111nl 
l.di: Cu.II .i.uJ Lw.t'lh L~IJlY;tlcs:lb 

•UI Rchlc-d put)' dlsdo,ure 

I Joi11tVt"11lUH 

8.sufO\g Fnmd1.11r1 ·1 cd n11WAY Urn.11"'1 

VMtirtiure Scroc:~ l'nva~ Llmhed ...,·,e-1'. J.7 AUJ;U~l :O?J 

G~nge-s E)e C.Jrc lnJIJ Prlv.111e1FommfyL110'l'"II U• 0\1•1,cb.p U\Ju fn , .,rc L1no1rd) cc;a~cd ...,, ct'. M yOJ.10ZJ 

ii AiiML:lrn 

Qua.ntOuu r,-d1rmh1i;,n l'fh•JLC LimimJ 
t.,: Pe1.11,c l.uocu~'f 1v U Ob S,:p1.:1ffll<r 20!) 

Timi;l) IT Solw1m1S l,11.lu 11t1,~1c Um11cJ 11ll Om1bcr l.!. :!Ir-.! 

Iii h-:ir~ m.at1a}!rmt111 pcn1111■rl 

M r, 11,-,.u,h AllnRI-- D IN'CWC" 

l\h Nch~ B.lll.JJ1• l}Jm;Jor 
~ l.1. Pm.'tl Ciupu. Ccn111art) s~'Ctcury 
l\h, 1\1.ulu Hill'lh-'lrJn• C111cfrro~Cl'J.1I Otl",«r(wc { {IJ ,\pn.l :O!..l 1iJl l 6 Oi:mbi:t :!ln-11 
ll'lf ,\l,h1.51Jrl( Gtlpt.a. C'lucl FinllJlO:il omu-r IW C ( ZI ~fay~~~ I 

h Et1l l•rprbl'!l C11rr 1tbk11 tllll 11:1,t• 1l~nJlk1u1t lnll11ct1ct': 
\ 1itiOll Kucur ~l'lil ,b,0,:1:11~, 

,, l'rll:Oilltdon, " ith nlllMl 1111rtift tlluill{I lhL1 }t'llr 

Partlc11hu·1, 

"~~ lrlaOll\tl!tbl jM!rWmud 
Slu1rt·ll!m l ~i:.1plnyft bcodi1,• 

Sh:Jn: b.uctl r .a~mm1 

Qmu1101111 Tn:hnolo,:lu l' rh~,.,~ Uml4rd 
Suftwart F\lK'lli~t 
~tuugcmtlll ~i:n~c fi;c-

L, l'~tllc l1u1tHrr 
/\J,u.1.11y .. nd ~l.!irui.tm!RI ~cn.1~,: [m;11nue 

ltu~'lh~~l'11,c 

, ,~lHIUtt ~n'ices rn, 5.lt LlmJ(ed 
Rop-lty lnc1,1rnc 

\ "in(Jtl h'.11111.1.r ■11d A1,.1gCUtn 

Pmti:.1Mnn11J Si:nit:\"l 

8 1111lk11u Fr:uncl.:artTr,rh■alagy Umtfcd 
Dh"1tlct1J 
l'urd1.H~ of l:!LJtiili: 

Re~ tnlUUltf'rW l!ttM»■rtd 

luffl1111~.lllM.MYJbri: 

l..c" l'c:lil,• L■rtt'lirr 
TrJdr Rccc,v.a\le 

\ "blim.1.uu Srnicc.1. r rin.u• U mff1•tl 

Tniik.Rn:cj\°;Uk 

bll11f1:nl,! Fnurk-.1rt Trl"b11ol11!.!J" Lim!lal 

DindcDd R"'7c,11ble 
Tr.11Jii.· n .1\"".lohk 

• Ockiw RN!ciiru;,Nloomu 

T,mn 11ftd c1;11di111nu 11ftr1111iutl111n 111iU1 rrhh:d pudn 

I) Th: tr.11mcd:11:u..,.,,1th rd.J!ci! r:uin."" :tretiutk lilt hemn 1:4111v:ik1J11o llwi,::i: 1N1 jH'l:l-:lll m.1rm'f lct'ljph rr.tni~Nffil 
ill 011h'Llndfn~ bal1rten ff .1ny, 111 the r mrw"}~l -c-mi ml.lrmai~il 11111 [m1C't i:»1 fite .art1.henlc1ncil 11':Clb ln l-.uh, 
mt Tia:11:: 11.l\~1~ 1!1"1 r.11 i;!,l,ilr4nl~"1" rrnrllkll «ir r.:~~h ~-d WI' ~II)' rclat~"ll 1tlrl}' rtt1.:i\ :1hldw- ~);ih1ca. 

.\tlll 

JI M11rfhWUi 

l.;i,n1.-;:; 
6.5-l!.14 

(i.!.1)61 70 

1.11.1-17.1.& 

\ 't1rvndcd 
ll Man"h lCll~ 

,\\!11 
.ll 1\111rd 1 l ll!S 

UI 

IV..::.J 
u1a 

0.01 

IJIS 

q1ti ◄k 

I 71 

(IOI 

267 

A,:11 
Jl !'o111.rth_1fll4 

21.n:s.-i.3 
l ,u::1 ~,4 

11.737.0!P 

\'ll'lrcndrd 
J I /\brci,111~ 

""' .ll .\hmh .lO!J 

2',1.!I.\ 
i7~.J5 



IAru\ulrt Solutl1111 Prfo tc Liml1NI 
CIN: Wl100DUOOIJl'TC171JSS 
.'If.ion •• tJM, Nlltolld•led l'Lu.odal.tblfffllttllt fDI" u.. rnr H•iNI JI ,\t.,dl lGU 
(AH .....u ta Rt. la m.UU. ukt1 alhtndu t u.ltd) 

.. I Str:.mcn.l l• fll'f' .. llloa 
The GrotJp'I opcr,1U1g hlllinmcs UC Uf'lllnltttl IIJld ffllNr,td •q,am~ly Dt~\lnJ!na Ill lhc gNJtnrltkol loc,UIOH o( Ow: ai•klmm.. with CKh ·~' rqtmmcini; • •tn11cslc biaiDeH un11 IAl1 ltn'i.,J Wffi:n:nl matkdJ. 
()rd'll1fn11cpncnu lrc defined a1 IXlmpoomU of rt.n n,tcrprh.t f. ~kll dl1m1c financW ieforrMtlon it a..-ail.Jhlc Ullel l.1 c,,~.at11111cd rqular-ly by Ille d,lcf UJl('fllllnj lkd1.ion mnkn, In JtcldinJ; hew 10 11luca1e mo\ll\'lo 11nd 1Uaitil\g 
pcrlomwlClc. Tho Orollp's ducfapmaLl.rc dock.KIii ma\.ct 111h11 Chlr:fE',HMh1:: Offircr 4Dd Dirutolt. 

TkClud()pmttqDtriwla~1ftofdie0tuac,.pmnanly11tct11~ofN\o·cn'llr.Ptu6:tlba.auwt!IICd111HK'lllht~oftbcopcn1U,I~ 
The Gtue:J! ti• klentiJxJ g,cocn,h1cal 1q;mm!I n tq."ONblit JtlfflO'IIS., 11w: poppMcal KplfflU compri1c 
IHndu ' 
2llnzcnwtlt.1I\II 

Rcvir:a" .. , UJK1tm : Rn•CftllC Md apana ,111:: aa.rilluled &o \be.~~ on lac dlrut rd111Kl!lwp 'lo the ,pcidft.~ 1,tlV1tia of e.u.11 upnmL 111.ll bswdi:s bOlh dtn'CtlyattrilK,\Dblc «-ll mnd rcvcnliC a11il a plllpflrticnal.ll alloc,alion 
Ci/('OIBIIQII C'Ofl. lnitr~ rn'CINf.Md ~:11tduMuud ~ COftMIJ.dada 
.uuu. :111Q.c we dittttlyallnl,uaab)c to 1M t,cgfflfflb 'A"krt lhty 1tt uuJiml. 
U ab.lU!ln : Thc,c-4tt dirtetlyafi:MVtall1c I.a the IC'pl'.lmb -.hae lheymmt, 

Summuri1C'd l(pm:tlt ln(u~ tlon 1\14' l))e )'C:;ll"CTitkd Mnitfl ) I, 'l02S ls u follllwtl 

t'altiall1.n lndla fn ltflll ll,n1l Ttttal M'lffl~llll A•Jutllttfth u• Co1n 1tlk111td 

RC't'tAH 

&.tml&ICIIJlomm 
lrurr1egmcr,1 
Tatal n"l'IUr 

g_,,.n 
Cmtofraw1NkriahudccnpcanM~ 
Purclwcs o<Slock ia uadc: 
~nll11~e111o,yo(tnJcd .... ll11ltllcJpodl 
F.~ loycic time-lits CXJ!fflj(' 

Dcpru:iltlun and amunWtian upr11ic 

O\hc,-
S!wcvl~ ofeuociald U., jala.l ,'Cllbltes: (m'cr aocc'6 tad 47) 
~-ai 11AAl/(laul 

Tol•l 1tM«11 

Tolalllab·llldn 

OIIW' ilbdol:•ru 
ln,·cscmcntt i• aa«i111Glllldjoild \'Cnt\lr'G 

DcprccM11rari anJ amortintiar1 opaua 
Capital c;1JIC"1dlt11n: 
OQOdwi]I lfflf\lltmml (n;(,c:r nott: $J) 

40,1.t.l.'2 
45&.I" 

41,60.Uti 

11,957.0I 
~7)DAS 
tm.,o) 

S;026.l7 
l,14S,67 

U,.SIS50 
1,.10 

1., .. ,.0, 

1~06.lO 

U,17.S.61 

128.13 
l,l;&S.67 
q,JSl.-&f 

10,87 

26.l1U5 
ID.~ 

Z'1,.11".19 

l.6S6A2 
IJl6.4J 
(\ ... ,TI) 

1,761.11 
4,112,4q 
6)61.7' 

2.S.l2 
(UUS) 

Sl,6411.02 

U,Sl9.l5 

114.911 
4,112.49 
S,II.S.6111 

66)2$.11 
-16~.TII: 

66,fll.9S 

17.61U41 
.S,01701 
[1ll.5J) 

IJ,711.J .. 
7,1>Sltll5 

21,78'.24 
M fU 

I.SU.SC 

l,◄O,U•.U 

•1.1os.0J 

JIJD5 
7,951l.16 

14JJ7,ll 
10.11.7 

Elfmfoalh,na 

(ol66.71J} 
1• 6&.71!11) 

(IIUJ) 
( .. ).Al) 

(99.IS) 

1.S! 
(1 .... 6'1 

W.lJ 

(36 ....... DJ) 

(S,OS6.S4) 

1.Sl 

~m·ca1e1~ d!1NNIOJ\IPClll«m0bda1MN1aadrc1Jei.1edlndtc'a.lJunaauddam:IWUl'cohlma.AJlllllll:7~udcU~~puto(~ftlCGIID1lllioM,mcalldf..atilsbtlow. 

Sw.n.ariscd l!:11!!!:JJI. mram111MM rur !he-%!:!:ended Mft~) I, Z024 ll al follows: 
Putft u l1n India lttllll'lll• ll•ul TotlJHlfflUh A4J■at11r111• a rtd 

F..lllfll■•tllu 

R.O"if■IH: ....,..,.._,,.,, Jl,lllJll Zl.6•41,9.5 $4,277.0J -- 0-1.CJO ., .... ,., .... , 
Toit■I Nt't11n1• J~l6UI ,. ...... s Sfi.,u.11 (-UUD) 

Eq11tHH 

Cot"l orrtwmt1ctlQJ, aaJ t'Offl(IOIICflU c·o1uun-' , ,m.10 .S.21'11,1.72 U ,-11?9.42 
PurduiIa: ofS.od; ill uadc 2.n :uo 1,067,:U u,1.1, (417.$5) 
°""""lalav.....,.o<....i.tedftalokd....,. ('2-Ull (111.SII (496.19) (•HJ) 
&pi.;..-...._ Jµ1.51 1.-411..l,& 10.164.91 
l>tpRIC\IIUOll lffll Aftlllll'tiDlia c:q,rfM ~D61.SS •• ,,1.10 •.n,.u 1.15 
Ot:huapcn.1n IJ,.S04.06 5,616.59 14,IJO.U Ql)JI) 
Shnr-eollonl((lmfil) of cwo.."'1111n; ar.d jolnl vcntu1n(~frrnutt'6 and 47) 17.31 (4.11<1) 12,47 
!ieg:~tlll proftl/(1011) 16.S.Sf 11,207.l..'I 11,, . .., .. , l~.U 

T■t.Jaudl 1,uw1 47..101-'J 1.1.5,JJJ,.t..t (ll.t2J.1l) 

'l"al■l lh1bUlllu 11,m..ll ll,8U.'1\I '1,111.11 14~!.IAOI 

odwrMua..,a 
~ht~.mljoffll -C!dl:ltts ltt...!2 Ill.it JiUO 
Ocpnd11M:ln u.J ~isatio11 D'l)CftU!S 1,0Ml.lS .&,6.51.70 •.nus 2.1> 
Capitiil c.-.pmlllll.rn '1,901..JQ • .U5. 17 1-1,0Sl.47 
O.uiodwiU btf,11hmp:i:l\rd~ff(ll~S3) 

~ racaa ~ ~ lilpCll NmSDlldatln aadldl«lcd111 &he 'a4ia&lmcllb: DdiniNti•1' c."Otma. A11 adtcr ~w:;mmaa md cUntru.llllm ~ pan olilc.taild rmmal1;a1lm,r,umoI rmthcrtor.lft', 

Atte!ldll■do■ , fpntftt 

St-pumt rron1 
Olha--ineamc .............. 
f>n4!1N(e«ltt. 

P'•rllHJnr t'NC'II 
Ma.rehll,10:5 

l ,744,M7 
J,.161.l• 

(l,i1Slt9&) 

JJ\s.1.54 

6'.l).S.11 

&6.,US. 17 

17.60).21 
.. ...sn.•.s 
(UUJJ 

u.m-'4 
7,96S.69 

2.l,6Jll.ill 
... ,z 

l ,74U7 

1.IM,710.19 

'1,641.0 

JU.DI 
7,965.69 

14,.SJ7, l) 
10.117 

Cimu1lld• 1tid 

5'.277.0l 

s,.m.u 

14,129.42 
J,-473,70 
(541.1%) 

10.16'...tl 
.,m_.o 

18,911.M 
1~47 

tl,!'10, 

,S.)11.11 

Jl,lS0.11 

165.80 
6..?ll..•o 

14,0$1.41 

F6rlb ) UI' 

•1dtd 
M.uthJJ 202-t 

( 1,$0) 
1.IZIJI• 

11)29.11) 
SH.Jt 



t.m•kat1 S•tull■IU Privall I.Jmllrd 
CIN: U'.BIOODUOOIJPTCl7&.1SS 
Nott:1 to cbc! con1alldatad financl■l 1l• lc-mcn" (11r th" yittrddfd .ll Ma rtb 20?5 
IAlJ amaun11 l11 R.1. in mllllH utt.l.eu olhrni·ke 1111.ted) 

Gt n hk: lnfonn1d,m 

kn'tnlllC! rmm C'IUltm~l wrth amomm 
WhJ1lnll'11Jill. 
Oulliik:llldi:I 
Od1c-r Opmitinit ftc,."Clluc 
WhhrnlnJla 
()ul.lildt: lndi.:a 
Total ftntUlf pu con1alid.alnl lllmffl■f'Y llalt mc-111 ef pr,aftt ••d ktst 

Wllbbil!mla 
Ouu:1-tc lnJia 
• NUIM3lltail llUds o~lu1k lin.ancll1I ln1tn1mc:nts. 

D) M.,Jor cuatomrr 

for- lhc )'Clf" end~ F'M· lhc y,■r 
M■r<b .ll, 2025 uidtd 

~h r,h lJ, 20:Z4 

::ur.SS0.17 JO,OS9.69 
26,l16,6S 22,648.iS 

i ,S98.lS I.S68.:l9 

66.SZS.17 

1\1 i.l 
~brd1 .ll 21?5 

?S,.266,13 
40 451.12 

54.111.0J 

,\1 1 1 

·"•r-d,JI 'Z.0:U. 
18.297. 13 
n 110.45 

Rcvc:rn1c: rorm 11.rt)'01Stl)mera.cu:l<Jtbc:r 1qn,cnlJ docs not o.c«d 10'!~ o(lhc tutD.111:'·r:uue rq,aned JU:Mna tbt: ~.treilkd M:an:h J I. l02S, M•ml 31, 2024 IUld hcn.ce, 1hc m:inaicm,m bell~~ U!.c:fc 111'1! n~ nufo, 0.llllOmt:r to b~ ditdoscd. 

42 l■d AS I IS: R.cvc■ue lh1m coatr■d ,dd1 ca1C.omtn 

Tn1dt: m:ch-ublcs • 
Contnict liablll1let II 

• ind,: 11:ccdvllhlt:t. •~ IWlll huc,a:t bearing. As 111 Ma~ 202S, Rt, 40,02mlllltitii (ll Mtu1:h 2D24: Rs 5S.?9 mlllioD) \\'"U rcr.-oJJU1cd 1H lots ullo"'°'llm:c. 

ff Can1nrt li!Wlhltd hu;lu~ O\l'IUl(C t('((i"'cJ Ii-am curuimt:nl, fllOvuion for QU\ ~-anJ fl(lilrtl u1d pnwi$klll ror cxpcdcJ Cl.t510ffla' rcl1lrn1. 

b) Rclbl!ldllabilldu.: 

Rc(Md linbllilid 

c) Reroodlliltiilll ohm.a..ot ofrc¥1tn1Jc rc<i,;• ltNS In lhut.atcllldll ut protlt an.d·lou with tbit ironlr-u-kd pri" 

Reve11ae H pi:r c:onldc~ price 
AdJHlrnrnb (or 

Lt:u: Rt-rumi 6Bb1U1kt 
RcYcn•e Ihm opu1t1e1 

d) Tlmh1g , r"-,•ciun rc-t<tt.nltl<ltl 

(juQ,J:1tnodin-cdo1 a poClltin 1imc: 
s ~;~i:1 ~c-o,s,b.eJ o,tt 1tm~ 

Sm.i(~ rt(-(1£Dis.cd 111 point in time 
Tal■I nvc:■uc- rnm1 Cu1ttt11tl wlla cuuonun 

c} l'f:rf'<1nu.an obUg•tio~.! 

Sakuf&Hd1 
The pcribrm.uiccabli&,1tioo U lllti1fu:d upoo dcliv")'ofUlc &Oolk-The Ou:lllfl :il~ r rovidtt oac )'CM ..,,.mntywhlth ha1 been pm~4dcJ ror 111 per nrr1knble IND AS. 

S•lrofn~n 
The perform.ui.cc obliptioo Ms been u 1l1Ac,J li\'Ct"thc pttfod. 

I) ftc,•rnur ruor.nlttd ln. rd.ltlo■ 10 con.tnct ll1blllila 

All.I 

J I Minh 'ZD25 

Aut 
ll Marcb 202S 

74..'lS 

Yurmdfd 
Jl !\hrtll 1025 

6S,OOl.77 

74.9! 

6-IJ26.B2 

\ "rar,Med 
Jl ~brr.h 2015 

6),599.]9 
1,3 19.19 

7,M 
'4,91&.81 

3.41).95 
1,712.91 

Al l .I 
JI M■nblOU 

k<t.15 

'l' nrcndrd 
ll March 2014 

52,1112.19 

114,IS 
Sl,70&'4 

Yu.r1,ndrd 
l l Marth J.024 

S1,fi62.99 
1.0:lS.44 

10.21 
51;7D1,'4 

l1Y111\:!l) l' alwmJU~rc,.W,c"M.1,rn:rtof"tc,-efflQ: ~u.Kol 'm \lu: 1q ,...1ll,l,1}'fl'•~l\>lfl w..-.. n \11J;;,J hr, 'mc-4u;m;,u Ullbi\'(,y ba!IU"JU. ¥1 \h, 'M.Pf.,mJ, vf~ ~ • ........!. •-"Cn•,:y~,!,Vl\~,-cr,~ 11cribl. ffl?lff,1''1:Ml.­

oblip lioni ~ d•litd (or ruutfall)' Slllil(rN ) tfl previol11 r aiod.1, s~nM! has been Ut11."]6J(d M b~av.. 

R~•l11.U11 ttrognisecl-ln the rq10nin1 )'Qlr tkal n, lndLQbS in 1be (llll!l1ld llibi.Jlty b.o.lAtlcc .11 UH beginnl11t1, o(thc yur 

,CJ DIKlowrr- 1111drr 1hr. Mkr-o, Sttt•U ud ~hdlt11tb Et11tU11rbt1 Dtvtle11mrnr Ac.t, 2005 {""1\ISMf.D Ac~ ·'ZIIJQ"'j 

\'ur irnded 
.JI ~hrc,b 1025 

1,1502.17 

Y1.1re■dt:d 

JI J\1■rc• 1024 
Sl?.72 

Tit Mfnlmy o f Micro, ~m;all 11M- f\1cdiuni e111arriu:,t rult b-SuaJ fl.I omcc MOl"MX1!Jklulll il.l~ Z(I: AllfjOli 201Nj .... 1,1ai lect.1111r11Cliah: dilll tlu; ~ rlQD wal Small r:.o1,qni,~h111d !Mnllllfl In 1.11-1.k- ..,._fl"'ll1,Jm~'C whh I\.\ ~PCt'11 ,he 
Erru:qm;ncui:s Md'l111t4lld~ n.urnbtr Ill 111\to\(J .after filling the Mcmo:r,u:11lum. l).o.,:.cd tn'J lttc inlomu lloa ttoeci,'td 1111d 11111.i1l:.l'lk 14•hh lhc (jrvwp, lm"t: 111'1:l 11g d1K"1 QllltWdiNg Ua tma-o md umll t:t11qitmS (Supplim } olhcr-tfun co'\'cmi 
btlow wld:.rtbc Mii;ni.. Small amf M~l1U1if.111cpriJcf; OcvclC!pmcnt Act, 2 006 ai al f!r't3rch 3 1, 2025 end M11rdi J I, 202J. 

Dltrlcitv~ n ""4tlltt.d ■1.tkr tile llln-o,Sm.111 ind Muilum Euccrpr-11~ D~·ef<i$Jlmcnl Act, .?lo.6 b114!d. 011 lhc, lnform1tlo-n n1TiabJc ,.jjt, 1hc G1"1Jup 

hrtle11l1n 
Vnr-ll!ndrd Vnrtnded 

JJ M1~h 2025 ll.\11tithlt}1' 

PriJ11;im1] m'l:iMtduci,o ffl CU m ,ffl,ln ri■l:l 412..?L Z.55.7 1 

lnl.dnl due oo ~vi: IZ.66 3.-11 

The 3mWnl ofUtctHI paid by the buyer ,n tctrn! a r 1ccdon I ti ohk MSMED Aa 2006 oill\g· v.i .th lhc 1,1:rxKmtJ of lhc p1,1,ynl<tll tNJt lb U'li:- "II/Ir Her beyo..t the ,pp0tll~ diy dllring ax:h 

tttCC!lltltir1r:~ 

TI-re ;mw:iwt1 urici:i:rcu:dw::: 11Dd flll)'Dbk forlhcprriod o(dclay in rm\ln~ ~)fflarl (wh::iL-6 b.lW:btta ;pa.ld but b:}"IU lhcuppoiinlcdWydi:rlna; tbe ,mtl bul willww aJJir1g tk [111crcuspcciMJ 

urub lht: MS MED A.l.-t 2006, 

4,72 

11tt rurnun~ oriiratit D"l\lr:d llilll n:m11fni1c ·llilpaid 111 111Q: liild 114" c:a('1 at1.,:11.=W, ~-wr 16.11}9 3 ,36 

The'2tmlilll o ffunhCC" inLCl"Cll rc!1ULR1ng due 1111d p;iyabh: C\"W hi L.ll(ls"'"\.'talingprt, 111nlM rudidiltcwhmlhi; i:n:1nai ~ ~ 11bovc11tett1\IJll!yp11hl IU lhc inull ~11a11mc f.orthi: purpoJ~ot W.35 :l.J6 
Ji111.Uo ... •..ni:f.U ■dnl11 i:1[l, I• .,.-r .... Jliu,-un.1,tt' ~ ,:lln.nl;I ;1f~ie MSMF.O.;\ct 2oor- ---=,-.. .,-

~ 



Lenskart Solutions Private Limited
C1N : U33100DL2008PTC178355
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. in million unless otherwise stated)

44 Group information

Information about subsidiaries
The Holding Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2025 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held by
the Holding Company, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Holding Company. The country of incorporation or registration is also
their principal place of business.

Name of the entity Country of incorporation Ownership interest held by the
Group

Ownership interest held by Non¬
controlling interest

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
% % % %

Lenskart Eyctcch Private Limited India 100.00 100.00 - -
DeaLskart Online Services Private Limited India 100.00 - - -
Lenskart Foundation India 100.00 100.00 - -
Tango IT Solutions India Private Limited India 100.00 100.00 - -
Lenskan Solutions Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100.00 100.00 - -
Lenskart Solutions INC US 100.00 100.00 - -
Lenskart Optical Trading LLC UAE 100.00 100.00 - -
Lenskart Solutions FZCO UAE 100.00 100.00 - -
Lenskart Arabia Limited Saudi Arabia 100.00 100 00 - •

Lenskart Solutions Company Limited Vietnam 100.00 100.00 - -
Lenskart Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100.00 100.00 - -
PT Lcnskurt Solutions Indonesia Indonesia 100.00 100.00 - -
Thai Eyewear Company Limited Thailand 100.00 100.00 - -
Lenskart Solutions (Thailand) Company Limited Thailand 100.00 100.00 - -
Neso Brands Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100.00 100.00 - -
MLO K.K Japan 100.00 -
Owndays Inc. Japan 96.67 3.33
Owndays Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100.00 •

Owndays Co., Ltd Singapore 100.00

100.00
92.27
100.00
100.00 -

-
7.73
-
-

Owndays Taiwan Ltd Taiwan 100.00 100.00 - -
Owndays Downunder Ply Ltd Australia 56.00 56.00 44.0 44.0
Owndays Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 51.00 51.00 49.0 49.0
Owndays Tech & Media (Thailand) Co., Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99 0.01 0.01
Owndays MalaysiaSdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100.00 100.00 - -
Owndays (Thailand )Co.. Ltd Thailand 49.00 49.00 51.00 51.00
Tenno Optical College Co., Ltd. Japan 100.00 - - -
Contact Co., Ltd. Japan 100.00 - - -
Lenskart Optical lenses cutting LLC UAE 100.00 100.00 - -
Owndays Vietnam Co. Ltd Vietnam 100.00 100.00 - -
During the current year ended March 31,2025. the Company's wholly owned subsidiary - Lenskart Singapore Pte Ltd, has made an additional investment in Owndays Inc (name
of investee company) for an additional stake of 4.44% leading to 96.67% stake in the Company as on March 31,2025. The investment has been made to strengthen the
Company’s presence globally in optical wear. Accordingly, Owndays INC has been consolidated as a wholly owned subsidiary

Information about Associates & Joint Ventures
The Holding Company's interest in associates and joint ventures are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are
held by the Parent, and (he proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Parent. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal
place of business.

Name of the entity Country of incorporation Ownership interest held by the
Group

31 March 2025
%

31 March 2024
%

Baofeng Framckart Technology Limited China 51.00 51.00
Quantduo Tcchnolgies Private Limited India 17.11 17.11
Le Petite Lunetier France 29.10 (7.00

Visionsure Services Private Limited India 50.00 -
(This space has been intentionally left blank)



Lrnskort Solutions r rlvole Llruited 
CIN : U33100DL2008PTCl711J55 
l'iotcs to the consolidated fin,.ncial statements for the year ended 3 1 March 2025 

(All amounts In Rs. in million unless olhcnvise stated) 

.is/\ Hu, iness Combinations. Oc:tlsknr1 Onlin• s~rviccs Prh'ak Limited 

:l. S umm•ry of a<11uisition 
During lite year the Holding Compony has acquired IOO'h shareholding of Dcalskan Onlmc Services Pnvntc Limit~J as on 31 December 202-1 for a 
considerntior1 of rNR 20 million. Due 10 Lhc said 1rnnsaction, Ocolskan has b<en classilicd us wholly owned subsid,ruy. per the r<quircmcnt oflnd AS 103. 
Business rnmbinations step u11 accounting has been fo llowed, The Company Is providing provi<ling opcr-ations und mnintcnnncc (0&"1) services to Lcnskan '$ 
omni-ehanncl <tore,: PAN India. 

Details or the rurchn~e cm1.1idtero.1ion. the net a.<sets acquired and goodwill arc ;is fotlows: 

l'articul:ars Amount 

Cash considentlion p;iid 20.00 

Purchase co nsidcrntion (A) 20.00 

Assets and liabilities n -co2nised •• u result of acquisition are as follows: 

Non current osseLS 
Propcny. olonl and CQuipzncnt !including Capitol work-in-pro~ress) 1.078.51 

Other intun~iblc assets 0.57 

Righi 10 use of leased properties l,ll».48 

Other nsscts 687.83 
Deferred tax assets (net) 209.76 

Current assets 
Trade reccivabl""• 131.15 

Ca.<h and ca.1h equivnlenrs 5,.86 
01hcr nssets 16R.70 

Less: Liabilities assumed 

Lcnse Liabilities (1.187.90) 

Trade puynbks (2. I 12.45) 

Other financial liabilities (current) 142.21 l 
S1atut0<Y dues (44.1») 

Provisions (106.19) 

Net assets acquired (BJ (57.93) 

Assets identified on occounc of purchase price nlloc:ition (CI . 

Goodwill (A·B-C) 77.93 

• The fair w luc of the trndo rcccivnblcs amounts to INR 131.15 million, The gross amount of trade receivables is INR 131.15 million, llowcvcr, none of the 
trade receivables is credit impaired and i l is eKpcctcd Lhat the full conlractual amounts con be collected 

Goodwill represents lhc fair value of c,xpcc1ed S)11ert;ics arising from this acquisition. 

b. illl••n•urement of fair mluc of idenlifinblc net nssc ts 

The v:ilualion model for f':ti r valua1ion of propeny, plunt and equipment considers quoted mnrkl.'t prices for s1mi l~r items when n~llablc. and 
depreciated replacement cost when npprop1fa1c. Ocpreci:itcd rep lace men I cos I rcnccts adjustments for phyuca I deterioration as well as functional and 
economic obsolescence. 

c. Revenue nnd profit contribution 
The acquired business con1ribu1.1:d re,..,nuc of Rs 1,237.71 million (before climinmion) and profit a fter w of Rs 30.31 million (btforc elimination) 10 the 
group for the pcriu<I I Jnnunry 2025 lo 31 Ma«:h 2025. 

(Tlil, .,puce /,as bee11 i111entin11al/y leji h/a11k/ 



L1cnsk11rt Solutions Privnl'c Limited 
ClN: UJ3100DU008PTCl 78355 

Notes 10 the oonsolidaled tlnand•I st.:nements for lbc year ended 31 l\larth 2025 
(All 11mounts in Rs. In mllllon unless othcrw!sestnted) 

458 Busin ess combinations- Contact Co, Ltd. 

a. Summary of atfJUisilion 
On August 30, 2024, the Croup acquired I 00-/4 of the voting shares of Contact Co., Ltd .. a non~istcd company bucd in Japan and engaged in the bJsiness of 
contact lenses in the eyewcar scgmenl, from the existing shareholders of Contact for a cash purchase price, Fair Valuntion 1ecnlque has been used for asset~ 
und liabi lilics. The Gn)up hos been acquired 10 obtain synergy in cspnntling lho market through 1hcir customer rcl,thmship d111a. 

Details of the purchase con.~1deratton, the n<I asset~ acquired and goodwill an: u follow.: 
Pnr1icula.rs .,\JllOUDI 

Cash con.,idcmioi, pa id 4.09 
Purchas, consideration (A) 4.09 

"""' ' 8nd llabilitie~ recoenised as II rcsull of 3cqulsltlon J1rc "" follows: 
Non c.urrent assois 

Propcttv. plWlt and CQU1Dmcn1 /includine Capital work-in-t>rOl!fCSS) 0.07 
Current a«ets 

Trade rccciV'Jbk s~ 1.12 
Cash .md cash cquivalc:,t, 0.39 
lnvcnrori(:5 4.52 
Other assets 17.05 

Less: Lbbilltles 11ssu mcd 
Borro,lin2s (35.04) 

Trade payables (5. 15) 

Otherlfahilitics (curre,111 (8.28) 

:'\et n,scts acquired (8) (25.32) 

Assers idenlilicd on. account of purchase price allocntioo ( C) 14.36 

Goodwill (A-B-C) 15.05 

• Th~ fair volu~ llf lhe mJc receivables amounts to INR 1.12 mil!lmL The 1,"IOss nmoum ofrrade receivables is INR 1.12 ml lllon. lfowowr. 110ne of lhe trade 
rc<:civnblcs is credit impaired and ii is expected that the foll contrncrual amounts coo be collected. 

Goodwill rcprs'Scnis rhe fair value of c.~pccted synergies arising from this ocquisition. 

b . l\leasure.ment or fair ,·nluc ofldenlilfoble net assets 
The va!ualion model for fair valu,rion of prop,:ny. pl:uu and equipment considers quoted market pnccs for similar i1ems when avndoble. Wld 
dcprccinted replacement cost when appropriate. Depreciated replacement cost rctlec1s :idjus1mco1s for physical de1erior111ion •• well <U functional 
and economic obsolescence. ln1J111giblc asscLs arc fair ,alucd based on lhc multi-period execs~ earnings mc1hods. The muhi- pcriod cxceis comings 
mcO,od considers the present value of net = h flows expected 10 be gc11era1ed by the customer rularionships. by excludin~ any cash flows rdalcd 10 
contributory assets. 

c.. Jlcvc:nuc ilnd p,·ofit contribution 
The acquired business contributed revenue of Rs. 31.17 million (before elimination) and loss after 1nx of Rs. 18.52 million (bcl'orc eliminn1ion) lo the group 
for rhc period I September 2024 10 31 Man:h 2025. 

(This spa,·c lw, been lntmlimw/~1• /cji hlunk) 



Lenskart Solutions Pri•nte Limited 
CIN : UJJ IOODL.2008rTCl78J55 

Notes lo the consolid:ilcd rrnandul stnterncnts for the year ended 3 l l\hrch 2025 

(All amounts In Rs. in million unless othern ise stoled) 

45C Business Combinalions - r nni;o IT Solutions India Privnie Llniiled 

:,. Summary or acqulsit Ion 
During th.: previou,; year lhc I lolding Company has acquired I 00% shareholding of Tango IT Solu1ion~ lndin Priva1c Llmi1cJ ("Tango"I of fNR IO each. Due 
to the snid tr.msoc1ion_ Tango has been classified as wholly own«! subsidinry. per the requirem,,11 of Ind AS I 03 - Business combiruuions step up accoun1ing 
has been rullowcJ, The Cum11uny will benefit from use of Tango IT Solulions algori1hms 10 analyze cu<1omcr tlata. 

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assc1s acquired and goodwill arc a., follows: 

Particulars 1\ mount 

Cash consideration paid for 69.97% acquisition 72.09 
Cash consideration of 30.03% s1ake /earlier held as associate) 70.00 

Pu rchase consideralion (A) 142.09 
Less: Loss on account of fair valuo1ion of c:irlicr stnkc (J0.99> 

Net Cnming value of 100~• stake 103.10 

As<els ••d linbilities recognised ,s • re.suit of ncqulslcion ore as follows: 
Non c urriL!nr :i.ssecs 

Pmoc11v, plnnr and equipmem (including Capilnl work-in-pro~ress) 1.99 
Current assets 

Trade reccivabt.s• 3.11 
Cnsh nnd cash C<111I valenls 26,90 
Olher assets 1.63 

Loss: Lfabillrie, assumed 
Other liubili1ics • lrude and non trade /5.0S) 
Olhcr financial liab!lltics (current) [4.00) 
S1a1u1orv dues (1.52) 
Dcfcrn:d 1u liobili11cs Incl) 0.64 

Net- •ssers acquired (8) 23.68 
Assets ldc.ntificd on nccounl o f purchusc price ulloc., lion ( C) 

Trnde Name - Tnnj!O IT 8.30 
Technology 29.3S 
Deterred tax liabilities on account of above iden1ificd assets (9.48) 

GoodwOI (A-B-C) 51.25 

• The lbir value oflhc trade receivables umoums 10 INR 3.12 m1lllon. The ~ross amount of trod, r,:ccivabl<$ i, r.-lR 3.12 million, However, non~ ofth• trod• 
receivables Ls crcdil impaired and it is cxpc'Clcd U1011hc fulJ conlrncrual nmounls can be collected, 

Goodwill represen1s 1lu: fair vnlue of expected synergies wismg from lhis acquisi1ion, 

b. f\'ka~urrment or r.-1 r value of Identifiable net asnts 

The valllution model for fair valuation of property. plant anti equipm,,nl considers quol•d rnarkel pr.ccs for similar i1•ms when ava,luble. and 
deprocia1ed replacement cost when a111>ropriatc. Dcprecioted replacement cos1 r~tlecls adjus1mcn1~ for physicnl de1eriora1ion us well as funclioMI 
and economic obsolescence. lnlnngiblc asse1s arc fair valued based on 1he rolief-from-roynlty method ,nd multi-period excess cumings methods. 
The rchcf-from-roy:dty method considers lhc discounted cstimalcd royalty paymcnls 1h~t arc c.,pcc1ed 10 be avoided as a rcsuh of lhc palcnts or lr.ldcmarks 
bdng owned. The muhi-pcriod , .,cess earnings method consider, the prescnl •nluc or net c:lSh nows e.,pccted 10 be gener.ited by lhe cu.,tomer retuionships, 
by excluding any cush flows related to conllibutory nsscLS. 

c. Rc,•cnuc and profit contribution 

The ocquired business contribuled revenue of Rs. 26.25 million and loss or Rs. 17.80 million 10 lh, group for 1he period Oc1olx:r 1-t 202310 March 3 1. W14. 

(77,is space lws hee11 i111c111/01111/ly leji hlu11k) 



Leuikurt Sululio1ts Prh•11te Limited 
C IN: U3JIO0DL20081'TCl78J55 
Kot~ 10 lb~ co:os•lfd.!IINI fim.nc.llJI JIJlt.mt aU far tht )'l!':lr t-ndrd 3 1 lbrc.h lUZS 
(All ;amuu.ou in Rs. In million unlc,t gthu·wtn .nurrd, 

-16 Interest in Julnl \ 'e.nlures 

81utf1?..11g Fr.imd,:.n Tethnoll,g) Liml«ed 
In ;-\pill .:W:o, 1l1t: l-loldlns Co111po111y h11i; .1cqufr1.1d :i s1• . lmcrcsa in B,,orrni,: Frumckart Tcchnolog,y Llmm:d, .1 fohu vcnlu.rt h1corporat..-d rn China. Titi.: u1.hlrcss orH~ 
,~sl\tCr~>d office Is No. l XmBbt11> Ro-ad, 0!11)t~n, CounLy. Pinsd.ingshon Cay, Kenan Pro,·lncc, Chinu, 

B,ormg fr.!!Debn T..:hnololl)' limit«! is in>'Ohtd iI m,nur;aunng ;nds;I~ of m,uJ sl•;...,.,.>tld pl•stk &l:us,s pmdu.:tlun_ 

Bused 011 the krn:sentilUOn on th Boord of Bou(eng Fr.1mck.ut T~chnoloJIY Umi~d by virrue: of the Group's in,·cstmcnt. thr Gmup c;cerc~ joml coruml on 1hc tc!l~11:in1 

dcuihlon m;1k:i11g actlvilic-s of lhcj\l/111 vcr111irc rmd lh('rcfun..•, the Group':; U11crc'.'lt in Ra\Jl~ng Frum..:kurt Tcchno1o1,")' Lnnnod is ttt~oun1ed ror min~ 1hc r.?quity trk.'lhl.ld in 1hc 
Comiiolido1cd Fin.tuicual lnform.ulon, 

Sumnw™,"Cf finJ nc1-1I mfonmfll'.fl of lhc J0lnl \\.'JUun. ba~•ll an Its finand::ll sr.ncmcnb. ~uuJ ~ rcc-on,.1h.adun \\;th th..: c:arrym~ .1mounr. of tlti: m, 0$h11A.'nl in the ~c,nl0Jilh1L-tl 

ilni111d.ol s-1:ircm~nt~ arl! set out b!low: 

Summ.1rised 1faremc:nl" orfin:inci:il pusirion o( B:aol'c.ue, 1-~nrnt'.k:trt Ttthnolog,• Llmhrd: 
Pu1icul:lrs 

Propi!rty. pl:i.nt e1nd equipment 
ln1r111J,dhh.1 :,sscl~ 
Non• cumnt A5Stl$ 
Cw.h :1m.l 1.-":15h tqu1v-..alcnts 
Other current o.s.w:u, 
Chhcr n-ccivubk:$ 
Tr.idc rccciv:iblc" 

ln,·cntoncs 

Tntdo p•y•blc 
Other li.J111.ni:1ol 11,iblhttcs • Currc:n1 
Toxc, poyoblc 
Curnnt liubililies 
Con1r.ac1 liab11ilics 

Equity 

Group's holi.lini; pcrccn1;igc as: 1.11 1hc rL1)llrtin.1:;, duti: 
(;roup's slum: In net :ISSc.t:S o.t the 11cqui$itiun iliilc 
Cloodw,11 n:<llglllscd 
Vroup·s sh:i.r~ of Liou) for t<1.rl/i:r ye:i.rs 
Group's shan, cfprofit/(los.,1 n:oow1iseJ during 111, yc:or 
S1ock rcscr\'C clnmnouian 
D rr,lng :imount 

Sunmu.rbcd Hu1enwnt or profit or loss of 811uknc Fr-Jmek:u-t T1.-c:hnology Limiled; 

r udcul.:ir.s 

Rc,-cnuc from con1nan~ wi1h cu<ium..,s 

Othr:rincome 
Col't o( soles 
Other c.'lf.penscs 
Profif/(loJS) before t;n 

Income lQX t.'<J)l!'IUc 

Proflt/(loss) for th• yur 
TutLll c:omprchc1uh·c Uon)Jlucomc for 1hc ycur 
Group's h<1IJlng pcn:cnl.lgt! .lj al 1hc ~oning lit.He 
Esum:ued share or Profil based on Lhc. hold.in:s pe:m:otagc: :u 1he reponini }'CM end 
Croup',: ,b:1rc of prnfit/(h,,,) rtcogllllc.-d during tbc yC""u 

3 I Much 2025 

1l1..l9 
0,21 
J ,4) 

41.96 
124,70 

20.76 
154J I 

7765 
C241J9) 

(JS.90) 

I I 8l1 
(46-6S) 
(!J8) 

51.003/., 
3!bl 
(7 !!) 

149 <•11 
(8,831 
~2-n& 
Jl.DJ 

31 March 202,S 

1,06021 
0,MJ 

(1,07745) 
(0.CIII) 

(16AI) 
(090) 

(17.31) 

( 17.31) 
St.II% 
(S.l!Jl 
(8.83) 

31 ;\ brch lDl~ 

I 13.S6 
Q_16 
9.05 

JO.SI 
7q_13 

IQ,61 
9-23 

123-50 
1160.76) 

(76_:!3) 

11,791 
(6b.4 I) 

JI March 201.S 

79.95 

51.00o/, 
J~.61 
(7.!!) 

(SJ.46) 
4_34 

62_US 
J0.85 

40.86 

89-1.28 

9.95 
(0.4SI 
9.50 

9.50 
51.0% 

4.84 
4.114 

ln addition 10 the 1nl1.-n:-iU u, ;.xnt , en tu.re duduscd @0,-c, the woup 3),0 h.u mll:JC$lS in oth..-r lndivufually imm:.h.•ni1I juinl \tntwn th:,t ..tl't' a.c:cuwncd for u.d ng tho l"qu.il_y 

m«:thod 

P:ar1ic.ul:1.ts 
A;~qpte CJJ)'mg J.mount of 1'1d1v1dually inun:uerc.l Joint ,-en1ures 
AllJ:r.t••• amaunt, arn,r ;rovp'1 1h>rr of: 
\Loss)/proli, for the year 
Other con'l!'>tthcmm•c incomd(Ju)t} for1.hu )'CU.r 

Totnl Sh:irc of pru01/tl us~) from juint ,·cntur1.'l- (/\+Bl 

i):.rtkul.:us 
(Luu)lprolit fur 1110 r= 
Olhc:r i.onprchcruivc- incumc.(lun) (romjoin1 ,~nurcs 
Tolial C'omprc ht•ush·e {lou)li1c,unr from j11h11 YtJ&tun.-s 

TI,c joint \'c:ntun:-s h;uJ no con11na;.cn1 Uabih1ie1 or Clpit:.U c:ommluncnt.s u .11 31 M:rn:h 20lS .1.nd 31 Murch 2:0!-1-. 
Thtn, :,re !JO Jign1!ic,1111 rcsnicuons on th• ln1-.suucn1.<' •bilhy to be ablt 111 lr.lllSfor funds to the Group_ 

) larch 31, 2025 

15.0<•► 

(5.llfi) 

Morch JI , 1n;i.s 
( IJSO) 

(IJ.K9) 4.114 



Lenskart Solutions Privnh~ Llntitcd 
CI1': UJ3100DU1108PTC l783SS 
i\"orcs to Ilic coruulld:.1tcd fiuunciul st11tcm~n1s for the year ended 3 1 M:.rcb 2025 

(All amounL'" in Rs. In million unles.s 01berwtsc staled} 

47 Interest in Assoriutr 

Qu:.1urlluo Technologies Pri,·11rr Limited 

The Holding Compuny h::JS invcstl:U in .33.D 18 Pre Si!rlL-s A Compulsorily Compulsorll;' Com·i.;rtiblc Ptdc1\:nc1J Shares of QunnlDuo Technologies Privat~ limilcd ("'QunntDuo"), 
This in\'cstmcn1 providL'S the O.:lmpuny slg.nitic.,mt inllucnc:c over key dl.!'cision nu1king 1hi.:.rcby, QuontDuo hus been classified as t1n ussociuto and is accounu.:d IOr using 1he cquhy 

mc1hod In the consolidote<l linancial statements. 

QunntDuo T (:thnolog.ies Pri,·11tc1 Limited is engngcd ln thl! business of developing onalytics solutions for industries lh.ii di!al with II lar.se ~mount of data and cnrry on :ill or any 
businl.!':iS of marketing and distributing the software solutions Jcvdopi!d by the Compuny 11ml provide consulting s..:rviccs diri:ctly ta consumers or entcrprisi.;s. 

QlmntDuo Tt:chnolot!,il!s Piiv1UI! Limitc:d's shures :ire not trnded in un o.crive market, and there is no quoted 1mtrke1 price available. 

Sununnri.s~d financ-iul infomuuit>n of the nss.ociute, ba:ied on 1L'1i rinoridal stntcmcnt.'i, and o. rtcand liation ,1,•i1h the carrying amount of the im•cstmcn, in the con..:olid:ued finnnciu. l 

statcmcn!S ~r~ set out below: 

Sunu:n1u·ised statt'mt'nt or finunciul position of Quant Duo Technologies Pri..,afc Limited: 

Particulars 

Property, plnm and equipment 
lnranglblc a iS\!15 

Rlg)n or use D>>cts 
Other Fimmcial as:;ets 
Tr:uh.: rccciv~blcs 
Ctt$.h ant.I cas.h cquh"3lcnts 
Olhur Currel\l financial assi:~ 

Oth..:r current ns..<iets 

L~:1.sc Uabili1ies 
Othur finnncial liabilities • Corrcnl 

OthC:r current linbilities 
Pruvi:iions 
Equity 

Group's holdin~ percentage a.s :it lht.: reporting_ do.IC 
Group's sh:ire in net ass~ts al the :1cqui:::ltion d~uc 
Goodwill recognised 
Adtli1ionul i1wc,1mem 
Group's sh.II.re of (loss)/ proflt for earlie r yearS 
Group's .shnre of los.s recognised during the year 
O th1.!rS 

c~rrying .-mount 
Sum m:lrised srntenu'.'nf of profit or ln.J...1 nf QuW1tOuo Technologiu Prh1:ue Limited: 

P:1rtkulars 

Rcvcnm: imm operations 
01he.r income 
Employee bent.file;; e.'tpcn.,;c 
Depr1,,."C[atiua and :imonization 
Finance Costs 
O1her txpe.nses 
Loss before rnx 
lncomc to.:<, l!xpcnsc 
Loss [or the yeur 

T utnl romprrttcn5\vc luss tor the :yr.nr 
Group~s holding perc~magc as 1l 1h-c r..:por!ing darn 
Croup's shre-or loss ncognised during 1bc year 

lndh'lduully immaterl.id ::usoel:1tcs 

31 March 2015 3 1 Mu ch 202~ 

0.84 1.17 
781.21 781 2 1 

:?..:?7 3.90 
23.66 

14.42 R. 17 

2.3.03 3A8 
6.89 81.83 

ID.TI 13.29 
(237) (3.99) 
(0.61) (0.59) 
(8.99) (9.93) 
r1.101 (4 ' I l 

819.71 897.99 

17.11% 1 7.Ll "I■ 

165.07 165.07 
(15.07) I 15.07) 

9.21 9.2 l 

(17.62) (7.18) 
(14.04) (10.-1-l) 

0.63 0.63 
128.18 142.22 

Year coded Yc.1.t.r cndc-d 

JI Murch ?0ZS J I )larch 1112~ 

71.42 67.7S 
3.45 6.96 

(I 13.04J (89.90) 
(6.60) (-5.73) 

(0.30) (0.36) 
(36.97) (39.73) 
(82.04) (6 1.0?) 

(82.04) (61.02) 
{il.lM\ {M.Ol) 

17.11% 17.11 ¾ 
(IM4) p0.44\ 

In oddilian 10 Lttc intcrc~ts in aiSOciatcs d~1;lnscd ttbovc, th1: ~rnup al.5o has intcn~~ts in o other individual!\' lmm;1tcriol --as~ociatc.s that en: accounted Cor u.$inu the egUily method. 
P:rrticulars M:irch JJ, 2.0?5 M11rch JI ~ ?Ol-' 

Aggn:yu1.c carrylog:-amaunt ofimllv[dually {nimi.ttcri.ul :Jssodati.:.s 

Ag,gr~'11te um,nunt., of the graup'!I share i;,f; 

Loss for 1he-ye;ir 
Other compre:htnsivc lncomc/(loss) for the venr 
To1ul comprehensive tos5 (C) 
Tot•I Sboro or profiu/(loss) fron, assoclutcs (A+B+C) 

Loss for the ye~r 
O chdr c.omprchc:o.slvc. Jncorm-/(lus-~.1 rron, u.ssociott" 
Tut3J Cornprebensive lou Crom,:i.ssuciatcs 

TI1e assotiau:s hnd no c:onringent linbilillcs or capiwl c-ornmitrncnts as ilt 3J Marth 2025 :ind .l I :March :?0:!"4. 
There an: no significant rc!itrictions on the invc.srments' ability to b~ obli: H) tran~fer funds ta th~ Group, 

(16.49) 

(]0.53) ( 17,31) 

(l0.5J) (17.3 I\ 



LfnJkart Solution, Private Limited 

C IN : UJ3100DL?OOIPTCl78355 

Notes to 1he tonsolld11h:d On.anclal 11u1,m,nts for lhe y,ur 4tnded 31 M11rd1 2015 

(All umounls In R,. In miUion unltJIS otht,.,.be ,toted) 

48 Additional Information punaant to p•ro~nph Z ofDlvl,;lon II or Schodulr rn ofth• Componlcs Art, 2013 

Net assets (1ot·u1 UHtls ntinuJ Sharr in pront and loss Shue in orhtr compnhcn.1h•t 
Share In total comprthcn1lve incomr 

total liabllld,s) income 

As a% of Asa ¾or As a •t. of res1•tcd As a % or n:stattd 
r11tat,d 

Amount 
ratan-d 

Amount 
con.salld.ated Other 

Amount 
unsolld1trd total 

Amount 
cunsolhlntrd net con1olidated compn:bt!:nJlvt comprcihtntln 

.IIJRts net Ion income lncalbe 
lloltllrrg Co1nponJt 

L,_n,brt Solution, Privott Llmltrd 

Ma.rc:h 31 , 202.5 105.03% 65,186.13 63.25% 1,880.72 3.29% (5.71) 66.97'.4 1,875.01 

Mnn,h 31 , 2024 107.01 .. ,,. 61,596.51 (1418.58%) 1,440.43 6.~1% (13.07) (467.42%) 1,427.36 

Subs/,dlory (lnd/J,nJ 
Luubrt EyctO<h Private Llmitrd 

Moteh J 1, 2025 0.03~'o 21.44 0,45D/e 13.33 0.00% 0.48-/. 13.33 

Mon:h 31, 2024 0.01¾ 8.11 (1.48%} I.SO 0.17% (0.34) (0.38¾} 1.16 

l ,e.ru;klirt Found■doo 

Morch 31, 2025 (0.00o/,) (l.85) (0.03%) (I.OJ) 0.01% (0.01) (0.04%) (1.04) 

Mnrch 31, 2024 (0.00¾) (0.81) (0.26%) 0.26 0.00% (0.09%) 0.26 

Tango IT SolallonJ lDdia Prh'aCe Limlctd 

M=h 31, 2025 (0.00%) (2.44) (0.99'/4} (29.36) 0.00'/4 (1.05%} (29.36) 

Mon;hJl,2024 0.03% 18.22 17.SJ'/4 (17.80) 0.00¾ 5.83% (17.80) 

Dcalskut 

Mon:h J 1. 2025 0.19'/4 115.06 1.02% JO.JI I.OW, (1.86) 1.02% 28.45 

March 3 I, 2024 0.00-/4 0.00'/4 0,00% 0.00'.4 

Sub.<id;a,,, (F11rtlRn) 

L<Mbrt Soladont Pit. Lid. 

Mon:b 31, 2025 43.61% 27,065.68 (20.67%) (614.52) 50.68% (87.90) (25.09'/4) (702.42) 

Morch 31, 2024 38. l 1o/e 21,934.86 929.35% (943.66) (6.35%) 12.95 304.78% (930.71) 

Nao Br■nd.1 Ptc. Ltd. 

M=h JI, 2025 (O.J0-/4) (184.64) (1.19,~) (JS.29) 2.73% (4.74) (1.431/,) (40.03) 

M:an:b 31, 2024 (0.25%) (142.66) 84.99% (86.30) 0.16% (O.JJ) 28.37".4 (86.63) 

Lcn.skart. SolutJonJ INC 
Ma.rc:hJI. 2025 (0.11¾) (69.30) (0.29%) (8.77) 1.26,~ (2.18) (0.39%) (10.95) 

Masch J 1, 2024 (0.10-/4) (58.35) (0.19'/4) 0. 19 S.06% (10.31) J.31% (10.12} 

Lc.nskan Op1lc•I Tr•dlng LLC 

Morch 3 I, 2025 (1.99¾) (1,233.32} (12.97%) (385,68) 13.48% (23.38) (14.61%) (409.06) 

Mon:h J 1, 2024 (L43%) (824.26) 264.23% (268.30) 4.55¾ (9.28) 90.9~~ (277.58) 

L-.:.1\Jbrt S.ll\u.d•n• i"'l.CO 

Mon:h 31, 202S (0.00%) (2.29) 0.00¾ 0.03,~ (0.06) (0.1)0%) (0.06) 

M:in:h31, 2024 (0.00%) (2.24) 0.48% (0.49) 0.0 1% (0.03) 0.17% (0.52) 

L•nskart Salotlont Compony Llmllrd 

Morch JI, 20U (O.Om) (17.92) 0.00¾ o.os (0.05¾) 0.09 O.Ol~'o 0.14 

Man:h 31, 202!1 (0.03%) (18.06) l .601¼ (1.62) {0.36%) 0.74 o.m'o (0.88) 

Luuk~rt Solull,nt Sdn. Bbd. 

Mon:h 31, 202S 0.03'/4 17.74 (0.01%) (O.JI) (0.88%) 1.52 0.04.,~ 1.21 

Morch JI, 202'1 O.OJ"/o 16.Sl 0.49~'o (O.SO) 0.46% (0.94) 0.47'Y, (1.44) 



L,nsl<llrt Soludoos Priwl< Lln,lted 

C1N : UJJIOODL2008P1'Cl78355 
Nota: co the c.an.1olldatrd fin■odal statemr.■u for I.ht yr:.ar e:ndtd J.1 M:u-dl 202S 

(All 1m011nu In h in mUIJon union olh•r••ln lllll<d) 

N cc asst bi (total 11i1ds .mlnw Slu1rc In pronr11nd los, 
Sh111·e In olh,r compre:bcm.dve 

Shan In 10IUI r:ompnlien11lve Incom e 
tolllllllllitlllrh:s) income 

As a •t. of A, a •t. or J'.J ■ Y.ar A.IA% of 

cont0Ud1ttd net Amount c:on.J0Ud2itcd Amount 
NnsoHdated OtJtu 

,\fflOU.h C 
con,olJdDt~ rot:11 Amount ...... n,tlou 

campn:bc.ruive compre:bmsfn 
inc-om, Income 

rT Unskarl Sol■dons lndon.,I• 

Mar<h 3 I, 2025 (0.0D"/,) (0.12) (0.29%) (8.59) (0.03%) 0.05 (0.31¾) (8.54) 

Man:h 31, 2024 0.01% S.42 12.20% (12.39) 0.29% (059) 4..2.5~"' (12.98) 

Th•I Eyo'ff■rC,n,pony Limited 

flvhr1:h l l. 2025 0.00% 2.98 (0.01%) (0.28) (0.05%) 0.08 (0.01%) (0,20) 

Mo"h 31, 2024 0.01,~ 3.19 0.49% (0.S0) 0.03% (0.06) 0.18% (0,56) 

L<nskart Saludoos (Tllolw,d) Company Limit«! 

Moreb 31, 2025 (0.21%) (129. 11) (4.18'/4) (124.17) 2.73% (4.74) (4.60%) (128.91) 

Mor<h JI, 20Z4 (0.00%) (0.20) 3.92" (Hll) (0.01%) 0.03 1.29% (3.95) 

Ml,OK.K. 

Mmh31,2025 21.51% 13,349.26 (0.03%) (0.96) (0.01%) 0.02 (0.03%) (0.94) 

Man:h 3 I, 2024 ZJ.19% 13.350.19 0.93% (0.94) 0.12% (0.24) 0.39% (1.18) 

L1'ntk11 rt Arab In Umittd 
Mon:h 31, 2025 (0.293/,) (177.62) (16.44%) (488.89) 4.10% (7.11) (17.71%) (496.00) 

Mon,h 31. 2024 (0.08%) (44.94) 165.65% ( 168.20) 0.38% (0.77) SS.33% (168.97) 

L<nskart Opdcal LrnJ,s Catting LLC 

Mt1tch J I, 2025 (0.01%) (6.91) 0.16% 4.79 0.56% (0.97) 0.14% 3.82 

M nroh 31, 2024 (0.02%) (10.73) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

O"nd•>~ Co, Lid 

Man:h 31, 2025 (3.03%) (1,878.68) (3.31~$) (98.28) 39.36% (61.26) (5.95%) (166.54) 

Man:h 3 I, 2024 (2.9ml (1,715. 15) 758.99o/, (770.68) 6.82% (13.91) 256.93~~ (784.59) 

Owndoys Inc. OR 

Mon:h 31, 2025 4.91% 3,044.84 (0.21¾) (6. 11) 0.00'/4 (0.22%) (6.11) 

Mon:h 31, 2024 S.11% 2.939.25 (1117.55~$) 1.134.76 0.00% (371.60"/o) 1,134.76 

Owndoys Slngoporr Pr.. Ltd. 

Mmh 31, 202S 3.9K% 2,468.08 21.24% 631.68 0.00¾ 22..S6~~ 631.68 

Morch 31. 2024 3.0S¾ 1,755.25 (440.S4%) 447.32 0.00% (146.48%) 447.32 

Owndays Combodla Bnncb ofSin;•pore 

Mon:h 31, 2025 0.26% 1S9.24 0.52% 15.51 0.00% 0.56% IS.57 

Morch 31, 2024 0.24% 139.59 (37.23%) 37.80 0.00'/, (12.38%) 37.80 

Owndays Tsiw:u, Lid 

Mon:h 31, 2025 1.4!1"/, 927.73 1.37% 40.61 0.00'/, 1.45% 40.61 

Mon:bJl, 2014 UM~ 896.93 (2~9.m,J 2'1}.60 o.wr, \?6.15'/,} 291.60 

Owndoys Downondcr Pty Ltd 

Mon:h 31. 202S (0.10%) (61.68) (1.45%) (43.19) 0.00% (1.54%) (43.19) 

Moreb J 1, 2024 (0.03%) (19.71) (80.03%) 81.26 0.00% (26.61%) 81.26 

Owndays Hong t<on1: t. tml1cd 

Man:h 31, 202.S 019% 180.30 2.51% 74.76 0.00'/, 2.67% 74.76 

Mon:h 3 I, 2024 0.18% 10 1.09 (147.65~~, 149.92 0.00'/, (49.09%) 149.92 



LtnskArl" Sotullons Prh•111e Lhnhc.d 
CIN : U33 IOODt.2008PTC I 7HJSS 
Noia to ch, roasolida..ted On1ndaJ ~mtemtnlJ: for tbc yen c:nded 31 March 2025 
(All amounlJ In It>. In mllllon uni'" othonrln 1111,d) 

Nd: a.nets (total 111,etJ minu.-
Shure in profit und loss 

Shan in olher comprebcn1lvc 
Sluuti In lotal comprehllnSl\'e Income 

lotul lloblllHes) tncorne 

/U2 ¾of Asa ¾of As• %of AJ a •1• of 
ton1olld1ued Olhcr ~orualidattd 101::11 

cons0Ud11led Di!I Amount con.t0Jld!ltc.d Amount 
camprebcn.sh·t Amount l'ompr-rhuutvc Amount 

U><IS nrt Ion 
lnc.omc: Income 

Ownd1ys Tech & M<dln ( rh•ilnnd) Co,. Ltd 

M11rch J I, 202S 0.15% 92.94 0.31% 9.32 0.00% 0.33% 9.32 

Mm:h l I. 2024 0.13% 74.36 (10.33~'.) 10.49 0.00"1, (3.441}'o) 10.49 

Owndoys M•layshl Sd.n. Bbd. 
Mnn:h 31, 2025 (0.30%) (184.82) 0.57% 16.97 0.00"/, 0.61% 16.97 

Marth JI , 2024 (0.32%) (184.72) 18.08% (18.36) 0.00% 6.0 1,,. (18.36) 

Ownday• (1balhlnd) Co. Lid. 

Morch 31, 2025 2.44% 1,515.93 l5.39~'. 457.61 0.00% 16.34% 457.61 

Mm:h JI. 2024 1.65'/4 947.77 (290.74%) 295.22 O.Oll'/4 (96.68~,.) 295.22 

Owndoys (Vi,n,om) Co., Lid. 

Mm:h 31. 202S (O.OW,) (5.43) (0.04%) (1.31) 0.00% (0.05%) (1.31) 

Mon:h 31, 2.024 (0.01%) (4.14) (2.4S%) 2.49 0.00% (0.82%) 2.49 

Owndoy, Cont■cl Co. Lid. 

March J I, 202S (0.06%) (37.90) (0.63%) (18.72) 0.00% (0.67%) -18.72 

Mon:h 31, 2024 0.00% O.ODo/, 0.00"/, o.OOo/. 

T•nnou Optic■! Collq• Co, Lid. 

Mnn:h JI. 2025 (O.Om) (10.19) (0.43%) (12.66) 0.00% (0.45%) -12.66 

Mor<h JI , 2024 0.00% 0.00% O.OOo/o 0.00-/4 

No1t Canrralli"K intt!.llSC.f 

M11reh JI, 2025 1.73% 1,074.36 0.59% 17.SI (0.46%) 0.79 0.65.,,. 18.30 

M11reh 31, 2024 1.SSt~ 1,066.64 (71.96,~) 73.07 (16.57'/4) 33.78 (34.99%) 106.85 

A.ssndaft1 and Jofnt Vtnture (lndia,r) 

T••~• IT Solutlons lndl■ Prl•■te Llmll<d (AJ1ocla1<) 

Morch 31, 202S O.OO'Y, 0.00% 0.00"/, O.OOo/. 

Mon:h 31, 2024 0.00'/4 6.77% (6.87) 0.00'/4 2.25% (6.87) 

QuontD110 Tocltnologl,s PriYllt Lln1l1td (ASJuclalc) 

Marth J I , 2025 0.00% (0.47%) (14.04) 0.00% (O.SO~'e) (14.04) 

Motdt 31, 2024 0.00"1, 10.28% (10.44) o.oo-;. 3.42% (10.44) 

Vlslon, un Servlcts Privllt Llmll<d (J oint Venture) 

Morch JI. 202.'i 0.00% (0.17%) (5.06) 0.00% (0.1 8%) (5.06) 

Mon:h JI, 2024 o.oo,, o.oo,,. 0.00"/4 0.00% 

Gangts Eyt C■re lndla Prival< (Formerly known u Owndtys India Privace Llmlltd) (Joint Venrure) 

Mami >I, ?.015 000% OJJO¾ 0.00'/4 0.00% 

Mon:h 31, 2024 0.00% 0.00% 0J)0~'. 0.W,'. 

A~•ot:i11tt1 and JOint Jltnture (For-dgn) 

Baofeng f.....,ebrtT.cbnology Limited (Joint Venture) 

March 31, 2025 0.00'/4 (O.lll'/,) (8.83) 0.00'/4 (0.32%) (8.&l) 

Mon:h JI. 2024 0.00% (4.77%) 4.84 0.00% (1.58%) 4.84 



Lensk:irt Solutiom r rhii. h~. l.Jmhtd 

CrN: UJ'.l\0OOL2008PTC 1783S5 
Noto to th&! coruioltdatcd fina,ncl.111 .st:thun,nt.l" f"or-thr-yenr ~nded .31 Mnrch 1025 

(All 11mount!I in Rs. fn mUlion units, orhenise stutl.'d) 

Nc!t assets (tot111l 2ss:l!CS mlmH 
Shar• ln profitnnd lou 

Sh11re in other c:omprr.lifilslvc Shm: In to1al tomprcktnsivc lncom• 
total liab llltles) tncome 

As.a "/4 or As• o/. of 
Asa o/.or As :11 % or 

c.:onsoHdatcd Othr.r coMolldaCed totul 
c-oruolidotrd m:t Amount CURJOlldutrd Amount comprchcruive 

Amount r omprehrnsh•e 
Amount 

u.se.t-5 m:tlo.u lncu1nc in-co:mo 

Lil Pelltt Lun•dir (AJSuel•h!) 

Mnn:h JI , 2025 0.00% (0.55%) (16.49) 0.001}'., (0.59%) (16.49) 

March Jl, 2024 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

l 0trr-com1•any fflfflin1Ulon• a..nd consolCdntlon 11djm1tme.nU' 

M1111:h JL, 2025 (79.20%) (49,155.79) 51.21% 1,702.72 (17.BJ~ .. , 30.93 61.92% 1,733,65 

Mnrc:h 31, 2024 (76.91%) (~,271.44) 1736.91% (1,763.67) 98.84% (201.46) 643.52% (1,965.13) 

T ollll 

Morell J I, 202S 100.D0¼ 62,061.70 100.00% 2,973.40 100.00'/. (17'.l.44) 100.00% 2,799.96 

March 3·1, 2024 'I00.10¼ 57,559.50 100.00% (10 1.54) t0O.U0¼ (203.83) I00.00¾ (305.37) 

•~f'he above. nmounts / pcrc-cntogt! of net n:ssclS und net prafil or Oo:ss) in n:.s:pcct of_Lcnslcttrt Solulions Limited (formerly known a.s Lcnsb.rt Solutions Priv11tc Umllcd). il'i subsidiQnes. joint Vi!lllU.rcs 
nnd a~~odntcs uredc:tcrm.incd bo.St.:d 011 the amounts aflhcrcspectivc cnti1ies includt.-d in RCSJJJlcd Con.sol:idau.:d Finam;ial lnformolions befon! inu.:r~Compnny ctiminruions/ com;olidation ndjustmcnts. 

(fl1is .spuce lras been left blan.k i1Ue.n1lf:rnally) 



Lttllkllrt Solutlnru Printc LlmltC'd 
CIS: liJJllJODLlUCl8P1"C178:l5S 

'.\'tHH 10 the c.nnmlid:ttrd 01u11tl11J Ji11iutll'DH for th'° te-!lr e-olkd ll l\brcll 2015 
(All :J:IOOUJltl in Rs. In mWlm1 unJ~.1 111hl!1·wb:c .11~11:d) 

"9 Olhtr JtlA.llJtor,· lnform1tion; 

(i) Then: 1m oo prni=i=,i,dinlj~ imu.11cd ar ,m~ pcrit.li.ng :ii;almt the {irnup fht h.nldrng un)' bcn.11111 p r,1pL'fty under the Prob1bltlon of8t"t1a11d rropertyT.r.im:1clmns Aci, 11./KF: 11m.l rules 

tnildt' th1.-n:uruler, 

(in) T hi.: Grull[t ~~ not m:civ~-d any f11nd fru1n .my pc:rnm(:s) or enfi1)"(1:q. lnchulltt,\; li;irdfPt i:ntltle!! tl~undln!; Pllt)') u.:1th tl1~ wttlcntJ.mlin~ (wli1.1hcr r«onl~ I" wrl1lus orothcrw1s1.1) 
th:.t the Group llh:tll: (:a) dlm:t.ly 11r foWr.:dty lcnJ ur lrt\'CSI in iJChl.'f p1.-r:1on11 or .::ntltkl Klatt if A'(! In OIi)' m:inncr wbaL\o<!\·cr by oi' oo bdulf of the Fundini P:i.ny fUhinmlc 
Bmdl1.11!1.tidl or (b) ptil\idc :my h'Wlranl~. sc"urity Oi' the Idec oo bdolf oilhc Ulliniaie Bcntticiurics. 

(M The Group do,.~ not h;1\·c 11ny tn:.ns::i.ction whi(h i~ nut ra::urJcd in th!: book:~ uf :m:QUrU.S th:11 h:is b1.-cn surrcni.11:'f~f ur 1lisdu~1."' u inoomc tiudng the )"'CJ.I" in 1bi.: r.n .:i(S~~men1~ 
undL'f 1hi.: fl'll.-a1t1e Tnx A1..-t. l(Jtil l:4W:h :a~. 't~.rn:h ur-~lln'L'Y or all)' 1\thcr tck ~'=lm prm·L~itms ufd1c ln~umi:. T:tx Act, I Q61. 

h'I The Group ls not dcdJri:d ~:, wm!'ul di:fau.l1cr by any ~11); or fin::iru::111.I in.t1tu1lon ( r,j de1inL-d u11d~'f the Camp:mLC!t Act. lOIJI or cunsonlum thcr1.-oror 01hcr h:nd~'f in .1<:c-tmJ:111cc 
wrtl11hr g1.mklir1Cll 011 'tl,·ill(ul dc&ul1trs i~.iutd hy 1tu: Rc!;;i:n,= 9::ink of lndi.11 

(vi) Tl1e-Gruup C:omp:.my h,H eumplicd \11lh tht.: numbLT ofla)U( ror U:, holJill,£. 10 d11wmlrcam 1.U1,p;i111Cii ('lrc:icn'bcd under dam,<: {S7t oL,~'ttfnn ? nf1he Curnp~niL~ ,\c:t, 2013 N:JJ 
w1Ll1 the r~1dc,: (R...."'Priction on nuJnbl:r of L..,;w.;:, Rule;;, !1117. 

(,ii. Thc:Oroup b11s 1101 n:v:.luc:"J .nnyof1h Prl'.lf1t.:r1y. Phml Jnt.i Equipmcn1 linr:htt.llr~ RiGht-of-Ulit' ~) llur1"i,: Lhc )i::tr 

(\1Lh Trn11, :i:ctro,n. "'ilh ii ruck off ( omp1111I~ 
The followini: mblt' .i;uJJVJ1;1ris~ 1M 1r:11u:u:tlaru. wi1h the \:omp.:inr~ s:tnu:k offundtt-sa:lion .?.JS of'th~ Cotnpl nrN Act . .!O 13 or !kt.:tLon 560 orcomp!lnlcs Act. 14150: 

Numc of Strock off1:<1mp1111}' 

7.ooni E:u,ilttk, Pm•:uc Lirnhc.'ll 
Ao:s Sl}•lc Dutaar Pm'tUt.: LimltcJ 
Phocnix Ma1-k1o1i,,g Pri,•1ui.! L1mik•d 
Colnrt~k hnJfa L1mit.:d 

Sa1ur.: of1ronJllltfio1u 
\\lth.:struc:.k olTCornp:111\' 

S<:l'\IC't!$ il\'ltlet.l 

Scrvu.::~ .1,·:i1IW 
Scr, .. li:1.'S <W!ill~ I 
St1f\•l.;es:1\1!1lled 

fJnJ:r.nc.fl 0111,r:1ndfnJ: 
\U on ,\l:Jrch31. ?ll?S 

Hn.lnnct oum:indlni; Rt!hlliom hip \\·ill1 !ht 
lUI o,a :\I:ut.hJl. ?O?J 9 Struek offcompim,• 

o lMl v~,,dor 
o.on v~-awr 
OJ)(! Vetk!nr 
0,01 \·endor 

~L"\) Tlw Grnup (' (undlng p,m)"I ha.!1 [Ji_,c,tctl ffl i:quily .shore! of Li:1\Sk:lrt S11lu.11oos i'tt". Lunilal .imour.ninll, to TNR S.:H-4.55 milllfm ((R> :!, IK9.5J n11ll1un on Apnl IO, .!02.&. R:;, 
1,615.78 milliort on Sq,lcmbcr \ !, ~024 ,1nd K~ l,029.1-1 mLlbon on Non'ftlbCr t I, Jfl?"1) {f\lQ1ch 31. ! 1)24 : N1lj ilml nOI J!.l\lc:r, .:in Jdd11iaRJI llian iliin n£ 1hc )'C-Jr~ndcd ~1:tICh J I. 
:?O:!S !llld March 31, !O:.➔ m Lc:L~kllft So1lutioni 1'1,.., Ltd. {wholly o,~c,l'J .1ub~idmryl tuw;mS~ tn\'t."'!lml'nl :and lcndlas."f"unW {n ncwfy lni:-urp1m11C(f cnli1ies ~s hs 51'1] down o.nd for 
lu. bu~r~$ ~,p;i1Non. Thl-s:c rn1tti1.'S ba,•e 1:x.-i:" sci up to C".\p:md tbi:- Groop'.s bu.sines:i; in the ;.Job;il !Il2cktti;_ Dccil~ of IUnd~ 1uh·:incro by l cnrl.-;irt Soll,nicms Pie. Ltd. 1o> 1hl" Jtcp 

1J1m,1 ~ bitt.Jinrlt.:S nrc JS folkm~: 

LENSKARTOl'TICAL TR.-\DING LLC 
Ll!NSKART OPTICAL TRADrNG LLC 
'IESO Br.\1.k Ptc. lJJ 
'LF.NSSART SOLUTIONS (Tl rn LT 
LENSKART OPTICAL TRAOJNCi LLC' 
L.ENSK.-\RT SOLUTIONS (Tl CO LT 
l t!tt31c:irt Sutunnn.'f INC 
LE?"SK:\RT Ol'TICAL TRADING LLC 
LENSKART SOLIJTTONS (Tl en LT 
LENSKART OPTICAL TRADING LLC 
:,.JESO Br:inU~ Ple. Lid 
Lcnsbrt Solulrocu INC 

LENSKART SOLl.rrtONS [1') Co LT 
LcNSKART SOllfl'IONS rri co LT 
LliNSK.-\RT OPTICAL TRADING UC 
LENSK.-\RT OPTICAL TRADING LLC 

NESO Br::mUJ PII!. Lid 
l.ENSKART SOLUTIONS ff) en LT 
L,cru;kart Sulutln1u (NC 

LfN3'fu"\l\1' '30\.UT\C!N.'t f\") CO \..l 

LEN"SK.\RT SOLUTIONS (Tl CO LT 
LEN:!iK.\RT SOLUTIONS (Tl CO LT 
LEN.SKARTSOLUTIONS (T) CO LT 
Sl::SO Hr.:illlk 111e. Lid 
LEN SKA.RT OPTICAL TR..\OING LLC.-

l,:ru.'k.JJ1 Solu1ion-s rNC 
LF.i'ISK.UT SOLUTIONS cnco LT 
I.ENSSART SOLUTIONS (Tl CO LT 
1.l!NSK,\RT SOLUTIONS (11 CO LT 
l,F!'SIURT SOLUTIONS ("fl CO 1.T 
LENS KART ('>P'rlCAL TR.WING L LC 
LENSKART OPTICAL TRADING LLC 
LEN~KART SOLUTTONS (Tl CO LT 
LENS KART SOLUTTONS CTI CO LT 
Lctl.U3rt S11!u1loM INC 
LEf'l'SK.-\ft.TOI'"rlCAL l'Rr'\OlNO l.LC­
LENSl:Al<T SOLUTIONS ('rl C(J LT 
Lf.N'SK.~RT SOLlirlON"S \Tl CO LT 
LEN'SK.-\RT OPTICAL TAAOlNG LLC 
~ES O Br.mtk Pu:, Lid 
L..EJ,,.,SXART SOl,UTIONS tTJ CO LT 
I 1,-n..,.:~n Solunou.1. INC 

Cuunlrv ofincctrpondhu1 
UAE 
UAE 
Sin~ p<.K~ 
Thnifand 
UA6 
T!J.ilbnd 
lini11Al S1u1es 
UAE 
Th.111.ind 

Sina;;:it191"C 
LJni1cd S1a1cs 
l 'hail.ttnd 
TtulilMd 
UAll 
UAE 

Sin!,r;ipt>~C' 

Sin4,~por~ 
~il:lnd. 
Uruti:dSuw:::s 
Singnpmi:­
-ni.\¼W 

Th.11lt1.nd 
Th1!11111J 

Tlnitand 
SinG[lpQJ"C 

UAE 
Sin&,1111-or,: 
Unit~Stul~ 
Th,11alJlll 
Th:i!limd 
Th:ul.1nd 
Thail:ukl 
UAE 
llAli 
Tu>l~nd 
Th.ulllru.1 

UA6. 
1'Milaml 
Tti.all:ind 
UAE 
SUl&ilpiM1: 
ib.111:md 
Uni11.-d SIIH~ 

O.atl': orrunds inn~fcr 
04-Apr-14 
11•Ar,,-:?ii 
17-Apr-2!1 

.!S-Apr•.24 
2ti•Ar1-.'.!4 
.!tt-Apr-H 
2Y·i\'"'•2-4 
23-~hiy-2-4 
li-Mll}'•:!.J. 

2.ll-Mil~•"!-1 
.?8•Mllt•.'.!4 
18-May-lJ 
ll•Jun-2-l 
IJ•Jun-1-1 
:?1-Jun-2-1 
2:I-JWJ-24 
21-Jun-2.J 
?:':-Jut-~-1 

Ol-t\ug-l -1 
O!-Aug•24 

06•t\U.1!•24 
15-AAt"lA 

l lJ- Aug•l-1 
!::?-Au.g,-:!-4 
16-Aui;- Z-l 
13-50,,.24 
,ZJMSc,,.:-t 
07-0ct-.'.!4 
C>7-0cl•24 
IHJci·, ; 
17-0i.:l-24 

I "1.(h:{•~-­

'.!ll..OCt-~➔ 

2g;..Nu\·•l" 
!ia .. ~ rw•N 
IJ-Dt-c-2.,& 
U-Dec-1-4 
IJ-DL'C•l-1 
2J- Doe-l..l 
24-0~-c-2.4 
JO-Dec-111 
31-Dr:c•l4 
09-Jnn-i5 
09-fan•!S 
OQ-J:ut-!S 

Farm ort'l:nu1mirn1 
L-,,;an t1i> Sub:ddinry 
LUJn to Submliary 
Lo:i1110 S~bs.i.J.i,uy 
l.OQn h) Subsidiary 
Loan lo Subs-idi:ary 
L,1:in 1;:, Sub;S.idiJcy 
Lo:m h> Sub!idlUC)' 
Lo:in h> Su~ldl:iry 
L41.ut to SuMh!bry 
l ou.n lo SubsuJi.if}' 
Loan lo Sublldl;sry 
La:tn 10 Subsldi.l~ 
Lon.n. 10 Subtl.di,ny 
Lo:in 10Sub1i.di:icy 
Lo:in 10 Subsfdl..ley 

Lu..10 ti.) Subs11!l!lty 
Luiln tu Subs11imry 
Loilln to Sutult.li:try 
Loan 10 Sub~idi.uy 
L~Kltt ti, SuhJidury 
Loon l ll Sub!l1di.11)' 
Lnn l ~ s....h~hlw.ey 
L\lJn tiJ Sub;lUiary 

L~n U• Sttbsii.llitr.y 
Lt:Jn lil Suh~1dtctry 
lt,lnU)Sil:lnidfary 
Lifln 11> Sub1ltlJ,1ry 
L4.:1n 10 Sub,,1Jia.ry 
Lt.:in lo SutKiill.try 
Lt~n Ii,;> St1lrs1dl1.uy 
Loan hl SubsHfa~• 
[(Im h> Sub.sidiary 
LOiln U>.Sut.sidl;ary 
Lmlh lil Suh.tidhry 
Ln:in lu Subs,di.\ry• 
Lq;in Ill SubsfiJl.ny 
L,1.1.n 1n Suh,1t!brv 
L111u, tB SuhnrlllfY 
La11n ta Su1'1~lln111-y 

Lo:.n lo SubStdi;,ry 
L..iun LO Subsii.:li:uy 
Lo:in 11, Sub11idlil.ry 
Lvan tu Subd~· 

l.;)Clfl l□ Sub!'l~Ulu.rv 
L11;m M Sub!!id1111)' 

Anu,um(ln millioo} 
l !.J9 

1)7.00 

6.14 
1.14 

) 11.6! 

1.13 



l.toJJurt Soh1tion1 Prhi:llc Uml1td 
ON: l/33 10001..l00SPTC l 783,5 

NO!l'S IO the ,011,olidnied fin:mclul m1rmcn1i fur 1hc )Cllr<ndcd J I Murch ~Iii$ 
(All 1m1011nu h , R.s. lnmillitm unless olhCO'i~ muc:d) 

N~.me or cnthv C o1i!U!l o( incor2onuio1 
urtsktm Solu1lC1'1!,, l?"IIC Um1tdSUU1t1 

LENSK,IRT OPTICAi. TRADING LLC' UAE 
L•nsl<J11 Solulllnl INC Uni1~d Stnle> 
LENSKART omc.-\L TRADING LLC UAE 
LE.'ISKART SOLIJTIONS ITl CO LT lll>l.ond 
LENSKART SOLUTIONS (1) CO LT Thilind 
LENSK,11\T SOLIJllONS IT) CO 1.·r 11lnll111td 
LENSK.-IRT OPTICAL TRADING LLC UAE 
l.ENSKAR1 SOLIJllONS (Tl ro LT Th,bnd 

NESO Brond< Pk Lid s,_. 
LENSKART SOLUTIONS (TJ CO LT ThrulJ11d 
LENSKART OPTICAL TR,IDINO LLC l/AE 
LENSKART SOLIJllONS INC Unit.?d SUll!b 

LENSKART SOUJ110NS (T) CO LT To"11nnd 
NESO Br.,nds l'le I.Id SID£'ll'O"' 
Lf:NSI\AkT OPTICAL TRJ\Oli'-0 LLC' UA£ 
LE.-SS!:ART Ol'TICAL TR,IOINO LLC IJAE 
Ll.'nsk:i.n t\rab,1.1 Lili Saud, 
L1,msbrl Ar.:ib1:i Ltd Saudi 
t.=hnAr.,b,aLtd Saud, 
Ltffihn .-'r.ab,~ Lid s...i, 
L<nsl.1>r1 Arub~ Ltd S:wdi 
L.tn.-:knn Arnl)ll1 Lid S:tud1 
Le.nsk,m Ar11btn. L1d S•udl 
L<n<hn Arob1• Ltd Saudi 
lmskort .~r>b13 lJd Saudi 
1.cnsk:ut Arnh•• Lid Soud, 

L~nslum Amb1:a Lid S11UdJ 
Lcnskan ,\r;1luu Lid Soudl 
L.-nsl:an Ambia Lid Saudi 
Lmsk1111 At>hl.> Lid S:sudl 
L,nsbnArobt>Ltd Saudi 
Lenslrart Ar.lb1a Lid S:md:i 
Lensknn Ar.abm Ltd Saud, 
Lenskurt Ar'1llu Lid Snudi 
L::nslum Arabia L1d S.iudi 
l.<!tshn At>b<o Lid S>wu 
Lensk•rt Am> Ltd S.ud< 
Lcrrska.rt ArJb1.i Ltd Saudi 
Owndnys S1n.wipore P1~, Ltd, Singapore 
Lu Pctlt Lunclll!r Fr.ani.:~ 
Toi.I 

Nnme or l'.nlhf Counlry of lncor(Hlrllrion 
Lenshrt OpllQI Tmdiog LLC UAE 
Lerahrt Opucal Tradin~ UC UAE 
Lensk:ut Optoal Tr.xhns LLC UAE 
Lensbn Optu,:;tl Trading LLC UAE 
Ldtskm Op111::;1I Trru.ling LLC UAE 
L<n>k"1 Opm:.11 Tnuling LLC UAE 
Lensklll1 Oph<OI Tradms UC UAE 
Lcnilin Opnal Tnidmg LLC UAE 
Lenslran Opucal Trading LLC U,IE 
Lcnslum 01,11c:aJTr:,din1;: Lt.C UAE 
L1.."f1Skan O1,lh.:al Tradinc LLC U,IE 
Leru;lon Opuc:u Trading LLC UAE 
Len,brt Opuc.,J Tror:fing UC t.:AE 
L""5k.ut Opt..:.,I Trading UC UAE 
N-::so Brnnds Ptoi: Lid S1~e 
No:so l'lrnnds It, Ltd St,_,,, 
N!!SO BrMds- Pit: L1d Si"!JUpOl'o 
Ncsn Br.1t1ds Pie Lid Sing""""' 
N,sa Br>nds l'lc 1.Jd S,q:,pot< 
Neso Btond, Pto Lid ~ 
ri:cso Brands Ph! Lrd S111~o,r,o-

Neso Brw,ds P1e Ltd Sing,npotc 
1\-'cSO 8131Ub, Ph.: Lid SUl!!:IJpc,ro 

Noso Brands ht Ltd Str..gnpans 
Neso Brancb Pie Ltd. Slll&-1P'Jft 

lcnskan Solu11005 Inc:.... U1111..-cf Stlh:S 

LcnsJ.::o.n Solunoos h1c Unui.'d St:thlf 
Lcnsk:in SolutMlni-. !Th1111Md) comeanv LJd Thailand 
Total 

l I M#r<h 202~ 
0 3ft af(u11ds t r.a.mr~r form ann, Hhutnt Amo11n1fin mlillionl 

11 • .bn.2.l Lo.in ~ Su~d1::uy 21J 
2J•mn•:?.l Lo:in 10 Sub:s1d1:,ry 1()74 
?7•.1An•2.S Lo:u1 1> S1.dmd1:uy I >I 
03,f,b.!S Lo.111 IOSuinu!J:uy 71J 
10.Fct,.?l Loin ID Suhsidwy } 17 
12-Fcb-~5 LDllrl 10 Suhs1d11uy I 60 
17.f,t,.?) Lo1m 10 Subsrd1nry J:? JQ 

:U-F1.-b-25 LOl'ln JO Suh!ii1dl1'11')' I J 13 
'.:U,ftbr2S LO.in Jo SubsJdllU)' J II 
24,ftl>-25 Loon » Subs,dc>ry I JO 
Zf>.fcb-2.1 l.o:ln OI Subsim,ry J 19 
l 1°M11r-21 1.43n "' Sob,;,<L.uy n 11 
1 l•Mllf•.25 Lo:an tu .Subs1di:11)' 0 IJ 
I l •Mllf-25 loM to Sub,lrull)' !~ 1)-1 

1 l•M..-•2.1 l.o:ln " Subsidi;uy a qs 
11-J.br-2S Iron 10 Sul!Sldt;tty 6SS 
~-l•M3r-::?.5 Loa,, 10 Sub<odi:uy 741• 
IS-Apr-:?J E<1u1ty ln(t™OO l 07 
ll•Apr•J~ 811ulty lnfllslon 14 lu 
26-Apr-JJ Equhy lnfus,on 121.~ 
IHlay•!~ Equuylnfu.""" !S 06 
l6-M3>•!4 Eqult)' blftmon 6 ll 
13-M.:ty-24 Equ1t)1 lnfitsnm ?498 
zq.~111r-1"' Cqml)I lnHismn 11,:!~ 
04, Juri-2~ Equ11y lnfimoo IJ >9 
06-Jun-2-1 Equity lnfus,on q JO 
Of>.Jun.20 Equ,1ylni\rwn 1240 
11-Jun-lJ Equity lnrus,on 16 n 
28-Jurt-2-4 El1u11y lnfus1on 12 JO 
16,S,,,.24 Equuy Infusion ,, 71 

:U-S'-i>-2_, Equity lnfus.1on 22 64 
I I-Oc1-2J Eqw1y lnfimoo 1qJ2 

28--Nov-:!-I Equity lnfuston HJ 
l0•O1.-c•2J Equ11y lnfusiun J.168 
lJ,Dti:-24 Equity lnfusmn 2J IQ 

l l•De,.24 Equl1y lntiJ51on 31 41 
2J-F1..-l>-15 Equ,1y Infusion 12 92 
11,MM-25 Equity lnlus>on Jl 77 
l-1-~l:u--15 Equity Infusion SS7 
15.J,n.?5 E<t_UII}' fnfus,on 1,)1)34 
08-,\u~-2➔ l:gu,t,,. [nfus100 8)71 

2.62.!.86 

J I .\larch 20it-a 
D:ut of ruuds tnuu-fer Fonn urliwc,tm!!nl 1\IHOl.U11(in milll1u11 

14 Juno 20?l Lo:ui 10 subs1d1nry 61 8,1 
JO October 202.l Lo:an lo s:ubs1duuy 4010 

01 ~O\em~ 2013 1.43n to sulrsrdcrty 2n• 
ZO NQ\,:mb~ !O!J Lcxan 1osubs:1di:i11y q 28 

2-1 Nowmbl!r 2023 Loan 10 subs1dmry IS 46 
1.- December 2023 L1>nn 10 subsidmry 12 )7 

2 7 Dtce.mbt:r 2023 Lo:,n to suhsuLory ll )7 
02 J3nw,y 20?4 Loon lO SubSldiAr)' ISSS 
17 Jonu.ry ?Ol> Loon to suhs!&:uy 247~ 
21) J:uiuury 10:?-I lo'Jn to subsidiary l~ 7> 
26 Fcbruory 202-1 Lo.in 10 subsidiary )092 

I l Morch 2024 I.OJ>n 10 ,ubsldlury 6 18 
lS MOlch ?024 Lo.an to subs.idi~ ?,,1 , .. 
26 M111ch 202..a Lo:,n to subsid"")' I? 37 
11 Au.:us1 2023 Loan 10 subsidimy 6 18 
75 A1111us1 10:?J LOl!JI 10 5ull!10uuy ~ .. 
JI Ai,guss 20:?J Lo.ui 10 ~ubs1d1n1y ql76 
JO Octob~r 2023 Lo:ui io s.ubs1d11ny 6 II 

17 No,~r :?023 i..... tu subsuL,uy 6 11 
tJ Deccmbtr 202J to.. 10 sub9di:uy 9 28 
27 o,m:mbl!T 2023 l.oa110$llbs,duuy 6 IS 
3 0 o~ccmbi:r 20:?3 LOllll 10 subsiduuy 6 18 
15 Foln,~l'\I l02l 1.0:lll 10 , ub;idi:uy ,n 
n Feru:arr 10n Lo>., to 51Jhs,d,:uy 6 18 
27 ~btdt ?O?J IA>.1to->ry I 16 
17 J111lW)' 20.l.J Lo.L, In ~Mtdia,y 419 
OJ M:arch 202-l l~ 10 subs:1d1ary 4 lJ 

2b Febt'\J:U}:' 202-1 LOW\ to ~ubs"ldh1ry ?.36 
,Ul.01 

(:<I Th1,1 Gtoup has 1;omphl!'d \~1th t4!1\!\'<lI11 prnwuons of the= Fo,~1,i;,n EKchlrl~e M:ui.tJCfflt..'TII Ad. 19W (.&2 or 1999), that C'omp tml.s Act.. 201l fut lhdl.! 1nu,s,11:1~ 1lr1tl thdSe 
tmnsnet1ons art 001 \•lohHl\'I: ol' 1Jir.:. P1·t\'entioo uf" ~ltnlby-l.1undi:nnb. Act.. 2002 (IS or l003) .Except l'hr the- nbo\'e, lhc Holding Comp.,ny hns mlt ad.\'JJ'll:cd or k>nn~d or 1n,..aim:d 
iUNk ta :my other pe,son(.s} OJ ~l.ll)(IS), includ1n" roreign 011it11:~ (lnte~di.,m.-s) \\'llh Lire undersmmhny thn.1 th\! ln1crmedilll)' sh.1.11 (n) dut!ctly or mdm:ctl)' li.!lld or io\,:;sl 111 
mher ptrsmsar dlll.UeS tdi:n11fK'CI ii QR)! m.w1cr \\httsoe.-er by Df an bthaJf of lhc Jfolding_ Compmy (UIHmJtc BeoeficcJnes) or {bJ pro\,dt any g.ua.nu11c:e. S«unly « 1hc: hkc 10 
or oo b<tmlf cl IM Uhtmotc BcntfK!llll<S 

(!'<I} ·n w: Group h!ti': na1 enren:d 1n10 any sdierm: of a.rrun~mCJJt which has~ ~nn:;; lmpJcl on curri:rt or pnMOU$ 6nMc1~ )'C¥ exa-ph:d as dlJCbs.ed m note 4, 
(:tt1I) There rue no churgl:$ u r :ilutb'"c;.l ltJtl " h1ch i~ yet 10 bi: ,~,u:n:d w11h n.oc b~ycnd •"~ J1;i1u11.1ry po!.Mod 

(~iii) The Comp:lrl)' h11S not gran1ed M>' lonn5 10 the prorno1~rs. dircc1ors. 1\.1.')' MiU13~rhtl Pc:rJOn1s·and Li u., tcJut~d p::i.rtles (ns ddl11etl 1Jndcr Compunius Act, 10 I)), t.11har stwi!rully or 
JOU1dy n,th Ill)' other pcnon \\h1d1 n~nbl~ on de.m;ndM wilhoijl t;pecif)·my 1ormsorpcnodorn:pay:rr1Cll$ .ttS 41 ~t~ri;h 31, l0:?.S (:u .11 ~brd, 31, 2024 Nil) 

('<w) Tho Gmup (11 per lh< pro.iS1ons ofth< Core ln,-..,n1"'11 cornpon,., (R ,.._;;.;::;~,r not 11>,-. Coro ln>..s"""'1 Compony (CIC) 
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u11Skart Solutions Private Limited 
CIN: U33100DU008PTCl783~ 
Notes 10 !he consolldattd ffMnclal srare•ents (or dre year ended 31 March .?l>!S 
(AU UIOW11S in R$. in million ■libs ~nriSI, Stated) 

SJ A. Alldll Trail No~ 
The Holding Company has used multiple accounting software's inclnding third party applications for rneintoinins: its books of aooount. wltich has a feature of recording audil irail {edit 
log) facility and the same has opented throogbout the year for all ielevant traDSactions recorded in the sotrnare. however (a) with respect to main aooounting software operated by third 
pany manogen,ent could •ot identify 1he control relating 10 audit 1rail fca1ure.s at d atabase level in the ocivice <><w,ni>ation concrol ,q,ort thu:, =•age,nenl ;, ""4b~ to assess whelhcr 
al)d it trait feature was enabled and ope rared lhrou.ghoot lhe year at dalabasc level. (bl for two r ncventory management software's audit ttail feature was enabled in phase wise D18rutel' i.e. 
Jul), 30, 2024 onwards and lltcrefure was effective ch rough !he rernaming part of the year. Further. post effectiveness of audit trail featwes. Jll8nage1nent has not idenluied any ins~nces 
of audit trail felltures being u,mpered, to 1he extent enabled. 

Additionally, with respect to main aocoonting software. io the absence of controls in the service o.rganiz.ation control report. the Holding C'.ompany is unable to assess whether the audit 
trail has been preserv<d and wilh respect to inventory 1nBnagemeot software's sudit trail have heeo preserved by the Holdin-,: C'ompany u pe, the statutory requirements for record 
retention, to the exrent it was eoablc:d. 

Further. subsidiaries. associates ondjoiot Vffltn= incoJ1K)f3led in India. have used multiple a=ting software including third ()IIJ1)' applications for maintaining its books of account 
which has a ft;iture of ~rdi~g all<lit 1tail {edit log) facility and have complied with the requirement of rule J ( IJ of me Comp2nies {Accounts) Rules- 2014. v.tterein there is no 
instance of tampering of reoords and audit tlllil ( edit log) have been preserved as per the sllUllto,y requiremenlS of Ministry of Corporate Affairs to the extent it was enabled and 
recoded in those respective ye,1rs except: 

a,,.ilh =poet to one subsidu,y, the audit tnil feature over the acwunting software is not enabled ud 

b. with respect to three subsidiarie._ the accounting software used for mointaining du, books of aocowu does not have the feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility, 

B, llad<ap Not~ 
The Group has maintained proper books of accounts as required by law e,cep« that (a) with rcsp<,d to one inventc<y inanagement software, lhe Holditli Company docs not have 1CJ'Ver 
located in India foe die daily backup of the boob of account ai>d other books and papas maintained in electronic mode and (b) with respect 10 ooe subsidiary. the server is not located 
in llldia for !he daily back up of books of accoonis and other books and papet' maintained in electronic mode . The Holding Col1ll)QllY and subsidiary company is in process of sectina up 
server in India in order to be in oompliance with Rules as applicable under Companies Act 20 J 3. 

!14 R<>un4td off figares 
Cenain 01nounl! (e1t=tcy lllllue .ir perce111agesl shown in the various tables and paragraphs inc:luded in ti-- consolidated fin3ncial statements hlW! been rounded otr or truncated as 
d«11>ed appropria re b)' the management of the Gr011p. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For S.R. Batlibol & Msoci:ltn I.LP 
Cl,;uut~J ACCOIIIIU.'lll 
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